K.C.P. SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LTD.

5]
(<

Q INDCOR Regd. Office: "Bamakrichna Busldings”, Pos: Bax Mo 727, Mo.235 [0M Ne.183) Anna Salal, Chennai - 00 006.
Fh 044 ZBEE E171 to 517& Fax 044 2854 6617 E-mail | peseral@kcpsogar.com. nance@kcpsugar.com.
CMN-L1S4ZLTHISSEPLLDSS18S
02" September 2025
BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.,
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Exchange Plaza, 5 Floor,
Dalal Street, Bandra — Kurla Complex,
Murbai-400001. Bandra (E), Mumbal — 400 051.
Scrip Code: 533192 Symbol: KCPSUGIND

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the
financial year 2024 - 2025.

The copy of the Annual Report is also available on the website of the company wiz.,
https://www. kcpsugar.com,

This is for your information and records.

Thanking you,
Yours Truly,

For K.C.P. Sugar and Industries Corporation Ltd.
THIYAGARAJAN i karri

KARTHIK NARAYANAN
Date: 2025.09.02 17:15:18

NARAYANAN +05'30'

T. Karthik Narayanan
Company Secretary

Encl: afa

Leading Mannfactures of Presmium Grade Sugars, Rectifisd Spirit, Ankyvdrous Alcobol, Extraneatral Alcobel, Co2, Calciunm Lactate,
Bio-Fertilizers, Bio-Compost and Myccerhiza Inoculum, Quality Fabricators of Heavy Industnial Machineries

Factones at - Vv, Knzhaa Dist, AP, = 321 165 Tel: 08576 232001 Fax: 08676 232640
= Lalkeshenapuram, Erishns Dzt A P — 321 131, Tel; 08671 222048 Fax: 08671 223640
Engmessing Division - Trchy Temil Nadu ~ — 620013 Tel 0431 2501201

Wiahaite: womw_ kepengar com



K.C.P. SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES
CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: L15421TN1995PLC033198

Thirtieth Annual Report
2024 - 2025



@ SUGAR
® A
( IND COR

Contents

Corporate Information
Financial and Operational Highlights
Chairman’s Letter
Notice of Annual General Meeting
Directors’' Report
independent Auditor's Report
Financial Statements
Annual Report of Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
- The Eimco - K.C.P.Limited
- KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements




CORPORATE INFORAMTION

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

Board of Directors

CORPORATE INFORMATION

WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS DIN
Mr.Vinod R. Sethi Chairman 00106598
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi Managing Direclor 00091370
Ms.KiranVelagapudi Executive Director 00091466
NON WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS DIN
Mr.K.R. Adivarahan Independent Direclor 00019844
Mr.R.Bakthavatsalam Independent Director 10459064
Mr.K.Kalyanaraman Independent Director 01761928
Ms.Malini Lakshmi Independent Director | 10480822
Narasimhan

Committees of Board of Directors

Audit Committee Nomination and Stakeholders CSR Committee
Remuneration Relationship
Committee Committee
' Chairman Chairman | Chairman Chairman
Mr.K.R.Adivarahan Mr.K.Kalyanaraman Mr R.Bakthavatsalam Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi
Members Members Members Members
Mr.Vined R. Sethi Mr.Vinod R. Sethi Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi | Ms.Kiran Velagapudi
Mr.R.Bakthavatsalam | Mr.R Bakthavalsalam | Ms.Kiran Velagapudi Mr.Vinod R. Sethi
Mr.K Kalyanaraman Mr.K.R.Adivarahan Ms.Malini Lakshmi Ms.Malini Lakshmi
Narasimhan Narasimhan
Registered and Corporate Office 'Ramakrishna Buildings',

Date of Incorporation

Plant Location

No. 239, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 006.
Telephone : 044 - 2855517110 76
g-mail; secretarial@kcpsugar.com
Website: www kcpsugar.com

11110/1985

Vuyyuru, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh

Sugar, Incidental Cogeneration Power, Industrial Alcohol,
Ethanol, Bio-Fertilisers, Carbon dioxide and Calcium
Lactate

Lakshmipuram, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh
Processing of Urad Dal
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SIDCO Industrial Estate, Thuvakudi, Trichy, Tamil Nadu
Manufacture, Machining and Assembly of Fabricated
Products in Ferrous and Non-Ferrous malerials

Subsidiaries 1. The Eimco - K.C.P. Limited
2. KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Limited

Bankers State Bank of India
ICICI Bank Limited
Axis Bank Limited
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd

HOFC Bank Limited
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
Chief Financial Officer Mr.K.Panneer Selvan
Company Secretary and Mr.T.Karthik Narayanan
Compliance Officer
Statutory Auditor M/s. B. Purushottam & Co, (FRN: 0028083)

Chartered Accountants,
No.59, Vijaya Raghava Road, Parthasarathi Puram,
T.Nagar, Chennal- 600 017.

Cost Auditor M/s. SRR & Associates (FRN: 000992)
Cost Accountants,
No.20, Valluvar Street, 2 Floor,
Thiru Nagar, Jafferkhanpet, Chennai - 600 083.

Secretarial Auditor Ms. Rajashree Santhanam (M.No.: F10367)
Practising Company Secretary,
No.23, Lake Area, 3" Cross Siree,
Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034,

Internal Auditor M/s. Vimala & Pankaj (FRN: 0016385S)
Chartered Accountants,
Plot No. 137-1, Block - 2, |l Cross,
Doctors' Colony, Jogirreddipatty, Salem - 636302,

Registrar to Deposits Being handled In-House at the Registered Office of the
Company

Share Transfer Agent and Integrated Registry Management Services Private

Depository Registrar Limited

2™ Floor, 'Kences Towers’, No.1, Ramakrishna Street,
T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017,

Tel - 044 - 28140801 to 03

Fax : 044 - 28142479

e-mail: corpservi@integratedindia.in




FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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secretarial@kcpsugar.com K.C.P.Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

www.Kcpsugar.com CIN: L15421TN1995PLC0O33198
‘Ramakrishna Buildings',

No.239, Anna Salal,

Chennai - 600 006.

August 13, 2025

Dear Member,

We trust that you are keeping safe and healthy and greetings and good wishes to you.

In light of enabling notifications of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI), for Conduct of Annual General Meeting through Video
Conferencing, You are cordially invited to attend the 30" Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Thursday, the 25" Day of September, 2025 at 11 AM through Video
Conferencing.

In this scenario, we pledge to ensure that the rights of shareholders are duly protected.

Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, inter-alia, containing Notice of Annual
General Meeting and Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report and Auditor's Report, is
attached hereto.

Stay Safe. Stay Healthy.

Wish you a healthy way ahead.

Very truly yours,

VINOD R. SETHI
CHAIRMAN
DIN: 00106598



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of K.C.P. Sugar and
Industries Corporation Limited will be held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual
Means{"OAVM ") on Thursday, the 25" Day of September, 2025 at 11 A.M (IST) to transact the
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To Receive, Consider and Adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements
along with Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its
Subsidiaries for the Financial Year ended 31/03/2025 together with the Reports of
Auditor and Board of Directors thereon:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s),
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements and Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the Financial
Year Ended 31/03/2025 and the reports of the Auditor and Board of Directors thereon laid
before this meeting, be and are hereby approved and adopted”.

To Declare Dividend at the rate of 10% on the face value of the Equity Shares of the
Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s),
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation made by the Board of Directors of
the Company and subject to provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, a
dividend of Re. 0.10 per share be and is hereby declared for the Financial Year ended
31/03/2025 and be paid to the Equity Shareholders of the Company whose name appear
in the Register of Members / Register ofBeneficial Owners, as the case may be, for this
purpose, as on 18/09/2025".

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT dividend shall be paid within 30 days from the date of
declaration hereof {o all the Shareholders who are entitled to receive the dividend”.

To Appoint a Director, in the place of Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi (DIN:00091370) who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for reappointment:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resclution, with or without modification(s),
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi (DIN:00091370), who relires by rotation at this meeling and
being eligiblehas offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a
Direclor of the Company, liable to retire by rotation”.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (contp.,)

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Minimum Remuneration paid to Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi (DIN:00091370) as

Managing Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolulion as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of Section 197 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the minimum
Remuneration of sum of Rs. 48,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Eight Lakhs Only) paid to Ms.
Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director of the Company for the financial year 2024 —
2025, the fifth year of inadequate profits, during her tenure covering 29/03/2020 to
28/03/2025, be and is hereby ratified.”

5. Minimum Remuneration paid to Mr.Vinod R. Sethi (DIN: 00106598) as Whole-Time

Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in terms of Section 197 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the minimum
Remuneration of sum of Rs.12,52 894 (Rupees Twelve Lakhs Fifty Two Thousand Eight
Hundred Ninety Four only) paid to Mr. Vinod R. Sethi, Whole-Time Director of the Company
for the financial year 2024 — 2025, the fifth year of inadequate profits, during his tenure
covering 08/04/2020 to 07/04/2025, be and is hereby ratified.”

6. Appointment of M/s.P Muthukumaran and Associates, Practising Company Secretary
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company :

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 204 and other applicable
provisions, It any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and
Regulations 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (including
any statutory moedification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force), and as recommended by the Audit Committee and the Board, consent
of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded, to appoint of M/s, P
Muthukumaran and Associates, Praclicing Company Secretary (COP No: 20333 and Peer
Review Certificate No. P2024TN099300) as Secrelarial Auditors of the Company to
conduct secretarial audit for the first term of five consecutive years commencing from FY
2025 - 2026 till FY 2029 - 2030 on such remuneration and reimbursement of out of pockel
expenses for the purpose of audit as may be approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to
the Board to avail or obtain from the Secretarial Auditors, such other services or
certificates, reports, or opinions which the Secretarial Auditors may be eligible to provide
or issue under the applicable laws, at a remuneration to be determined by the Audil
committee / Board of Directors of the Company’.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (conTD.,)

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as in his absolute discretion it may think necessary, expedient or
desirable to give effect to this resolution.”

7. Remuneration to Cost Auditor:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution;

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of
a sum of Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Only), exclusive of applicable GST and
reimbursement of travel and out of pocket expenses, payable to Mis. SRR & Associates,
Cost Accountants, Chennai (FRN : 000992), for conducting Cost Audit for the financial year
ending 31/03/2026, as approved by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of
Audit Committee, be and is hereby ratified”.

/I BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//

VINOD R, SETHI
Place ;: Chennai CHAIRMAN
Date :13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (conTp.,)

General Instructions & Information:

The Statement setting out the material facts concerning each item of special business
to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting, in terms of Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, isenclosed hereto. Relevant documents as referred to in the Notice
of Annual General Meeting ('AGM') and the said Statement will be available for online
inspection at the Website of the Company till the conclusionof the Annual General
Meeting. For online inspection, go to / click on the following Website Link:
www.kepsugar.com.

In view of the General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard,
the latest being General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and 09/2024
dated Seplember 19, 2024 respectively, and the rules made thereunder in relation to
“Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through video conferencing
(VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)", (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars”)
and Circular No. SEBIfHO/ CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, Circular
No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/ HO/CRD/PaD-
2/P! CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HQ/CFD/CFDPoD-2/P/
CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/PICIR/2024/1313 dated October 03, 2024 issued by the Securities Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI Circular”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue
till September, 2025. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company
is being held through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue of 30" Annual General Meeting of
the Company shall be the registered office of the Company

In accordance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11
dated January 15, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P /2022/62 dated May
13, 2022, Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/PoD-2/PICIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023,
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI Circulars’) and in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Notice of the AGM along with the
Integrated Annual Report for F.Y. 2024 - 2025 is being sent by electronic mode to those
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories,

The physical copy of the Integrated Annual Report for FY 2024 - 2025 and this Notice
will be sent to those Members who request for the same. Members may note that the
Notice and Integrated Annual Report 2024 - 2025 will also be available on the
Company's website www.Kcpsugar.com.

In continuation of the Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, the
Companies whose AGMs are due in the year 2025, are allowed to conduct their AGMs
on or before 30.09.2025 as per MCA Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 18, 2024,
in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vole at the AGM
Is entitled to appoinl a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not
be a Member of the Company. However, in terms of the MCA Circulars, since the
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, there is no requirement of
appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by Members
under Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the 30" AGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representative of the Members
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K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

10.

T

12.

such as the President of India or the Governor of the State or body corporate can attend
the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. Institutional /
Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send
a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or Governing Body Resolution /
Authorization etc., authonzing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall
be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address lo

muthu@pmkadvisors.com /[ secretarial@kcpsugar.com, with a copy marked o

evoling@nsdl.co.in.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM facility, the Route Map is not annexed to
this Notice.

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) will be providing facility for voting through
remote e-Voting, for participation in the 30" AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-Voting
during the 30™ AGM.

Members may join the 30" AGM through VC/ OAVM facility by following the procedure
as mentioned below which shall be kept open for the Members from 10:45 AM. IST i.e.,
15 minutes before the time scheduled to start the 30" AGM and the Company may close
the window for joining the VC/OAVM facility 15 minutes after the scheduled time (o start
the 30" AGM.

The facility of participation at the 30" AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for
1,000 Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, Auditors elc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Acl.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended} and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and
the Circulars Issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020 and May 05, 2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members holding shares in physical or dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, being
September 18, 2025 to exercise their right to vote through electronic means from a place
other than the venue of the Meeting on any or all of the businesses specified in the
accompanying Notice (the "remote e-voling’). For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as voting at the
meeting will be provided by NSDL.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www kcpsugar.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also
available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the remote e-voling facility) i.e.
www.evoling.nsdl.com,
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

1,

. AGM has been convened through VC / OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions

of the Act, 2013, read with Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI from time to time.

. The proposed dividend, as recommended by the Board, will be paid within 30 days from

the date of declaration of dividend to those Members whose names appear in the
Register of Members / Register of Beneficial Owners, as the case may be, on Thursday,
18/09/2025, the Cut-off Date, if approved by lhe shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.

Members are requested to register / update their bank account details with the Registrar
of the Company (if shares are held in physical form) or their respective Depository Participant
(if shares are held in demat form) for the purpose of payment of dividend through NECS.
Members may note that NECS system provides instantaneous credit to the Members'
bank account, protects against fraudulent interception and encashment of dividend
warrants and provides relief against loss or damage of dividend warrants in transit.

Tax will be deducted at Source as per applicable law on payment of Dividend. Taxability
of dividend in the hands of recipients is as per extant applicable law.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible.
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to advise change of their
address lo their Depository Participants. Members are also advised not to leave their
demat account(s) dormant for a long period. Periodic statement of holdings should be
obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant of securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participants with whomthey are mainlaining their demat accounts. Members
holdings shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the company.

Members holding shares in physical form, in their own interest, are requested to
dematerialize theshares to avail the benefits of electronic holding / trading.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal
address, emailaddress, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN),
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and
branch details, bank account number MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DP's in case
the shares are held by them in electronic form totheir Depositories.

Members, holding shares in physical form, are requested to notify / send the following lo the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (Integrated Registry Management Services Private
Limited) of the Company: -
a. any change in their address / bank mandate,
b. particulars of their bank account, in case they have not been sent earlier.
c. nomination in Form SH-13, in duplicate, as provided under Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in case they have not been sent earlier.
d. share cerlificate(s) held in mulliple accounts in identical names or joint accounts
in the same order of names, for consolidation of such shareholdings into one
account.

. In terms of Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and

Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment
Rules 2017 ("the Rules"), the Company is required to transfer the shares, in respect of
which the dividend remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven consequenl years
lo the IEPF account established by theCenlral Government,
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Any person whose shares have been transferred to the Fund, may claim the shares from
the authority by submitting an online Application form IEPF-5 available on the website
www.lepf.gov.in and after making an application in form |IEPF-5, send the same duly
signed along with requisite documents to the Company for verification of the claim.

Members may please note that unpaid or unclaimed dividend which was declared for
the FinancialYear ended 31/03/2018 is liable to be transferred to |IEPF on or before
30/09/2025 and given below are the information for the respective and subsequent years:

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (conTp.,)

23.

24.

25.

26,

27,

28.

29.

Financial Year Date of Last Date for Due Date of
Ended Declaration Claiming Unpaid Transfer to IEPF
of Dividend Dividend from the bythe Company
Company
31/03/2018 14/09/2018 30/09/2025 20/10/2025
31/03/2019 12/09/2019 01/10/2026 18/10/2026
31/03/2020 25/09/2020 16/10/2027 31/10/2027
31/03/2021 27/09/2021 18/10/2028 02/11/2028
31/03/2022 28/09/2022 19/10/2029 03/11/2029
31/03/2023 27/08/2023 18/10/2030 02/11/2030
31/03/2024 23/089/2024 15/10/2031 30/10/2031

The register of members and the share transfer register will remain closed for a period
of seven days from 19/09/2025 to 25/09/2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
AGM.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
attend / participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their
vole again, Membersshall be entitled to one vote for every one share held by him [ her /it in
the Company.

The Voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity
share capitalof the Company as on the Cut-off date Thursday, 18/09/2025. Members
whose names appear onthe Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners as on Cut-
off date i.e., Thursday, 18/09/2025 will be considered for the purpose of availing Remote
e-Voting or Vole in the Annual General Meeting.A person who is not a member as on the
cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposesonly.

The board has appointed M/s. P Muthukumaran and Associates, Praclicing Company
Secretary (COP No: 20333) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) to Scrutinize the e-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrulinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at Annual General
Meeting, unblockthe votes cast through remote e-Voting in the presence of at least two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company, Scrutinizer shall within 2 working days
of conclusion of the meeting submit his report to the Chairman / Managing Director / Chief
Financial Officer & Company Secrelaryofthe Company.

The voting results of the Annual General Meeting will be declared and communicated to
the Stock Exchanges and would also be displayed on the Company's website at
www_.kcpsugar.com and willalso available in website of NSDL www.evoling.nsdl.com.

Members may post their guestions by email addressed to secretarial@kcpsugar.caom
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33.

nol less than 2 days before the date of Annual General Meeting by providing relevant
Membership details for the purpose of identification including Name, Folio Number /
Client 1D/ DP ID and the same will be addressed by the Company in the Annual General
Meeting, suitably,

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding as maintained in
terms of Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or
Arrangements in which Directors are interested as maintained in terms of Section 189
of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the relevant documents will be available, electronically,
for inspection by Members during the AGM. For online inspection, go to / click on the
following Website Link www.kcpsugar.com.

Members who have not lodged their old share certificates of "'The KCP Limited' for
exchange of newshare certificate of the Company in terms of the approved Scheme of
Arrangement are requested to surrender the same to The KCP Limited, No.2,
Dr.P.V.Cherian Crescent, Egmore. Chennai— 600 008 at the earlies! with a copy marked
to the Registrar of the Company. New share certificates of the Company will be
despatched after receipt of confirmation from The KCP Limited.

The businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system
and the Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means. The Members may
casl their votes using electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the
meeting (‘rernote e-Voting').

In case of joint holders attending AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company / Register
of Beneficial Owners maintained by Depositories will be entitled to vote.

. In terms of Section 108 of the Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, ('the Rules’) and Regulation 44 of the
Listing Regulations, the Company has provided facility to exercise voles through
electronic voling system to the Members holding shares as on 18/09/2025 being the
“Cut-off Date" fixed for determining voting rights of the Members entitled to participate
in the e-Voting process through the platform provided by NSDL vz,
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-Voting period begins on 22nd September 2025 at 9:00 A.M. (IST) and ends
on 24" September 2025 at 5:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-\Voting module shall be disabled
by NSDL for voting thereafter. Members who have not cast their vote on any of the
resolutions using the remote e- Voting facility can vote on those resolutions during the
AGM. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

HOWDO IVOTE ELECTRONICALLY USING NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM?

The way to vote eleclronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two Steps” which

are mentioned below:

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voling facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised o update their mobile number
and email |d in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1, For OTP based login you can click on hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/

Shareholders
holding securities in
demal mode with
NSDL,

[

Secure\Web/evoting/evotinalogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-
digit DP 1D, 8-digit Client |d, PAN No., Verification code and
generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id /
mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voling page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & volting during the meeting.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
hilps/leservices nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial
Owner"” icon under “Login” which is available under '|DeAS’
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User |ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see
e-Voling services under Value added services. Click on “Access
to e-Voting" under e-Voling services and you will be able to see
e-Voling page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voling website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voling period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is

avallable at hiips://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online
for IDeAS Portal” or click at hitps:/eservices.nsdl.com/Secure
Web/ldeasDirectReq.jsp

Visit the e-Voling website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: hllps.//www evoling.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login" which is
available under "Shareholder/Member section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password / OTP and a
Varification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voling page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voling website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voling period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.
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5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
"NSDL Speede’ facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below
for seamiess voting experience.

MNSDL Mobile App is available on

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with
CDSL

I. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The users to login Easl / Easiest are requested to visit CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System
Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easl username &
password.
After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able {o see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is In
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voling page of the
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register Is
available at CDSL website www cdslindla.com and click on login &
New Systern Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option,

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

e

Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their
depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demal account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-
Vating facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voling feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider .. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vole during
the remote e-Volting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User |ID / Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities

in demat mode with NSDL : | . _
ek o Members facing any technical issue In login can

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoling@@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can
in demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@ecdslindia.com or contacl at toll
free no. 1800-21-09911

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
I, Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mabile.

Fd

Once the home page of e-Voling system Is launched, click en the icon "Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User |D, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, it you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
hitps:/eservices. nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client 1D
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client 1D is 12****** then your user ID is
N300 12%*****,
b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is

j2reerreeseeaes® then your user 1D s

|1 2* LR S e B

c) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Physical Form., registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and

EVEN is 135741 then user ID s

135741001




g | s

—

Z

o)

O

@)

P

I...

LLI

LL

=

3

LL

Z

LL

O |«

-

<

=

P

Z

<

LL

@

|

= | s

O 9,

pd
1.
2
3.
4
5.
6.
7.

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password
to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voling system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the
‘initial password’ which was communicaled to you. Once you retrieve your ‘inilial
password’, you need to enter the 'initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password 7
(i) If your email 1D is registered in your demat account or with the company, your

‘initial password' is communicated to you on your email |D. Trace the email
sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the _pdffile
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client |D for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains
your ‘User ID" and your ‘initial password'.
(if) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.
If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten
your password:
a) Click on "Forgot User Details [ Password?'(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
b) Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.avoting.nsdl.com
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoling@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address elc.
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions” by selecting on
the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the "Legin” butlon, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

After successiul login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in
which you are holding shares and whose voling cycle and General Meeting is in aclive
slatus.

Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on *VC [ OAVM" link placed under “Join Meeting".

Now you are ready for e-Voling as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit” and also
"Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vole.
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the
depositories for procuring user ID and password and registration of e mail ids for e-

Voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate of K.C.P. Sugar and Industries
Corporation Ltd. (front and back), self-attested scanned copy of PAN card, self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card by email to einward@intlegratedindia.in.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, DPID client master or copy of Consolidated
Account statement, self-attested scanned copy of PAN card, self-attested scanned
copy of AADHAAR Card to einward@integratedindia.in. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demal mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder / members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for
procuring user id and password for e-Voting by providing above mentioned

documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voling facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voling facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE
AS UNDER:

I. The procedure for e-Voling on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for remote e-Voting.

ii. Only those Members / shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC /
OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-Voling system in the AGM.

iii.  Members who have voted through Remole e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

iv.  The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with
the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned
for Remote e-Voling.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC / OAVM
ARE AS UNDER:

. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above for access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login,
Members can see link of “VC / OAVM link" placed under “Join meeting” menu against
the Company name. You are requested to click on VC / OAVM link placed under Join
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i,

iv.

Vi,

Vi,

General Meeting menu. The link for VC / OAVM will be available in shareholder /
members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten
the User 1D and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting
instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due to
fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask guestions during the meeting
may register themselves as a speaker and send their request mentioning their name,
demat account number [/ folieo number, emall 1D, mobile number at
secretarial@kcpsugar.com from 19" September 2025 (9.00 AM. (IST)) to 23¢
September 2025 (5.00 P.M. (IST)).

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be
allowed lo express their views / ask questions during the meeting. The Company
reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of
time for the AGM.

Members can submil questions with regard to the financial statements or any other
malter to be placed at the AGM, from their registered e-mail address, mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID number / folio number and mobile number, to reach the
Company's e-mail address secretarial@kcpsugar.com atleast 48 hours in advance
before the start of the meeting. Such questions by the Members shall be taken up
during the meeting and replied by the Company suitably.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI elc.) are
required lo send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution /
Authority letter etc., with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized to wvote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail;
muthu@pmkadvisors.com with a copy marked to e-mail of NSDL: evoting@nsd|.com.

Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on
"Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under "e-Voting” tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voling website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an
event, you will need to go through the “Forgotl User Details / Passwerd?" or "Physical
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoling.nsdl.com to reset the
password.

3. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of

Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting or casling vote through e-Voling syslem
during the meeting.
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. Mfs. P Muthukumaran and Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, (COP No:
20333), Chennai, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the Voting during
the meeting and remote e-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

. In case of any queries, Members may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-Voling user manual for Shareholders available at the download
section of www_evoting. nsdl.com or call on 022-4886 7000 and send a request to NSDL
official, Ms, Pallavi Mhatre, Manager at evoting@nsdl.com.

. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-Voting al the AGM, first download the
votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting
and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been carried or not, and
such report shall then be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized in this regard,
within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM, who shall then countersign and
declare the result of the voting forthwith.

. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the
website of the Company at www. www kcpsugar.com and on the website of NSDL at
www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of results by the Chairman or a
person authorized by him. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to BSE
Limited, Mumbai and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

. Pursuant to the Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Notice of the AGM and the
Annual Report for the year 2024 - 2025, are being sent only by email to the Members.
Therefore, those Members, whose email address is not registered with the Company or
with their respective Depository Participant/s, and who wish to receive the Notice of the
AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2024 - 2025 and all other communication sent
by the Company, from time to time, can get their email address registered by following
the steps as given below:

a. For Members holding shares in physical form, please send scan copy of a signed
request letter mentioning your folio number, complete address, email address to
be registered along with scanned self-atiested copy of the PAN and any
document (such as Driving Licence, Passport, Bank Statement, Aadhaar)
supporting the registered address of the Member, by email to the Company's
email address einward(@intearatedindia.in.

b. For Members holding shares in demat form, please update your email address
through your respective Depository Participant/s.

Further, as per Regulation 36(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, hard copy of the full annual
report will be given to those shareholders who request for the same.

. Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of the
shareholders w.e.f. 1 April 2020 and the Company is required to deduct tax at source
("TDS") from dividend paid lo the Members at rates prescribed in the Income Tax Act,
1961 ("the IT Act”). In general, to enable compliance with TDS requirements, Members
are requested to complete and / or update their Residential Status, PAN, Category as
per the IT Act with their Depository Participants or in case shares are held in physical
form, with the Company by sending email lo the Company's email address
ginward@integratedindia.in along with the documents as stated in Para No. 8.
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10. In order to receive dividend/s in a timely manner,
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Members holding shares in physical form who have not updated their mandate
for receiving the dividends directly in their bank accounts through Electronic
Clearing Service or any other means ("Electronic Bank Mandalte”), can regisler
their Electronic Bank Mandate to receive dividends directly into their bank
account electronically or any other means, by sending scanned copy of the
following details / documents by email to reach the company's email 1D
secrelarial@kepsugar.com or the email ID of STA einward@inlegratedindia.in.

Signed request letter mentioning your name, folioc number, complete address and
following details relating to bank account in which the dividend is to be received:

. Name and Branch of Bank and Bank Account type;

Bank Account Number allotted by your bank after implementation of Core
Banking Solutions;

11 digit IFSC Code;

Self-attested scanned copy of cancelled cheque bearing the name of the Member
or first holder, in case shares are held jointly;

. Self-attested scanned copy of the PAN Card; and

Self-attested scanned copy of any document (such as Aadhaar Card, Driving
Licence, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the address of the
Member as registered with the Company.

For the Members holding shares in demat form, please update your Electronic
Bank Mandate through your Depository Participant/s.

With effect from April 1, 2024, dividend to security holders (holding securities in
physical form), shall be paid only through electronic mode. Such payment shall
be made upon folio being KYC compliant i.e. the PAN, contact details including
mobile no., bank account details and specimen signature are registered with the
RTA/Company. [SEBlI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/
CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024, read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
POD-1/P/CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024].



K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (conTp.,)

Statement of material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the special businesses
mentioned in the accompanying Notice dated 13" August 2025 and shall be taken as
forming part of the Notice.

Item No. 4: Minimum Remuneration paid to Ms. Irmagard Velagapudi (DIN:00091370)
as Managing Director of the Company

Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director, has been pald Minimum Remuneration by way
of Salary and Perquisites for the period 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025 being the fifth financial
year of inadequate profits during her tenure covering 29/03/2020 to 28/03/2025. On
finalization of Accounts, for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, it was ascertained that the
Company has sustained loss for the said Financial Year. As per Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, Minimum Remuneration can be paid for a period not exceeding three
years, during the years of inadequate profits falling under the tenure of the director.

However, in terms of Section 197(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Minimum
Remuneration paid to Managerial Personnel beyond the said period of three years may be
ratified by the Shareholders by passing a Special Resolution,

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
has recommended the ratification of the payment of the Minimum Remuneration paid for
the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 to the Managing Director and the said recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is approved by the Board at its Meeting held on
28/05/2025. Now the matter is place before the Shareholders for ratification of payment of
Minimum Remuneration to the Managing Director for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025,

Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi is interested in the resolution set out in Iltem No. 4 of the Notice of
Annual General Meeting. None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company except Ms. Kiran Velagapudi and Mr. Vinod R. Sethi, Executive Chairman being
relatives, is deemed to be concerned in the said Item No. 4.

ltem No. 5: Minimum Remuneration paid to Mr. Vinod R. Sethi (DIN: 00106598) as

Whole-Time Director of the Company

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi, Executive Chairman, has been paid Minimum Remuneration by way of
Salary and Perquisites for the period 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025 being the fifth financial year
of inadequate profits during his tenure covering 08/04/2020 to 07/04/2025. On finalization
of Accounts, for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, it was ascertained that the Company has
sustained loss for the said Financial Year. As per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,
Minimum Remuneration can be paid for a period not exceeding three years, during the
years of inadequate profits falling under the tenure of the director.

However, in terms of Section 197(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Minimum
Remuneration paid to Managerial Personnel beyond the said period of three years may be
ratified by the Shareholders by passing a Special Resolution.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
has recommended the ratification of the payment of the Minimum Remuneration paid for
the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 io the Executive Chairman and the said recommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is approved by the Board at its Meeting held
on 28/05/2025. Now the matter is place before the Shareholders for ratification of payment
of Minimum Remuneration to the Executive Chairman for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025.
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Mr. Vinod R. Sethi is interested in the resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice of Annual
General Meeting. None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company except Ms. Kiran Velagapudi, Executive Director and Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi,
Managing Director being relatives, is deemed to be concerned in the said ltem No. 5.

item No. 6: Appointment of M/s. P Muthukumaran and Associates. Practising
Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor of the Company

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations, as amended vide SEBI| (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024
(Amendment), the appointment of Secretarial Auditors is required to be approved by the
Shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. In case of a Secretarial Audit
Firm, it cannot be for more than two consecutive terms of 5 (five) years each.

In compliance with the above-said provisions, and based on the evaluation and
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 13"
August, 2025, recommended the appointment of M/s. P Muthukumaran and Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, Chennai, having Firm Registration No. P2024TN099300,
as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years to hold office
from FY 2025 - 2026 till FY 2029 - 2030 for approval of the members, at a fees of Rs. 75,000
per annum plus applicable taxes and other out of pocket expenses in connection with the
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2025 - 2026. The audit fee for
subsequent financial years shall be mutually agreed upon between the secretarial auditors
and the Board of Directors of the Company, from time to time.

Profile of Secretarial Auditors:

M/s. P Muthukumaran and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, registered as
Partnership firm.

M/s. P Muthukumaran and Associates ('the Firm") is a full-spectrum Corporate Secretarial
and Legal Advisory firm registered with the ICSI offering strategic and compliance-driven
solutions, backed by seasoned team of Company Secretaries and their staffs, across a
diverse range of industries - including the manufacturing and agro-based sectors.

The Firm is business-centric approach and hands-on experience across Company Law,
Securities Law, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements), Labour Law, and
Transaction Advisory.

The Auditors have reported their independence from the Company according to the
standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India ('ICSl) and furnished their
consent to act as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the said period.

The Board recommends the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is deemed to be
concerned or interested in Item No.6 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Item No. 7: Remuneration of Cost Auditor

The Board of Directors, on the recommendations of Audit Committee, has approved the
appointment and remuneration of M/s. SRR & Associates, Cost Accountants, Chennai
(FRN 000992) as Cost Auditor of the Company to conduct the audit the cost records of
the Company for the financial year ending 31/03/2026.
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The Products which are subject to Cost Audit at the Unit of the Company at Vuyyuru,
Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh is as given below:

(i) Sugar

(I} Electricity

(i) Industrial Alcohol

(iv] Bio-Fertilisers

(v) Calcium Lactate

(vi) Carbon dioxide

Pursuant to Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration
of a sum of Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Only), exclusive of applicable GST and
reimbursement of travel and out of pocket expenses payable to Cost Auditor for
conducting Cost Audit for the financial year ending 31/03/2026, as approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, is placed before the Members of the Company for ratification.

The Firm has confirmed that its appointment is within the limits of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and has also certified that the Firm is free from any
disqualification specified under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit
Committee has also received a Certificate from the said Firm certifying its independence
and Arms length relationship with the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is deemed to be
concerned or interested in Item No.7 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeling

il BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//
VINOD R.SETHI
Place : Chennal CHAIRMAN
Date :13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (conTp.,)




DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 30" Annual Report containing the Audited Financial

Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
Performance For the Financial Year For the Financial Year
ended 31/03/2025 ended 31/03/2024
e Cane Crushed 2,64 477 4,36,469
€ £ | (inMetric Tonnes)
0
-
@ £ | Sugar Bagged 214,236 3,68,680
O & | (in Quintals)
Turnover 22,735.39 29,254 .45
Other Income 1,958.02 6.253.06
a
E Y Profit / (Loss) before Tax 530.03 6.643.53
E L
% E Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (172.24) 5626.48
=
e . | Other (62.15) 34.57
-
& £ | Comprehensive
2 Income
z
i Tolal Comprehensive |234.39) 5.661.05
Income
Earnings per Share (0.15) 4.86
(in Rs.)

2. PERFORMANCE:

During the Financial Year under review your Company has recorded a Turnover of Rs.22,735.39
Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.20254 45 Lakhs) The Profit / (Loss) before Finance Cost and
Depreciation is Rs.1,975.99 Lakhs. Profit/ (Loss) before Tax is Rs.530.03 Lakhs. The Profit / (Loss)
after Tax is Rs.(172.24) Lakhs.

3. DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors recommends a dividend of Re.0.10 per Equity Share of Face Value of Re. 1/-
each in the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company for the year ended 31/03/2025. The dividend
recommended, if approved by the Shareholders al the ensuing Annual General Meeting will be paid
by the Company within the stipulated time.

4. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES:

The Share Capital of the Company is Rs.1,133.85 Lakhs. During the year under review, your
Company has not issued any type of Shares. Hence, there is no change in the share capital of the
Company.
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The total Reserves and Surplus stood at Rs. 35,393.17 Lakhs as on 31/03/2025 as against Rs.
35,854 .33 Lakhs as on 31/03/2024,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

Your Company has lwo Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries, viz, The Eimco - K.C.P. Limited and KCP
Sugars Agncultural Research Farms Limited. Both the Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries are Unlisted
Companies. The Eimco - K.C.P. Limited is a Malerial Subsidiary of the Company, in lerms of
Regulation 16 (1) (c) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, There has been no material change In the nature of business of the Subsidiaries.

A Slatement containing Salienl Features of the Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Companies
inForm-AQOC - 1isannexed hereto as 'Schedule - 1'.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

A comprehensive discussion and analysis of the outlook of Industry and the financial and
operalional performance of the Company Is contained In the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, annexed hereto as 'Schedule - I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Lisling Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance along with the Compliance
Certificate confirming the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance given by the
Statutory Auditor of the Company is annexed hereto as 'Schedule-|II".

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo, as required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herelo as'Schedule-IV".

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The details of CSR Puolicy of the Company and the measures / activities taken by the Company on
CSR during the Financial Year under review, as required under Rule B of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed herelo as 'Schedule- V',

. DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORSAND EMPLOYEES:

Disclosure as required under Section 127 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appainiment and Remuneralion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 relaling to
details of remuneration of directors and certain employees, |s annexed hereto as ‘Schedule - VI'.
The remuneration paid lo the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is as per the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the financial year, all the related party transactions entered by the Company were normal
business transactions in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis and there were
no transactions requiring approval of the Shareholders. However, prior approval of the Audit
Committee was sought for entering into the Related Parly Transaclions as required under
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12.

13.

14.

15.

Companies Act, 2013 read wilh rules made thereunder and Regulation 23 (2) of SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015. Further, the details of Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company
pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals given are also placed before the Audit Committee for
its review on a quarterly basis. During Financial Year 2024 - 2025, there were no malerial relaled
party transactions in terms of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, Disclosure of Particulars of Contracts [ Arrangements entered into by the
Company with the related parties in terms of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form
AOC-2,is annexed hereto as 'Schedule - VII',

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

The Board of Directors of the Company In iis Meeting held on 29/05/2024, appointed
Ms. Rajashree Santhanam, Practising Company Secretary as Secrelarial Auditor for the Financial
Year 2024 - 2025,

In pursuance of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Secretarial Audit Report of the
Company, is annexed herelo as 'Schedule VIII'.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 does not contain any adverse
remark, qualification or reservation or disclaimer which requires any explanation / comments by the
Board. The Secretarial Audit Report is forming part of this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Pursuanl lo Section 118 (10) of the Companies Acl, 2013, the Company observes Secretarial
Standards with respect to General and Board Meetings, prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

The Company adheres to the Accounting Standards as applicable to it and there are no deviations,
in this respect.

UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

Particulars of Unclaimed Shares No. of Shareholders | *No. of Shares

Aggregate Number of Shareholders and the
Outstanding Shares in the Suspense Account g 9130
Iving as on 01/04/2024

Number of Shares lransferred to Unclaimed
Securilies suspense account. - -

Number of Shareholders who approached the
Company for transfer of Shares from Suspense 2 3360
Account during the period.

Number of Shares transferred from Unclaimed
Securilies Suspense Account o Investor - .
Education and Protection Fund during the period

Aggregate Number of Shareholders and the
Outstanding Shares in the Suspense Account 7 5770
lying as on 31/03/2025
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*The vating nghts on these shares (mentioned above) remain frozen till the rightful owner of such
shares claims the shares,

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY:

The objective of the Dividend Distribution Policy is to ensure right balance between the quantum
of dividend paid and amount of profits lo be relained in the business for various purposes.
Towards this objective, the following key parameters are considered for declaration of dividend:

(i) Internal Factors (Financial Parameters):

Net Operating Profit after Tax;

Working Capital Requirements,
Capital Expenditure Requirements,
Cash required to meet contingencies;
Qutstanding Borrowings: and

Past Dividend Trends.

¥V ¥ ¥V Y ¥ Y

(ii) External factors:

» Statutory requirements under applicable law for the time being In force; and
» Dividend Payout Ratlos of companies in the same Industry.

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS., GUARANTEES OR_INVESTMENTS AS REQUIRED UNDER

18.

19.

20.

SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

No loan / guarantee [ investment is given [ made by the Company, in terms of Section 186 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025.

CASHFLOW STATEMENT:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34{2)(c)
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Cash Flow
Statement for the financial year ended 31% March, 2025 forms part of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT:

Thaere is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year under
review. There are no material changes or commitments affecling the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year (31/03/2025) and the date of Directors’
Report.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met 4 (four) times during the financial year ended 31% March, 2025 |.e.,
29/05/2024, 10/07/2024, 29/10/2024 and 10/02/2025,

The gap between the Board meetings was within the maximum period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and as amended and notified from time to time,

Detailed statement of attendance of directors at the Board Meetings and other meeting of all
Committees held during the financial year ended 31 March, 2025 are given in the Corporate
Govemance report which is forming part of this Annual Report.
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23,

24,

23,

26.

PASSING OF RESOLUTION BY CIRCULATION:

During the financial year, there were two resolutions passed by the Board of Directors. through
circulation.

CHANGEIN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

i. Relirement by Rotation and Re-appointments

Pursuant to Section 152(6)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Director of the
Company who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, offers herself for re-
appointment as a Director of the company and the same is being placed before the 30" Annual
General Meeling for approval of shareholders of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to Section 177(8) of Companies Act 2013, the Company has constituted an Audit
Committee. The particutars of compaosition of the Audit Committee. meetings held during the
year and other particuiars have been detailed in the Corporate Governance Report forming part
of this Annual Report.

DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE WHICH WERE NOT ACCEPTED

BY THEBOARD ALONG WITH REASONS:

The Audit Committee generally makes cerlain recornmendations to the Board of Directors of the
Company during their meetings held to consider any financial results (Unaudited and Audited) and
such other matlers placed before the Audil Commiltee as per the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 from lime lo
time. During the year the Board of Directors has considered all the recommendations made by the
Audit Committee and has accepted and carred on the recommendations suggested by the
Committee (o its satisfaction. Hence, there are no recommendations which were unaccepted by
the Board of Directors of the Company during the year under review.

STATUTORY AUDITOR:

M/s. B.Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai (FRN: 0028085} is the Statutory
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year under review and holds office upto the conclusion
of 32" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Statutory Auditor was ariginally appointed at the 27" Annual General Mesting of the Company
held on 28/09/2022 for a period of five years from the conclusion of 2T Annual General Meeting
upto the conclusion of 32" Annual General Meeting.

The Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial Statements of the Company is annexed (o this
Annual Report. There are no qualifications or reservations or observations or adverse remarks or
disclaimers in the said Statutory Auditor's Report.

COST AUDIT:

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records, in terms of Section 148 (1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Company maintains such Cosl Records, in lerms of applicable law. The Cost
Auditor, M/s. SRR & Associates for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, had conducted Cost Audit of
Products of the Company such as Sugar, Electricity, Industrial Alcohol, Bio-Fertilisers, Calcium
Lactate, Carbon dioxide at Vuyyuru, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh. The Cost Audit Reports are
duly filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
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28,

28,

30.

31,

The Board of Directors of the Company based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has
appointed M/s. SRR & Associates, Cost Accountants, Chennal (FRN 000892) as Cost Auditor of
the Company for canducting Caost Audit for the Financial Year ending 31/03/2025.

In terms of Section 148 read with Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s.SRR & Associates
has confirmed that the Firm satisfies the eligibility conditions, prescribed therein and nol
disqualified in any way for appointment as Cost Auditor of the Company. The said Firm has also
given a Cerlificate on its independence and Arms length relationship with the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT :

FPursuant to Section 138 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had appointed M/s. Vimala
and Pankaj, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 00163855), as Internal Auditor of the Company to
conduct internal audit for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025. The Internal Auditor has submitied his
reports to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, pericdically.

CREDIT RATINGS:

CARE Ratings Limited has given the Credit Ratings of your Company as 'CARE A-; Stable’ (Single
A Minus; Outlook: Stable) for Long Term Bank Facilities, 'CARE A2+’ (A Two Plus) for Short
Term Bank Facilities and 'CARE A-; Stable’ (Single A Minus; Outlook: Stable)for Fixed

Deposit Programme,

IS0 CERTIFICATION:

Your Company continued to be certified with 1SO 14001:2015, ISO 9001:2015 and OHSAS
45001:2018 for manufacture of sugar and derivatives thereof, distillery products, calcium lactate,
bio-fertilizers, solid and liquid carben dioxide, mycorrhiza, cogeneralion of electricily and associated
aclivities by Lloyd's Reqgisler Quality Assurance Limited,

FIXED DEPOSITS :

As on 31/03/2025, the amount of Deposits heid by the Company stands at Rs.6584.25 Lakhs
(including Unclaimed Deposils) as against Rs 6282.42 Lakhs as on 31/03/2024. Deposits accepted
during the Financial Year under review is Rs.1031.89 Lakhs. As al 31/03/2025, the Matured and
Unclaimed Deposits slands at Rs,129.62 Lakhs in respect of 95 Deposits.

TRANSFERSTOTHE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):

Pursuan! to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Investor Education
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("The Rules"),
all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government, after completion of
seven conseculive years from the date of transfer of such amount 1o unpaid dividend account.
Furiher, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed
for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of IEPF Authority.

During this year 92966 shares in respecl of unclaimed dividend and dividend amount of
Rs.37,88,672 pertaining to the year 2016 - 17 were liable to be transferred to the IEPF authority and
your Company has duly complied with the requirements.

As regards unpaid deposits, an amount lowards interest of Rs.3,58,325 was transferred lo the |EPF
authority during the year under review,
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Further, Members [ claimanls whose shares, and [ or unclaimed dividend which have been
transferred pertaining to the earlier financial years to the IEPF Demat Account or the Fund, as the
case may be, may claim the shares or apply for refund of dividend by making an application 1o the
IEPF Authority in Form IEPF-5 (available on http://www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as
prescribed by the |IEPF Authority from time to lime.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :

33.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
of your Company stale as follows:

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have
been followed and that there were no materal departures therefrom;

(b) that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and eslimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company al the end of the financial year, 31/03/2025 and of
the Profit / Loss of the Company for thal period;

(¢} thal the Directors had laken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
Irregularities;

(d) thal the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a gaing concern basis;

(e) that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f) thal the Directors had devised proper systems o ensure compliance with the provisians of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT :

Your Directors would like to 1ake this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to the
Shareholders, Cane Growers, Sugar Dealers, Business Associales. Deposilors, Bankers,
Institutions, Central and State Governments and also other Regulatory Authorities for their continued
support and cooperation,

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the commitment, dedication and hard
work of all the employees of the Company.

/f BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//

VINOD R.SETHI
Place - Chennal CHAIRMAN

Date ; 13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598
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AOC —1 - STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS OF

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[Pursuant to first proviso to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Part - A - Subsidiaries

(Amount in Lakhs)

S Bardicilars Name of the Subsidiaries
No. The Eimco - K.C.P. KCP Sugars Agricultural
Limited Research Farms Limited
1. Date since when Subsidiary was 01/04/1996 J0/11/1998
acquired
75 Reporting Period of the April to March April to March
Subsidiary
3. Reporting Currency Indian Rupees Indian Rupees
4. Share Capital 60.00 225.00
5. Reserves and Surplus 7952.84 548.58
B. Tolal Assels 11497.16 B46.08
T Total Liabilities 11497 .16 £46.06
8. Invesiments 3998.51 705.45
9. Total Income (Turnover and 10228.07 33.57
Other Income)
10. | Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation 2262 .64 9.58
11. | Provision for Taxation 606.57 54.68
12, | Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 1656.08 {45.10)
13, | Total Comprehensive Income 1630.15 (9.27)
14. | Proposed Dividend (in %) .
15. | Extent of Shareholding (in %) 100.00 100.00
/l BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//
VINOD R.SETH
CHAIRMAN

Date :13/08/2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
[Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:

Sugar Industry Is the second largest agro-based industry in India. It contributes significantly to the
socio economic development of the nalion. It impacts the livelihood of large number of farmers and
their dependents. This industry is very incomparably self-reliant. Over the years it has proven to be
one of the largest contributors to a nation's economy. The sustainability of Sugar Industry in India Is
largely dependent on supply and demand which often used to mismatch on account of its cyclicality.
Sugarcane and sugar production are seasonal with substantial production cycle witnessed in the
maonths of October to April.

The cyclic and seasonally driven factors in the industry are highly dependent on a stable Government
policy and favourable sugar market dynamics which can aid towards improving sugar profitability.
The Government has been in concerting efforts by encouraging diversion of excess sugarcane and
sugar to ethanol for blending purposes which not only reduce import dependency on crude oll, but
promote ethanol as a fuel that is indigenous and environment-friendly and will also enhance the
income of sugarcane farmers. Government of India's thrust for ethanol production will enable the
sugar millers to divert surplus sugar towards ethanol manufacturing, thus reducing the cyclicality in
sugar business.

The Industry has also invented manufacturing of 'Green Manure' for application in agricultural fields
in order to iImprave soil fertility and soil health management by partially removing the application of
inorganic fertilisers. This Green Manure called bio composl is obtained from a waste product while
manufacturing sugar namely, 'press mud'. Several micro nutrients and treated bio waste oblained
from distillery effluent are applied on the said press mud to convert the same as Green Manure.
This Is gaining more importance in India as the said Green Manure has proven the improvement of
soll fertility and development of eco-friendly atmosphere.

The Production of sugars In the Southern region of India has toppled down drastically when
compared to other major sugar producing regions in India and successive years of drought and
lower level of recovery of sugar, have incapacitated the staying power of several private players

leading to close down of sugar mills over the period in various southern regions of the nation,

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:
(i) Opportunities:
The long term outlook for Sugar Industry remains positive and promising on account of:

» Growing robust and sustainable demand of ethanol will boost the revenue and profitability
of Sugar Mills;

» Environmental friendly method of power generation adopted by Cogeneralion Units
equipped with high-pressure boilers and lurbines intelligently uses the fuel to get optimum
anergy outpul; and

~» Emphasize on bio-composling process by converting distillery discharge into organic
matter combining with press mud for application in agnculture to enhance the fertility of the
sail,

(ii) Threats:
The Sugar industry is al present confronted by the following Lhreats;

» Risk of surge in sugarcane prices and harvesting expenses.
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Rising fuel prices and inadequale tariff would limit the prospect for slandalone power
production during off-season.

» Stressed finances and realization challenge for power dues.
» Rise in transportation costs could affect sugarcane growing and pricing.

» Cyclical nature of Sugar Industry and local climatic conditions will have an effect on the
quanlity and quality of sugar cane and resull in uncerain Production Oulput & Short
crushing season; and

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE:
(i) Sugar:
SEASON WISE PARTICULARS
Nature of Particulars 2024-2025 2023 - 2024

Crushing commenced on 16/12/2024 16/12/2023
Crushing completed on 24/02/2025 10/03/2024
No. of Days 72 85
Cane Crushed (in MT) 264477 436469
Sugar Bagaged (in Qtls) 214236 368680
Recovery (in %) B.05 8.50
Cane Price Paid (besides incentives and 3176.00 3064.75
developmental aclivities) (in Rs.)

FINANCIAL YEAR WISE PARTICULARS

Nature of Particulars For the Financial Year ending
31/03/2025 31/03/2024
Season (From / To) 16/12/2024 lo 24/02/2025| 16/12/2023 to 10/03/2024
No. of Days 72 85
Cane Crushed (in MT) 264477 4364869
Sugar Bagged (in Qtls) 214236 368680
Recovery (%) 8.05 8.50
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(ii) OtherProducts:

Distillery Unit produced 11.61 Lakh Litres of Industrial / Anhydrous Alcohol for the year ended
31/03/2025 as against 65.41 Lakh Litres during the previous financial year, The said Unit sold
15.38 Lakh Litres of Industrial / Anhydrous Alcohol valued at Rs.1020.18 Lakhs during the
yearunder review as against 64.23 Lakhs Litres valued at Rs.3951.28 Lakhs during the previous
year,

Cogeneration Unit produced 14,352.50 MW of Power during the year under review as against
18,925 MW of Power in the previous year. Total Export of Electrical Energy is 4499 MW resuiting
in Turnover of Rs.262.78 Lakhs during the year under review was against 4,826 MW at a
Turnover of Rs.262.16 Lakhs during the previous year.

Calcium Laclate Plant contributed Rs.455.19 Lakhs towards the Turnover of the Company
during the year under review as against the Turnover of Rs.428.11 Lakhs during the previous year.

Bio-Ferlilizer Plant contributed Rs.543.43 Lakhs towards the Turnover of the Company during
the year under review as against the Turnover of Rs.647.62 Lakhs during the previous year,

Engineering Division contribuled Rs.1,393.71 Lakhs towards the Turnover of the Company
during theyear under review as against the Turnover of Rs.1,219.33 Lakhs during the previous
year.

4. FUTUREOUTLOOK:

The future outlook of Sugar Industry would depend on the following:

» Foresee opportunilies in Ethanol production as Escalating ethanol price could more likely
prompl relatively lower cane mix for sugar,

« To develop high breed varieties of sugarcane suitable for Indian climatic conditions and
focus on vertical growth in sugarcane productivity;

« [nvention of suitable sugarcane harvesting machine for Indian soil conditions and operable
in- fragmented land holdings;

« 5Sugar recovery should stay firm while product prices are expecled lo slay supportive;
« Swift adaptation of new cultivation method suilable for mechanised harvesting;and

» Agro-climatic conditions in major sugar-producing Stales,

5. RISKMANAGEMENT:

The Company has an effective Risk Management Syslem under which all probable risks are
periodically identified, assessed and acted upon to minimize and mitigate their impact. These
processes are subject to periodical review by the Management. Some of the risks Identified are
enumaerated below:

() Raw Material Risk:

Sugarcane being the main raw material for sugar, any disturbance in its timely availability will
have a substantial impact on the operational cost, This in turn will have a significant adverse
effect since the marke! value does nol factor the variable cosl determined by the climatic
conditions and the cane economics.
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Mitigation Measure:

The Company always maintains a healthy relationship with its farmers. It is one among very
few companies in Sugar Industry, paying its farmers within the slipulated time. The risk of short
supply of raw matenal is mitigated to a larger extent by the goodwill and reputation for ethical
dealings eamed by the Company since inception. The experiments in farm mechanisation,
drip irrigation, improved cane varieties, carefully monitored scheduling of cane planting and
harvesling boost the confidence of the Company in mitigation of the risk.

(ii) Policy Risk:

The Sugar Induslry is highly reguiated by the Government of India by retaining the respective
State Governments as monitoring agencies. Therefare, the performance of the Sugar Mills will
depend on the policy decisions taken by such authorities from time 1o time.

Mitigation Measure:

The Company is a member of South India Sugar Mills Associalion (SISMA). The Company
works closely with SISMA in the matter of developing appropriate policy recommendations to
the Government in line with the Industry needs. Formulation of policy on ethanol doping, review
of cogeneration paolicy and review of sugar weightage in WP| are some of the issues addressed
in close liaison with SISMA,

(iii) Cyclicality / Commodity Risk:

The sugar price mainly depends on the cyclicality of the sugar business which in tum affects
the profitability. Sugar being a commodity traded across the world, its price is influenced by
Ihe various factors including the normal supply and demand.

Mitigation Measure:

The Company focuses on value-added downslream products and integrales sugar with
etectricity and alcohol thereby insulating itself against price risk.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

Internal financial cantrols laid down by the Board of Directors of the Company are adequate and
operating effectively. The Company has a well-established internal control system in place to
ensure smooth functioning of operations. The control mechanism involves well-documented
policies, authorisation guidelines commensurate with the level of responsibility and standard
operating procedures. The Internal Auditor periodically reviews and makes continuous assessments
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems. The Board of the Company, Audit
Committee and the Management review the findings and recommendations of the Internal Auditor
and take corrective action wherever necessary. The Company is committed in its endeavour to
ensure an effective internal control environment that provides assurance on the effectiveness of
operations, statutory compliances and reliability of financial reporting and security of assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

As on 31/03/2025, the number of Employees on roll including Seasonal Employees is 481
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The human resource is an important asset which has played pivotal role in the performance and
growth of the Company over the years. We aim 1o nurture careers and give recognition to each
employees' efforts and performance. The relationship with employees of the Company continued to
be harmonicus and congenial during the Financial Year under review. The Company ensures high
standards of safety for its employees and periodically conducts meetings to minimize operational
hazards. The Company believes that Employees are lhe key lo success and hence the Company
proaclively develops innovalive and business focused methods to attract, motivate, deveiop and
retain talented and competitive manpower.

8. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE vis-a-vis OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

All relevant information with regard to financial and operational performance of the Company is as
provided in Page No. 3 of this Annual Report.

// BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//
VINOD R.SETHI
Place . Chennai CHAIRMAN
Date :13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Pursuant lo Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The Company firmly believes in high standards of corporate governance and adheres to sound
corporate praclices, conslanlly striving to keep in place evolving system 1o cope up with the core
standards of transparency, accountability and disclosure in true letter and spirit. The Company Is
deeply committed to effect and uphold the core values of corporate governance by adhering to law
and ethical slandards for sustainable development

The Company's policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line with
Corporate Governance. These policies and practices are periodically updated to ensure effective
compliance. The composition of Board of Directors is well balanced with a view io manage the
affairs of the Company efficiently and professionally.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

2.1 Composition and Other Disclosure of Compliances :

+ In pursuance of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Requlation 17 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company maintains an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. The Board of the Company consisls of seven members, with three Promoter
Directors (Executive) and four Independent Directers. Two of the Whole-Time Directors
and one Independeant Director are women.

*  The day-to-day management of the Company rests with the Managing Director.

« The Independent Directors on the Board of the Company are experienced and
compelent persons fram their respective fields. They take part actively at the Board
Meetings and Committee Meetings of the Company which add value to the Board
Process.

« None of the Directors on the Board of the Company is a Member of more than 10
Committees or act as Chairman of mare lhan 5 Committees across all the Companies
in which he [ she is a Diractor and thus in compliance of Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenls) Regulations, 20185,

*  None of the Directors on the Board of the Company are appointed as director in more
than seven listed companies.

»  None of the Directors on the Board of the Company serve as an independent direclar in
maore than seven listed companies.

*»  None of the Whole Time Directors of the Company serve as an Independanl director in
more than three lisled companies.

» No Independent Director of the Company is a relative as per Section 2(77) of any other
Director of the Company.
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Independent Directors of the Company do not have any direct or indirect material
pecuniary relationship with the Company and they meet all the crileria of independence
as provided In Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and are in compliance with the Code for Independent Directors as
per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

All the Independent Directors have duly registered their names with the Data Bank of
Independent Directors, in pursuance of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appeintment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

None of the Directors of the Company have received any loans / advances from the
Company during the year under review, in lerms of Section 185 of the Companies Act,
2013,

2.2 Category of Directors of the Company and Directorships and Committee
Memberships of Directors in other Companies:

S. Name of the Category No. of Positions in other Companies
]
No. Director of Director "Directorship| Chairmanship | Membership
in in
Committees | Committees
1. | Mr. Vinod R.Sethi Promaoter - -
DIN: 00106598 Executive °
2. | Ms. Irmgard Promoter . )
Velagapudi Executive 3
DIN: 00081370
3. | Ms. Kiran Promoter } }
Velagapudi Executive 3
DIN:00091466
4, | Mr. K.R Adivarahan Independent E .
DIN: 00019844 Director 4
5. | Mr. R.Bakthavatsalam | Independent _ i
DIN: 10459064 Director 2
6. | Mr. K.Kalyanaraman |Independent i )
DIN: 01761928 Director -
7. | Ms. Malinl Lakshmi | Independent _ )
Narasimhan Director 1
DIN: 10480822

* None of the Directors are director in any listed companies.

* Mr.Vinod R.Sethi, Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi and Ms.Kiran Velagapudi are relatives. Ms Kiran
Velagapudi and Mr.Vinod R.Sethi are the daughter and son in law, respectively, of
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi
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2.3 Board Meetings:

« Tolally Four Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 in
compliance with Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulalion 17 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015.

« Dales on which such Board Meetings held were 29/05/2024, 10/07/2024, 29/10/2024
and 10/02/2025.

« There was no gap of more than 120 days between any two Board Meetings of the
Company.

«  All the Board Meetings of the Company were held through Video Conferencing.

» Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year 2023 - 2024 was held
on 23/08/2024 through Video Conferencing.

«  All the Directors were present in all the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting.

2.4 Board Procedures:

Adequate Notice of every Board Meeting of the Company was given to every Director by
email in terms of Seclion 173 (3} of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board Mestings are
governed by well-structured Agenda containing necessary information and details, which is
circulated well in advance. lssues emerging on exigencies are at limes placed at the Board
Meeting with prior approval of the Chairman of the Board Meeting and with the consent of all
the Directors présent at the Meeting.

Review of Compliance Report relating to all laws applicable to the Company. is being done
periadically by the Board of Directors. Instances of non-compliances, if any, are noted by the
Board and appropriate remedial measures are laken. The information which are required lo
be placed before the Board of Directors in pursuance of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are placed before the Board
at regular intervals. An Action Taken Report on the resolutions passed / decisions laken at a
Board Meeting of the Company is being placed before the Board of the Company in its next
meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board
Members about risk assessment and minimization procedures.

2.5 Board Evaluation:

A structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the functioning of the Directors
on the Board of the Company including governance, performance of specific duties and
obligations, attendance at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, active participation,
experience and competencies were drawn up and carried oul. Performance of each
individual Directors of the Company including the Chairman of the Board was evaluated.

A separale meeting of Independent Direclors of the Company was convened on 10/02/2025
which reviewed the performance of the Board of the Company as a whole, the Non-
Independent Directors and the Chairman of the Board.
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The Performance Evaluation of each Independent Director of the Company was done by the
Board of Directors of the Company as a whole, excluding the Independent Director being

evaluated.

The performance evaluation of the Board of the Company was carried oul based on the
following parameters:

« Board's Structure and Composition;
» Establishment and Delinealion of responsibilities to Committees;

« Efficacy of communication between Management and the Board of Directors of the
Company; and

« Effecliveness of Board Process, information dissemination and handling of the same
and functioning of the Board of the Company.

2.6 Induction and Training of Board Members:

On induction to the Board, the concermned Director is been Issued a Letter of Appointment
which spells out in detail, the terms of appointment, duties, responsibllities and other
commitments of such Director, Each newly appointed Director is taken through a formal
induclion programme which includes interactive sessions with Committee Members,
Functional Heads and a visit to the manufacturing site. The Managing Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company apprise the Appointee Director regarding the subtle
aspects of Company’'s manufacturning, marketing, finance and other aclivities. The CFQ and
the Company Secretary brief the Appoinlee Director regarding financial, legal and
compliance relaied responsibilities.

2.7 Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for the Members of
the Board and Senior Management in pursuance of Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Code of Conduct has
been placed in the Company's Website at www kcpsugar.com. All the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the said Code of
Conduct for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025. The declaration to this effect signed by the
Managing Direclor of the Company Is annexed herewith as"Annexure-A",

2.8 Matrix of Board Competence:

A chart or a matrix setting out the skills / expertise / competence of the board of directors
specifying the list of core skills / expertise / competencies idenlified by the board of directors
as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively and
those actually available with the board.

The following are the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of
Directors as required in the context of the business of tha Company:

1. General Management skills

2. Leadership Skills

3. Problem Solving / Decision Making
4, Relationship Building

5. Communication Skills

6. Planning & Strategy Development
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Names of directors along with the skills / expertise | competence
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General :
Name of the Director | Wanagement| “*54f1c"P ;sg’n?i'.?g"; Rﬂfa'ﬂiﬂpjﬂ"'"é“ﬁﬁ?""” Pianing
M:h?n? Development|
Mr.Vinod R.Sethi High High High High High High
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi High High High High High High
Ms.Kiran Velagapudi High High High High High High
Mr.K.R Adivarahan High High High High High High
Mr.R.Bakthavatsalam High High High High High High
Ms.Malini Lakshmi High High High High High High
Narasimhan

29 Shareholdings of Non - Executive Directors (Independent Directors):

The Non — Executive Directors (Independent Direclors) of the Company holds the shares of
the Company inthe manner given below:

S. Mame of the Non - Executive No. of Shares held in the
No. Director (Independent Company as on 31/03/2025
Director)
1 Mr. K.R Adivarahan 1,060
2 Mr. R.Bakthavatsalam 1,870
3. Mr. K Kalyanaraman -
4. Ms. Malini Lakshmi Narasimhan 3,10,120

3. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:
3.1 Remuneration paid to Whole Time Directors:

The remuneration paid to Whole Time Directors are well within the limits and in
compliance of the Companies Acl. 2013.
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The remuneration paid to the Whole Time Direclors during the Financial Year 2024 -
2025 is as below:;
(Amaunt in Lakhs)

Nature of Mr. Vinod R. Sethi Ms.Irmgard Ms.Kiran
Remuneration Velagapudi Velagapudi
Salary 12.00 48.00 36.00
Contribution o PF - - 3.24
Perquisites - - 1.38
Commission - E E
Others (Medical 0.53 - 0.08

Care)
Total 12,53 48.00 40.71

3.2 Remuneration paid to Non - Executive Directors (Independent Directors):

The Non —Executive Directors (Independent Directors) of the Company are paid a sitting
fees of Rs.30,000/- per Meeling of the Board of Directors of the Company and
Rs.20,000/- per Meeting of the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
attended by them apart from oul of pockel expenses.

The remuneration paid to the Non — Executive Directors (Independent Directors) during
the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 is as below:

Name of the Non - | Commission Sitting Fees Total
ExecutiveDirector | (Amountin (Amount in Lakhs) | (Amount in Lakhs)
(Independent Lakhs)
Director)

Mr. K. R. Adivarahan . 240 240
Mr. R. Bakthavatsalam - 3.20 3.20
Mr. K. Kalyanaraman . 240 240
Ms. Malini Lakshm . 2.20 2.20
Narasimhan

4, AUDIT COMMITTEE:

4.1 Composition:

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company presently comprises of four
members with three Independent Directars and one Whole-Time Director in the manner as
follows,

(i} Mr. K.R.Adivarahan, Chairman (Independent Director)

(i)  Mr. Vined R.Sethi, Member (Whole Time Director)

(ily Mr. R. Bakthavatsalam, Member (Indepanden! Director)

(v) Mr. K. Kalyanaraman, Member (Independent Director)

The composition of Audit Committee of the Beard of Directors of the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.




K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

SCHEDULE IIIl TO DIRECTORS REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTD.))

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr.K R Adivarahan was present through Video
Conferencing at the Annual General Meeting held on 23/08/2024.

4.2 Terms of reference of Audit Committee:

(i) The Committee to oversee the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure
of its financial information to ensure thalt the financial statement is corract, sufficient and
credible;

(i) To recommend for appointment, remuneration and lerms of appointment of Auditors of
the Company;

(iii) Toapprove paymentto slatutory auditor for any other services rendered by the Statutory
Auditor of the Company,

(ilv) Toreview with the Management, the Annual Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon before submission to the Board of the Company for approval, with particular
reference to:

» Matters required to be included In the Director's Responsibility Statement being a
part of the Board's Report in terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013;

» Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

» Major accounting entries involving estimaltes based on the exercise of judgment by
Management,

» Significant adjustments made in the financial statement arising out of audit findings;

» Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

tl"

Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

# Qualifications in the Audit Report.

(v] To review with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission
to the Board of the Company for approval,

(v} Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.,), the statement of
funds ulilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer documenl / prospectus
/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization
of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to
the Board of Directars of the Company to lake steps in the matter,

(vii) To review and monitor the Auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness
of audit process,

(viii) To approve any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parlies;

(x) Secrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(x) Valuationof undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

(xi) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
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(xii) Reviewing the performiance of Statutory and Internal Auditors and adequacy of internal
control systems with the Management;

(xiil) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(xiv) Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon:
(xv) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the intermal auditors into
malters where there is a suspected fraud or Irregularity or a failure of internal control

systems of material nature and reporting the matter to the Board of Directors of the
Company,

(xvl) Discussion with Statutory Auditor before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concem.

(xvii] To look into the reasons for substantial defauits in the payment fo the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-paymenl of declared dividends) and
creditors;

(xviii) To review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy; and

(xix) To approve appointmenl of CFO afler assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc., of the candidate.

4.3 Meetings of Audit Committee and Attendance of Members at such Meetings during the
year:

Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 on
259/05/2024, 10/07/2024, 29/10/2024 and 10/02/2025 through Video Conferencing.

All the Members of Audit Commilttee were present for all the four Audit Committee Meelings
mentioned above.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

5.1 Composition:

The Nominalion and Remuneration Commitlee of the Board of Directors of the Company
presently comprises of four members with three Independent Directors and one Whole Time
Director i the manner as follows,

(1)  Mr. K Kalyanaraman, Chairman (Independent Director)
(i) Mr. Vinod R.Sethi, Member (Whole Time Director)

(i) Mr. R.Bakthavalsalam, Member (Independeni Director)
(W) Mr. K.R.Adivarahan, Member (Independent Director)

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Direclors of
the Company is in compliance with Seclion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
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5.2 Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

(i) Committee to formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Direclors of the
Company a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and olher employees;

(i) Committee shall iderilify persons who are qualified lo become directors and who may
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the critena laid down,
recommend lo the Board of Direclors of the Company their appointment / removal and
shall carry oul evaluation of every Directar's performance;

(i) Committee while formulating the policy to ensure:

» lhe level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient 1o altracl,
retain and motivate the directors of the guality required to run the Company
successiully;

# relationship of remuneration to performance and to fix appropriate performance
bench-marks,

w

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropnate to the working of the Company and its goals;
and

» Diversity on the Board of Directors of the Company so as to cater the needs of the
Company,

(iv) Ewvaluation of Independent Directors and the Board of the Company.

5.3 Meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Attendance of Members at
such Meetings during the year:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 29/05/2024 and 10/02/2025 during the
Financial Year 2024 - 2025 through Video Conferencing.

All the Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were present for all the two
Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee Meelings, mentioned above.

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

6.1 Composition:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
presently comprises of four members with two Independent Directors and two Whole Time
Direclors in the manner as follows,

(I} Mr. R.Bakthavatsalam, Chairman (Independent Director)

(i} Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Member (Managing Direcior)

(il Ms.Kiran Velagapudi, Member (Whole Time Director)

(iv) Ms. Malini Lakshmi Narasimhan, Member (Independent Director)

The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company is in compliance with Seclion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20
of SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reqgulations, 2015.
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6.2 Terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

» To consider and approve requests for share transfers, transmissions, transpositions,
name change, rematerialisation | demalerialisation, split, consolidation and issue of
duplicate share certificates;

» To review and lake all necessary steps for redressal of inveslor's grievances and
complaints as may be required in the interests of the investors.

6.3 Meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Attendance of Members at such

Meeting during the year:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee meets based on lhe requests for transfers,
transmissions, investar complaints, etc.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee met four times on 20/05/2024, 04/07/2024,
18/10/2024 and 21/01/2025 during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025,

All the Members of Stakeholders Relationship Committee were present at the said
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Mesting,

6.4 Redressal of Investor Complaints:

Mr. T. Karthik Narayanan Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

M/s. Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited, 2nd Floor, 'Kences Towers',
No.1, Ramakrishna Street, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017, Is the Share Transfer Agenl and
Depository Registrar of the Company. The request for transmission of shares received by
the Company / Registrar of the Company during the year has been duly processed.

In compliance of Regulation 13 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company ensures that adequate steps are being taken for
expeditious redressal of investor complaints. The Company is registered with the SCORES
platform in order 1o handle investor complaints electronically. The Company alsa files a
slatement giving stalus of investor complaints with NSE and BSE on a quarterly basis. There
were no complaints received during the Financial Year under review,

During the year, 166 queries were received from the shareholders, all of which have been
attended.

Nature of Query 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025
Received | Attended | Pending
Unclaimed Share Certificate . - 5
Revalidation of Dividend Warrants 1 1 -

Split Share Certificate - = -

Procedure for Loss of Share Certificate 7 7 .
Procedure for Transmission 42 42 -
Other Calegories (General Queries, Issue of 116 116 -

Duplicate Share Certificate, Nomination, IEPF &
Certificate & Dividend, Unclaimed Dividend
Warrant)

Grand Total 166 166 -
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7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

7.1 Compositionand Meeting of CSR Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of Direclors of the Company
presently comprises of four members with one Independent Directors and three Whole-Time
Directors in the manner as follows.,

(I} Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Chairperson (Managing Director)
(i) Mr.Vinod R.Sethi, Member (Whole Time Director)

(i) Ms.Kiran Velagapudi, Member (Whole Time Director)

(v} Ms. Malini Lakshmi, Member (Independent Director)

The composition of Corporate Social Respensibility Committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company is in compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Aclt, 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met on 29/05/2024 and all the Members of
the Committee were present and reviewed the CSR activities of the Company.

7.2 Corporate Social Responsibility Activities:

The Company, ever since its incorporation, Is involving in many social welfare activities in and
around the places of Company's operations,

The Company’'s CSR Policy attempts to supplement the efforts of the Government in equitably
delivering the benefits of growth and attempls to strike a balance between developmental

growth and welfare based development.
The Company's CSR activities broadly refate to:

» Promoting health care including preventive health care and sanilation and making
available safe drinking water;

» Promoting education and employment, enhancing vocational skills;
»  Eradication of poverty and ensuring better living conditions;

Ensuring envirenmental suslainabllity, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water,

"‘_.-‘

» Conducting relief operations in nalural disaster hit areas and confribution to
Govermmenl Disaster Relief Fund.

The Company has spenl a sum of Rs.22,31,362/- towards CSR Aclivities.

Report on CSR Activities as per Rule 8 (1) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Palicy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Schedule V to the Directors’ Report.

8. GENERAL MEETINGS
8.1 Details of last Three Annual General Meetings:

AGM for the Date of Venue of AGM Time of No. of
Financial Year AGM AGM Special
ended Resolutions
passed in the
AGM
3110372024 23/09/2024 | Held through Video 11 AM 2
Conferencing
31/03/2023 2710912023 Held through Video 11 AM -
Conferencing
31/03/2022 28/09/2022 | Held through Video 10 AM 2
Conferencing
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8.2 Postal Ballot:

» The Board of Directors in their meeling held on 10/02/2025 has approved the Re-
Appointment of Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director with effect from
29/03/2025 and Mr. Vinod R. Sethi, Whole Time Director of the Company with effect
from 08/04/2025 and the approval from the shareholders by Special Resolutions has
been sought through Postal Ballot process concluded in March 2025,

Accordingly, the Company has oblained requisite approval and the results/ resolutions
was announced on 25/03/2025.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

» Quarterly Financial Results:

In pursuance of Regulation 33 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, quarterly financial results of the Company as approved by the Board of
Direclors of the Company on the recommendation of Audil Commitlee, are submiltled with
the Stock Exchanges through NEAPS |/ BSE Listing Centre after conclusion of the Board
Meeting. The results are also published in the prescribed formal in English Newspaper and
Regional Newspaper, having wide circulation. The resulls are also immediately placed in
the Company's Websile al www . kcpsugar.com

- The quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company are generally published in
widely circulating National and Regional Newspapers such as The Financial Express' (in
English) and 'Makkal Kural’ (in Tamil).

» Al information / news relating to the Company including financial results and those which
are mandatorily required o be placed in the Wabsite at www kcpsugar.com.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION:
10.1 Market Price Data:

High / Low of Markel Price of the Company's Shares (Face Value Re.1/-) raded on National
Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange during each menth in the Financial Year
2024 - 2025 s given below:

High Low High Low

Period ETBsE NSETBSE| %Y NSET BSE [ NSE | BSE

Apr'24 42.95 41.9[!. 33.30| 33.38| Oct ‘24 58.34| 58.34 | 45.00| 45.00

May ‘24 | 40.10| 40.25| 33.90| 33.60| Nov ‘24 | 48.95| 4895|4151 41.51

June ‘24 | 49.40 | 49.30| 31.05| 31.79| Dec ‘24 | 53.78| 53.69 | 42.86| 42.00

July ‘24 | 54.50 | 54,52 | 43.89| 43.80| Jan'25 | 48.49| 47.86| 38.20| 38.07
Aug ‘24 | 60.48 | 60.32| 46.30| 42.00| Feb'25 | 42.98| 42.79|33.00| 32.88

Sep ‘24 62.00 | 62.00 | 51.00| 51.00| Mar‘25 | 37.99| 38.45|32.01| 31.72
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10.2 Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

As SEBI| has mandated transfer of shares only in Demat Form, the Members are requested
lo dematerialize their shares before effecting any transfer. Even otherwise,
Demalenalisation facilitates easy transfer and accounting of shares and improves the
liguidity of shares.

Shares in Physical and Electronic Form as on 31/03/2025:

Form No. of % of No. of % of
Shareholders Shareholders Shiirek Shareholding

Physical Mode 1243 1.93 2334450 2.06

Sub Total 1243 1.93 2334450 2.06
Electronic Mode

- NSDL 18675 28.93 87448239 71712

- CDSL 44635 69.14 23602361 20.82

Sub Total 63310 98.07 111050600 97.94

Grand Total 64553 100.00 113385050 100.00

10.3 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31/03/2025;
No. of % of Aggregate % of

No. of Shares held | gp,4reholders | Shareholders|  Shares held Shareholding
Upta 5000 63126 97.78 21951491 19.36
5001 - 10000 739 1.14 5587866 4.93
10001 - 20000 346 0.54 5013638 4.42
20001 - 30000 126 0.20 3120126 LD
30001 - 40000 58 0.09 2017727 1.78
40001 - 50000 36 0.06 1686292 1.49
50001 - 100000 53 0.08 3887858 3.43
100001 and above 69 0.11 70120012 61.84
Total 64553 | 100.00 113385050 100.00
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10.4 Other Information:

S. No.

MNature of Particulars

Details

1.

Annual General Meeting for the
Financlal Year ended 31/03/2025

Annual General Meeting will be held through Video
Conferencing on Thursday, lhe 25" September, 2025 at
1AM

Financial Year of the Company

1% April to 31% March

Dividend Payment Date

Within 30 days from the date of declaration of Dividend
by the Company

Name and Address of St{:-m;1
Exchange al which lthe shares o
the Company are listed

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.

BSE Limited (Bombay Stock Exchange)
PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Whether Listing Fees paid to the
Stock Exchanges

Yes

Stock Code

NSE : KCPSUGIND
BSE : 533192

Share Transfer Agent and
Depository Registrar of the
Company (Registrar of the
Company)

Integrated Reqislry Managemenl Services Private
Limited

2" Floor, 'Kences Towers', No.1, Ramakrishna Street,
T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.

Tel : 044 - 28140801 to 03

Fax : 044 - 28142479
email : corpserv@integratedindia.in

Plant Location

Unit at Vuyyuru, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh:
Sugar, Incidental Cogeneration Power, Industrial
Alcohal, Ethanol, Bio-Fertilisers, Carbon dioxide and
Calcium Laclate

Lakshmipuram, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh
Processing of Urad Dal

SIDCO Industrial Estate, Thuvakudi, Trichy
Manufacture, Machining and Assembly of Fabricated

Products in Ferrous and Nan - Ferrous Materials

Address for Correspondence

Shareholders correspondence should be addressed lo
the Registrar of the Company al their address
mentioned hereinabove. Shareholders holding shares
in electronic mode should address all their
correspondence to their respective Deposilory
Participant. Shareholders may also contact Mr, T
Karthik  Narayanan, Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer, K.C.P.Sugar and Industries
Corporation Limited, 'Ramakrishna Buildings', No.239,
Anna Salal, Chennai - 600 006,

10.

Credit Ratings during the

Financial Year 2024 - 2025

Long Term Bank] CARE A -; Stable(Single A Minus;
Facilities Qutlook: Stable)

Short Term| CARE A2+ (A Two Plus)
Bank Facilities

Fixed Deposit
Programme

CARE A -; Stable(Single A Minus;
Outlook: Stable)
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11. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

11.1 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism [ Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and
Employees and other Stakeholders to report their genuine concerns, in pursuance of Section
177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Rules made thereunder and Regulation
22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Vigil
Mechanism Policy has been uploaded in the Company's Website al www.kcpsugar.com. The
said Vigil Mechanism Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
persons who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committees in appropriate or exceptional cases. It is affirmed that no personnel has
been denied access to the Audit Commitlee.

11.2 Details of compliance of Corporate Governance Requirements in terms of Regulation
27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Particulars “Regulation Compliance Status
No. (Yes / No / NA)

Independent Director{s) have 16.(1) (b) Yes
been appointed in compliance of
‘independance criteria’ and ‘other 25 (B) Not Applicable (NA)
eligibility criteria’
Board Composition 17 (1) Yes
Meeting of Board of Directors 17 (2) Yes
Review of Compliance Reports 17 (3) Yes
Plans for orderly succession for 17 (4) Yes

appointments to Board of Directors
and Senior Management

Code of Conduct for Directors and 17 (5) Yes
Senior Mangement

Fees / Compensation to Non - 17 (B) Yes
Executive Directors

Minimum Information to be placed 17 (7

before Board of Directors (") ves
Compliance Certificate of MD and

CFO 17 (8) Yes
Risk Assessment and Management 17 (9) Yes
Performance Evaluation of 17 (10) Yes
Independent Direclors

Composition of Audit Committee 18 (1) Yes
Meeting of Audit Commitlee 18 (2) Yes
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Composition of Nomination and 18 (1) and (2) Yes

Remuneration Commillee

Composition of Stakeholders 20 (2) and (2A) Yes

Relationship Commitiee

Compesition and Role of Risk 21 (1), (2), (3) NA

Management Committee and (4)

Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes

Paolicy for Related Party 23 (1), (3), (6) Yes

Transactions and (7)

23 (8) NA as lhere are no Material

Related Party Transaclions

Prior or Omnibus Approval of 23 (2 Y

Audit Commitiee for all Related @) e

Party Transactions 23 (3) NA as Audit Commitiee
has not granted any
omnibus approval

Approval for Material Related 23 (4) NA as there are no

Party Transaclions Material Related Party
Transactions

Composition of Board of 24 (1) NA

Directors of Unlisted Material

Subsidiary

Other Corporate Governance 24 (2), (3). (4), Yes

requirements with respect to (5) and (6)

Subsidiary of the Company

Maximum Directorship and 25(1)and (2) Yes

Tenure

Meelting of Independent 25 (3)and (4) Yes

Directors

Familiarization of Independent 25 (7) Yes

Directors

Memberships in Committees 26 (1) Yes

Affirmation of compliance to 26 (3) Yes

code of conduct from Members

of Board of Directors and

senior Managemenl Personnel

Disclosure of Shareholding by 26 (4) Yes

Non-Executive Directors

Obligations of Directors and 26 (2) and (3) Yes

aeniar Management

* SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremerils) Regulations, 2015
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11.3 The Company had duly filed with the Stock Exchanges, Quarterly Compliance Report
on Corporate Governance in the prescribed format in terms of Regulation 27(2) of
SEBI (Lisling Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the
quarters ended 30/06/2024, 30/09/2024, 31/12/2024 and 31/03/2025.

11.4 The Statutory Auditor of the Company has given a Certificate on Compliance of
Conditions of Corporate Governance as required under Para E of Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and the same
has been annaxed herewith as’Annexure-B'.

11.5 There are no compliance requirements in respect of discretionary items in terms of
Regulation 27 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015,

11.6 The Certificate from the Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
statutory authority is annexed herewith as 'Annexure -C'.

11.7 No recommendation of any Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has
been disregarded / unaccepled by the Board of Directors of the Company.

11.8 Total fees for all services paid to the Statutory Auditor of the Company by the Company
and its Subsidiaries for the Financial Year 2024 — 2025 is Rs.8.51 Lakhs (Rupees Eight
Lakhs and Fifty One Thousand Only)

11.9 Disclosures in respect of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has been at the forefront in ensuring a safe and secure work place for all its
women employees. The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment of
women at workplace. The Company has an Internal Complaints Committee to deal with.

No. of Complaints filed during the Financial Year il

No. of Complaints disposed of during the il
Financial Year

No. of Complaints pending as on end of the il
Financial Year

11.10 Details of compliance as per Regulation 46 (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

In terms of Regulation 46 (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Reqgulations, 2015, the Company has placed all the relevant information, as applicable at the
Website of the Company at www . kcpsugar.com.

The Company ensures that the contents of the Website of the Company are correct and
changes, ifany, are updated, periodically.
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11.11 Share Transfer System: As per mandate of SEBI, a Member can transfer the
Shares only if such shares are in Demal Form. Any transfer of shares is rouled through
depository system, All documents received for transmission / consalidation / name change
of shares, if any, are processed by the Registrar of the Company and are approved by the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at such times as required, depending
on the volume of transactions. Transactions are registered and returned within a maximum
of 15 days from lhe dale of lodgement, If documenls are complete in all respects. There is
no request pending action as on 31/03/2025.

11.12 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: As stipulated by SEBI, Practising Company
Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconclle the Total Issued
Capital and Total Listed Capital and Shares held in Demat Form with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limiled (CDSL) and
Physical Shares. The Audit Is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted
lo the Stock Exchanges and is also placed before the Board of Directors of the Company
and placed at the Websile of the Company at www_.kcpsugar.com.

11.13 Prohibition of Insider Trading: The Company has framed a Code of Conduct for
Prohibition of Insider Trading based on SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015. The Code is applicable to all the Directors, Officers and Employees of the Company.
The Code aims to prehibit dealing in the Shares of the Company by persons having access
to unpublished price sensitive information. The Trading Window shall remain closed during
the period when ‘Insider’ in terms of Regulations can reasonably be expecled to have
possession of unpublished price sensitive information which in any event shall commence
from the end of every quarter and lasts till 48 hours after the declaration of financial results.
The Company Secreltary is designaled as the Compliance Officer for this purpose.

11.14 Preservation of Documents: The Company preserves the documents in line with
Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
read with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Rules made
thereunder for preservation of documents maintained in electronic [ physical form.

11.15 Peer Review of Statutory Auditor: Pursuant to Regulation 33 (1) (d) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reqguirements) Regulations, 2015, the Statutory Auditor
of the Company has confirmed that they have subjected themselves to Peer Review
Process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and they hold the valid certificate
Issued by the Peer Review Board of the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of India.

11.16 Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Compliance Cerlificate of the Chairman and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, in the format provided in Part B of Schedule |l of
the said Regulations. have been placed before the Beard of Directors of the Company and
the same is annexed herewith as 'Annexure-D",

/I BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//

VINOD R.SETHI
Place : Chennal CHAIRMAN
Date :13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598
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ANNEXURE - A

DECLARATION

[Pursuant to Regulation 34 {3) read with Para D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

I, Vinod R. Sethi, Chairman of K.C.P. Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited, hereby declare and
confirm that all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management, as laid
down by the Company for the financial year 2024 - 2025.

For K.C.P. Sugarand industries Corporation Limited

Vinod R. Sethi
Place : Chennai Chairman
Date ; 13/08/2025 DIN; 00106598
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ANNEXURE - B

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
To

The Members of
K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance by K.C.P. Sugar
and industries Corporation Ltd, (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") for the financial
year ended 31 March 2025, as per regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b)to ( | ) of sub-requlation
(2) of regulation 46 and paras C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations 2015 (hereinafter
referred to as the "Listing Regulations”).

Management's Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and
implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

Auditor's Responsibility

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reporis or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires thal we comply with the ethical
requirements of Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) - 1, Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial information and other Assurance and Relaled Services Engagements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the Company has, during the aforesaid year; complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducled the
affairs of the Company.

Restrictions on Use

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of Complying with the aforesaid Regulations
and may not be suitable for any other purposes.

For B. Purushottam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0028085

Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership number: 243632
UDIN: 25243632BMKYHA2355

Place : Chennai
Date : 28/May/2025
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ANNEXURE -C

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

[Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (10) (i) of Securitles and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulaltions, 2015]

The Members,

K.C.P.SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED
Ramakrishna Building, New No.239 (Old No.183)

Anna Salai, Chennal- 600 006.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
K.C.P. SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED (CIN: L15421TN1995PLC033198) having ils
Registered Office al Ramakrishna Building, New No.239 (old No.183) Anna Salal, Chennal - 600 006 (hereinafter
referred lo as “The Company’) as produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this cerificate,
in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Pard-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

In our opinion and according fo the venfications (including Director Identification Number {DIN} Status at the portal
www.meca.gov.in) and based on such examination as well as information and explanations furnished lo us, which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of issue of this certificate and based on
such verification as considered necessary, we hereby cerlify that none of the Direclors as stated below on the
Board of the Company as on 31% March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appoinied or
continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs
ar any such other statutory authority,

S.NO. | DIN NAME OF THE DIRECTOR DESIGNATION DATE OF APPT
1 | 00106598 | Vinod Rajindranath Sethi Whole-time Director 26/10/2005
2 | 00081370 | Irmgard Velagapudi Managing Director 11/08/2000
3 | 00091466 | Kiran Velagapudi Whole-time Director 2910712002
4 | 00019844 | Karaikurichi Rangaswamy Director 21/09/2016
Adivarahan
5 10459064 | Ramachandran Bakthavatsalam Director 01/04/2024
B 01761928 | Krishnaswamy Kalyanaraman Director 01/04/2024
7 10480822 | Malini Lakshmi Narasimhan Director 01/04/2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appaintment | continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these hased on our verification. This
certificate is neilher an assurance as to the fulure viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effecliveness
with which the managemenl has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Rajashree Santhanam
Practising Company Secretary
FCS No. 10367 / CP No. 10096
PR 1553/2021

UDIN: FO10367G000371783

Place : Chennai
Date : 19/05/2025
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ANNEXURE-D
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

[Fursuant to Regulation 17 (8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015]

Te
The Board of Direclors

K.C.P. Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) read with Part B of Schedule || of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that;

A. we have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31/03/2025
and thatio the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not coniain any matenally unirue statement or omit any material fact
or conlain statements thal might be misleading;

(i) these statements togelher present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. there are, lo the bes! of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered Into by the Company
during the year under review which are fraudulent, lllegal or violative of the Company's code of
conduct.

C. we acceplresponsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed o the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies
in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps
we have laken or propose o lake lo reclify these deficiencies.

D. we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

(i)  significant changes, if any, In Internal control over financial reporting during the year under
review,

(I} significant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the year under review and that the
same have been disclosed in the notes lo the financial statements, and

(i) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and lhe involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial repaorling.

Pl “ch . Vinod R. Sethi K.Panneer Selvan
ARE:= IR Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Date : 13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598 CMA M.No.: 9894
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K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

(i) Measures taken for Conservation of Energy:

Vuyyuru Unit:

» Digitalization of C centrifugal working loads to run the machines at designed load
thereby saving of electrical energy.

» Replacement of exhausl condensate pump utilizing for diverting the condensate to
the boilers during soda bolling process at evaporator thereby saving of thermal
energy.

# Installation of flow meter in the clear juice line to optimize the juice loads in
evaporators thereby saving of thermal energy.

(i) Additional Proposals and Impact on Conservation of Energy:

» Installation of plate type heal exchanger for utilization of waste heat from the
excess condensate water,

(iiiy Power and Fuel:

Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024
A. Electricity
() Purchased
Units KWH 985179 785655
Total Amount (in Lakhs) 96.89 79.67
Rate / Unit (in Rs.) 9.83 10.14

(ii) Own Generation

a) Through Diesel Generation

Units KWH 19034 24798

Unit per Litre of Diesel 3.1 2.97
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Cost / Unit (in Rs.) 29.72 32.56

b) Through Steam Turbine / Generator

Units KWH 14352500 18985300
KWH per tonne of Bagasse 255.09 253.02
Cost / Unit (in Rs.) 5.39 3.40

B. Consumption per Unit of Production

Electricity consumed per Tonne of 328.49 296.19
Sugar produced (in KWH)

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) Research and Development:

S

"T

W/

We have collected high sugar rich three varieties 201677, Co-VSI83102, Co-
V8118121 from different locations Coimbatore and SRS Perumanilapall, Chittor
after careful evaluation of these varieties was selected for further multiplication in
view of its high tillering ability, Quality and Yield potential. Hence, it is mulliplying
in the factory commended area.

The single bud seedling production promoted for the ease of sugarcane plantation
with high purity and 100% seed treatment process was continuing and issued 2
Crore seeding through our existing two number of contractors and outsourcing the
seedling from the neighboring contractors.

The bio ferilizers azospirillum, phosphobacteria and multiguard applied sugarcane
seedlings plots was evaluated yield and quality therefore the result is yield was
increased by 2.M.T's and quality is increased by 0.02%+,

Focus on wider row spaced plantation for mechanizalion and also diverting
sugarcane growers lowards mechanization, We had purchased one more new
harvesting machine to harvest in our factory zone.

Benefits Derived:

IF-

The Through single bud seedling production and supply, the sugarcane plantation
is easier with four to five labour and 100% seed treatment along with bio fertilizers
is achieving which will benefit in improving the cane guality and quantity by way of
uniform tillering and growth of millable canes.

Through single bud seedling production and supply, the sugarcane plantation is
easier with four to five labour and 100% seed treatment along with bio fertilizers
is. achieving which will benefit in improving the cane quality and quantity by way of
uniform tillering and growth of millable canes.
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K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

»  Expenditure on Research and Development (Amount in Lakhs):

Capital Nil
Recurring 2.38
Staff Cost 15.65
Total 18.03

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO :

Earnings |r~m

Outgo \Nit

Place : Chennal
Date : 13/08/2025

/l BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//

VINOD R.SETHI
CHAIRMAN
DIN: 00106598
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ANNEXURE - 2

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

S.No.

Nature of Particulars

Particulars

1

Brief outline on CSR Policy of

the Company

The Company's CSR Policy attempts to
supplement the efforts of the Government in
equitably delivering the benefits of growth and
attempts to sirike a Dbalance between
developmental growth and welfare based
development. The Company's CSR activities
broadly relate to:

i. Promoting health care including preventive
health care and sanitation and making
available safe drinking water,;

i, Promoling educalion and
enhancing vocational skills;

lii. Eradication of poverty and ensuring better
living conditions;

employment

Iv. Ensuring environmental sustainability,
ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

v. Conducting relief operations in natural disaster
hit areas and contribution to Government

Disaster Rellef Fund.

CSR Policy of the Company is placed in the
Website of the Company: www.Kcpsugar.com

Composition of the CSR Committee

S.No| Name of Director Designation Number of Number of
in Meetings of | Meetings of
Committee / CSR CSR Committee
Nature of Committee | attended during
Directorship |held during the the year
year
(i) | Ms.Irmgard Chairperson / 1 1
Velagapudi Managing
Director
(i) | Mr.Vinod R. Sethi | Member / 1 1
Whole Time
Director
(iii) | Ms. Kiran Member / Whole 1 1
Velagapudi Time Director
(iv) | Mr. Malini Lakshmi | Member / 1 1
Narasimhan Independent
Director
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K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

Web Link where Composition

of CSR

Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects of the
Company are disclosed

www.kcpsugar.com

Details of Impact Assessmenl of CSR Projects | Not Applicable
a) | Average Net Profit of the Company for last | Nil
three Financial Years
b) | Two per cent of the Average Net Profit of | Nil
the Company as given in ltem 5a) above
c) | Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or | NIl
Programmes or Activities of the previous
Financial Years
d) | Amount required to be set off for the | Nil
Financial Year, if any
e) | Total CSR obligation for the Financial | Nil
Year (5a+5b-5c)
a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects Ongoing Project Rs. 22,31,362 /-
Other than Ongoing | Nil
Project
b) | Amount spent in Administrative | Nil
Overheads
c) | Amount spent on impact assessment, if | Nil
applicable
d) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year | Rs. 22,31,362 /-
[ (a)+(b)+(c) ]
e) | CSR amount spent or unspent for the | Nil
Financial Year
f) | Excess Amount for set off, if any
Sl. | Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No
.(i} “Two percent of average net profit of the | Nil
company as per section 135(5)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year | Rs. 22.31,362 /-
(iily | Excess amount spent for the financial year | Rs. 22,31,362 /-
[(-(1))
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or | Nil
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programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for setoff in succeeding
financial years [(iii)-{iv)]

Rs. 22,31,362 /-

Detalls of Unspent CSR Amount for the
preceding three Financial Years

Nl

Whether any capital assets have been created
or acquired through Corporale Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial
Year

No

10.

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed
to spend two percent of the Average Net Profil
as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013

Nol Applicable

Place : Chennai
Date : 13/08/2025

Mr. Vinod R. Sethi
Member of CSR Committee
DIN: 00106598



SCHEDULE VI TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR AND CERTAIN EMPLOYEES

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L1542'1TN1995PLC033198

1.

s

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of theCompany for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025:

No. Name of the Director Ratio
1. Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Direclor 8:1
2, Mr.Vinod R.Sethi, Whole Time Director 2:1
[:3. Ms.Kiran Velagapudi, Whole Time Director 6:1

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary:
ﬁ;:_ Name of Director |/ (Amount in Lakhs)

WD Remuneration paid | Remuneration paid

for the Financial| for the Financial
Year 2024 - 2025 Year 2023 - 2024

T: Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi
Managing Director 48.00 48.00

2 M.r.\inod R.Sethi
Whole Time Director 12.53 12.52

3. Ms.Kiran Velagapudi

Whole Time Director 40.71 41,77
4. | MrK.Panneer Selvan
Chief Financial Officer 27 82 25.10

"5‘ Mr. T. Karthik Narayanan
ompany Secreta 12.71 0.66
ICompany ry
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DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR AND CERTAIN EMPLOYEES (CONTD.))

Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year 2024
- 2025:Nil

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
Financial Year 2024 - 2025: Nil

No. of permanent employees on the Rolls ofthe Company: 386

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the Managerial Personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration: No increase in remuneration of the employees as well as the Managerial
Remuneration.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company: It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

No employee of the Company receives, for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, remuneration
of Rupees One Crore and Two Lakhs, in aggregate for that Financial Year or Rupees Eight
Lakhs and Fifty Thousand per month or in excess of remuneration of Managing Director
or Whole Time Director and holds along with his / her spouse and dependent children not
less than 2% of Equity Shares of the Company, in terms of Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

/I BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//

VINOD R.SETHI
Place : Chennai CHAIRMAN
Date . 13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598
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DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

FORM No. AOC - 2 - DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS | ARRANGEMENTS

ENTERED INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO SECTION 188 (1)

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
[Pursuant to Section 134 (3 (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 andRule 8 (2] the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
2. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at arm's length basis:
Name of Related The Eimco - K.C.P. The Eimeo - K.C.P. Limited Mhyf;r;::: Private
< Party and (Nature of Limited (Wholy-Owned Sussidery) (Entity In which Director of
. No, .
Re hi
|ationship) (Wholly-Owned Subsidiary) the Camgany s nlsrestad)
1. | Nature of Contract / _
Arrangement / Leasing of Property, Sale Managemen! Consullancy |
Transaction of Goods, Purchase of Services Leasing of Property
Assals
2. | Duration of Contract |
Arrangement | 12 Months 01/04/2024 10 102025 12 Months
Transaction (Lease Rental)
3. | Salient Terms of the Leasing of Prooarty of _
Contract/ Arrangement theﬂurﬂpany on reitaﬂ Fﬂm:v:mgl Usnsgemel | Leasingof Property of he
I Transaction odle ltancy Services Company on rental basis
4 | D 1b
EMH:' Ve Dyt 09/02/2024 09/02/2024
- (period covered: (period cavered: 01/01/2024
01/01/2024 to 30/11/2024) 20/05/2024 to 30/11/2024)
(period covered, 01/04/2024
1o 31/03/2025)
10/02/2025 10/02/2025
(peniod covergd. (penod covered. 011272024
01/12/2024 to 30/11/2025) le 30/11/2025)
5 | Amount paid as
Advances, if any
NIL NIk Rs.4,25 Lakhs
/f BY ORDER OF THE BOARD//
VINOD R.SETHI
CHAIRMAN
Place . Chennai DIN: 00106598

Date : 13/08/2025
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FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24 A of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 as amended]

To

The Board of Directors,

K.C.P.SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: L15421TN1995PLC033198

Ramakrishna Bulldings, New No.239 (Old No.183)

Anna Salai, Chennai- 600 006

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by K.C.P.SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION
LIMITED (hereinafter called the "Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. Based on verification of
the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications
given to me and the represenltations made by the Management, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the period under review covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
(“the Audit Period”), generally complied with the statulory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the exlent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the records which include books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records made available to me and maintained by the Company for the Audit Period according to
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Acl, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Conlract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(v)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
(not applicable during the period under review),

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act), to the extent applicable:
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Subslantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;



SCHEDULE VIIl TO DIRECTORS' REPORT SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPO RT

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1935PLC033198

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable during the period under review),

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)

Regulations, 2014 (not applicable during the period under review),

(f) The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debl Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (not applicable during the period under review);

(@) The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Registrars lo an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 (nol applicable during the period under review),

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (not applicable during the period under review); and

(i) The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(not applicable during the period under review);

Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

(@) The Sugar Development Fund Act, 1982 and Rules;

(b) The Sugar (Control) Order, 1966;

(c) The Sugarcane (Control) Order, 1966;

(d) The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Rules,

(e) Food Safety and Standards Regulations,

(f) The Essential Commodities Act, 1955;

(g) Boiler Act, 1923;

(h) Electricity Act, 2003 and Rules;

(i) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009;

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1)

(i)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to board meetings, general meetings and dividend.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Corporation with BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. as mentioned above.

| report that:

(i)

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Execulive Directors and Independent Directors.
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(v)

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given fto all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed noles on agenda were sent al least seven days in advance except where the
meeling was held at a short notice to lransact urgent business, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeling and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and confirmed by the Directors, the
decisions of the Board were carried through by majority while there were no dissenting views
recorded as part of the minutes.

The Compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and indirecl tax
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in
this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditors, tax
auditors and other designated professionals.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the period under review, the Company has not undertaken any specific
events/actions that will have a major bearing on the Company's compliance responsibility in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards elc.

Rajashree Santhanam

Company Secretary
FCS 10367
CP 10096
PR 1553/2021
UDIN:F010367G000325825
Date: 13/05/2025
Place: Chennali
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To

ANNEXURE - A

The Board of Directors,

K.C.P. SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: L15421TN1995PLC033198

Ramakrishna Buildings, New No.239 {old No.183)

Anna Salal, Chennal- 600 006

My Secretarial Audit report dated 13.05.2025 is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on lest basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis of my opinion.

| have not verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts
of the Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Rajashree Santhanam
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai FCS 10367
Date : 13/05/2025 CP 10096

PR 1553/2021
UDIN:F010367G000325825



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audiled the slandalone financial stalements of K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation
Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheel as al March 31, 2025, the
standalone stalement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the standalone
stalement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including a2 summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 1o as the "standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under sec 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial stalements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013 (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our repart. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) logether with the
independence requirements that are relevant lo our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audil of the standalone financial slalements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matters,

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated In
our audil report:
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K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

S.no

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Determination of net realizable value of
inventory of sugar as at the year ended
March 31, 2025.

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has
inventory of sugar with the carrying value
Rs. 7,813.16 lakhs, The inventory of sugar
is valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable wvalue. We considered the
inventory valuation of sugar as a key audit
matter given the relative size of the
balance in the financial statements and
significant  judgment involved in the
consideration of factors such as monthly
quola, Nluctuation in selling prices and the
related natifications of the Government in
determination of nel realizable value.

Refer note 43 to the standalone financial
statements.

Qur audit procedures included the following:

1.We wunderstcod and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of controls as eslablished
by the management in determination of net
realizable value of inventory of sugar,

2. Assessing the appropriateness of Company's
accounting policy for valuation of finished goods
and compliance ol the policy with the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

3. We considered vanous factors including the actual
selling price prevalling around and subsequent o
the year-end, minimum selling price, monthly guota
and other notifications of the Governmenl of India,
inillatives taken by the Government with respect 1o
sugar industries.

4, Compared lhe cost of the finished goods with the
estimated net realizable value and checked if the
finished goods were recorded al net realizable
value where the cost was higher than the net
réalizable value. For the purpose of determining
cosl, the Company has considered the prevailing
market conditions.

Based on the above procedures performed, the
management's delermination of the net realizable
value of the invenlory of sugar as at the year end and
comparison with cost for valuation of inventory, is
considered to be reasonable.

The Company's invesiments comprise a
significant portion of its total assels and are
classified and measured In accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS 109

a) Quated Equily Instruments amounting
to Rs.18,727.62 Lakhs measured at
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL)

b) Mutual Funds amounting (6]
Rs.4 766928 Lakhs measured al
FVTPL

c) Unguoted Equity Instruments in
subsidiary companies amounting 1o
Rs.285.00 Lakhs measured at
Amortized Cosl

d) Unguated Equity Invesiments in other
companies amounting to Rs.118.99
Lakhs measured at Amortized Cost

Refer note 5 and 9 to the standalone
financial statements.

Qur audit procedures included the following:

1. Understanding the process, evaluating the design
and lesling the operaling effectiveness of controls
over the classificafion and valuation of
Investments.

2. Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policies with respect to investment
classification in accordance with Ind AS 109.

3. For investments measured at fair value:
Obtaining external confirmations for existence and
verified the fair value of quoted equity using
markel prices as of the balance sheet date and
mutual fund investments using NAV as of the
balance sheel date.

4, Evaluated the basis for measuring untquoted
equity Instrumenis al amorized cosl. Verified
whether such classification complies with the
business model and cash flow characleristics lest
under Ind AS 109.

5 Obtain and review the latest audited financial
statements of Invesiee companies, where
avallable, and identify key financial attributes and
potantial indicators of impairment for Unquoted
Equity Investments.

6. Reviewed the adequacy and compleleness of
disclosures in the financial statemeants relaled to:

* Investments measured al fair value
e |Investments measured at amortized cost
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Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Direclors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not
exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audil of the standalone financial slatements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whather the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate to those charged with governance and lake necessary aclions as required
under applicable laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Direclors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income [ loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from malterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Direclors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related lo going concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or lo cease operalions, or has no realislic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Direclors are responsible for overseging the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is nol a guarantee thal an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when il exisls.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audil in accordance wilh SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audil. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of intermal control.
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« Obtain an understanding of internal financial contrals relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Acl, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operafing effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may casl significant doubt on the Company's
ability lo continue as a going concern, If we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw allention in our audilor's report 1o the relaled disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up lo the date of our sudilor's report. However, [uture
evenls or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial slatements,
including the disclosures, and whether the slandalone financial statemenls represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
agagregate, makes il probable thal the economic decisions of a reasonably knowladgeable user of the
standalone financial slalemenls may be influenced. We consider guantitative maleniality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters thal
were of most significance In the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected lo outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-seclion (11) of section 143 of the Acl, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Acl, we reporl that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kepl by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The standalone balance sheet, standalone statement of profit and loss, (including the other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
slaternent of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and
laken on record by the Board of Directars, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reparting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report In
“Annexure B" to this report.

(g) With respect to the matter fo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the managerial remuneration of INR 60.53 lakhs paid by the Company to its Managing Director
and the Chairman during the year represents the minimum remuneration for the fifth consecutive
financial year of their tenure. Schedule V of the Acl restricts the payment of minimum
remuneration to a period of three years In the absence of adequate profits. The above
remuneration paid is compliant with section 197 and Schedule V of the Act, subject to approval
by the shareholders in ils general meeting. Refer note 54 to the slandalone financial statements.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position. Refer
nole 45b to the financial stalements.

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracls including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no delay In transferring the amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented, o the besl of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

note 68 to the slandalone financial staternents, that no funds (which are matenal either

individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or Kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entily, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner
whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 69 to the standalone financial statements, that no funds (which are material either
individually or In aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded In
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall. whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
lhe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures thatl have been considered reasonable and appropriale in

the circumstances, nothing has come o our nolice that has caused us lo beliave that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Comipany during

the year is in accordance, with Section 123 of the Acl, as applicable.
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(b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is
subject to the approval of the members al the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount
of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Iv. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edil log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded In the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit
trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention, Our examination of the audit trall was in the context of an audit of financial
statements carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent
required by Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014, We have not
carried oul any audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the
aforesaid Rule 11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the
audit trail,

For B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 002808S

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership No. 243632
UDIN: 25243632BMKYGY1550

Place: Chennai
Date : 28/05/2025



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (conTD.)

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS
OF K.C.P SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Based on the audit procedures perfarmed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view of the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and expianations given to us
and the books of accounts and other records examined by us, in the normal course of audit, and to the
best of our knowledge, we report that:

i. inrespect of the Company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) A the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
detalls and situation of property, plant and equipment

B. the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) the Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment at regular
intervals so to cover all the assets which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) according to the information and explanatiocns given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the litle deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the Company, excepl in respect of certain immovable properties (land and
buildings}, which have been transferred to the Company as per a scheme of demerger,
which are in the name of the erstwhile demerged Company. Refer note 3.1 and nole 55 1o
the standalone financial statements.

(d} the Company has not revalued any of its property, planl and equipment and intangible assels
during the year.

(e} no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. {(a) the Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in
our opinion, 15 reascnable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of ils
inventory. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification,

(b) the Company has been sanctioned working capital facilities in excess of INR 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assels. The
reconciliation between the quarterly relurns or statements filed by the Company with the bank
and the Company's books of accounls are given in note 72 to the slandalone financial
slatements.

ii. the Company has not made invesiments or provided guaranlee or security or granted loans or
advances, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties, during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) and its sub clauses (a) to (f) of the
Order is not applicable.

Iv. the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under sections 185 and 186
of the Acl. In respect of loans granted and investments made, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable.

v. In respact of deposits accepted, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, lo
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vii,

viil.

I,

the extent applicable, have been complied with. We are informed by the managament that no
order has been passed by the Company Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve
Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of Cost Records
under seclion 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion [hat prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained

in respect of stalutory dues:

(a) the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no
undisputed amounts payable which were outstanding as on March 31, 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date on which they became payable

(b) details of stalutory dues referrad lo In sub-clause (a) above which have nol been deposited
as on March 31, 2025, on account of disputes are given below:

Disputed Period to .
i Paid under
Amount which the Forum where the
Name of the'statute inINR ' amount related Iﬁéﬁ?:;ﬂ dispute is pending
lakhs to

Andhra Pradesh i

April 2009 to Sales Tax Appellale
s 1861 | oetober 2013 1661 | rribunal, Vizag
Employees provident The Employee’s
funds and 110.95 April 2011 to 38.31 Provident Funds
Miscellaneous ‘ November 2013 ’ Appellate Tribunal
Provisions Acl, 1952 (EPFAT), Bangalore

17" July 2003 |

Hon'ble Andhra
ol

A.P.E.D Act, 1939 21.74 E:E! :13; March 10.87 Pradesh High Court

17" July 2003 .
AP.ED Act, 1939 557.13 | to 23" May 334 28 | Hon'bie'Supreme Court

2013 of India

i W

there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Acl, 1961.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of
the Qrder is not applicable

the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or
government ar any government authority.

as per the information and explanations provided to us, the term loans were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

on an overall examination of the standalone financlal statements of the Company, funds
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meel the
obligations of its subsidiaries.
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(fy  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
lcans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidianes, joint ventures or
associlate companies and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

K. (&) Ihe Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) is nol applicable.

(b) the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reporting during
the year

(b) no reporting under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the date of this report.

(¢) as informed by the Company, there were no whistie-blower complaints received during the
year.

xli. the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiil. In our opinion, the Company is In compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the standalone financial stalements
elc., as required by the applicable Indian Accounling Standards.

Xiv. (&) inouropinionand based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of ils business,

(b) we have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued during the year and till date.

xv. the Company has not entered inlo any non-cash transactions its direclors or persons connected
with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) and its sub-clauses of the Order is not
applicable.

xvii. the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediately preceding
financial year.

xvili. there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabililies, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting ils liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within 2 period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
siate that this is not an assurance as o the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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xx. (a) there are no ongoing projects as defined under sub-seclion (5) of section 135 of the Act
and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) there are no unspent amount as defined under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act and
hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner

Membership No. 243632
UDIN: 25243632BMKYGY1550

Place: Chennai
Date : 28/05/2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF K.C.P. SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2(l) under ‘Reporl on Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements’ section of
our reporl of even dale)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of K.C.P. Sugar and Industries
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s and Board of Directors Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountanls of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assels, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Dur responsibility is to express an opinion on the inlernal financial controls aver financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audil of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Charlered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, lo the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls.

Those Standards and the Guidance Nole require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financlal
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Cur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evalualing the design and operaling effectiveness of internal control based on lhe assessed risk. The
procedures selecled depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

recelpts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of conirols, material misstatements due fo
error or fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financlal reporting to future periods are sublect o the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our apinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership No. 243632
UDIN: 25243632BMKYGY1550

Place: Chennal
Date : 28/05/2025
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(Tp]
g Amount Rs. In Lakhs
N Figures as at the Figures as at the
- Particulars Note No. end of Current end of the Previous
. Reporting Period | Reporting Period
&0
- March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
@
Y Non-current assels
< (a) Property, plant and equipment 3 BE7T4.43 8803.35
p~ (b} Capital work-in-progress 3(a) 25.11 -
(¢} Inangible assets 4 §.95 14.98
- (d) Firancial asset
< (i} investmants 5 19131.60 18676.55
N (i) Other Financial Assets & 84,80 85.97
< (e} Other non current assels 7 493.98 403 .48
P Current assets
I.LI (8] Invenltones 8 12203.59 18852.50
(b} Financial Assets
LU (i) Investmants g 4766.09 417111
T (il) Trade receivables 10 1030.72 1182.31
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 1" 1686.71 2136.13
UJ (iv) Bank Balances other than (iil) above 12 2201.76 1816.82
(v] Other financial assels 13 41.00 32.40
L (¢) Current lax assets (Net) 14 26.11 :
o (dl Other current assets 15 663.29 657,36
Z Assets held for sale 16 - 23950
ﬂ: Total Assets 51040.04 57272.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
-
<1: Equity
ta) Equity Share capital 17 1133.85 1133.85
m (b} Other equity 18 35393.17 3585433
LL LIABILITIES
. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
D (f} Borrowings 18 4382.58 3838.95
.} (i) Other Financlal liabilities 20 77.63 98.09
“-ﬂ: (b) Provisions 21 200,08 199.96
(¢} Defarred lax |labllities 22 1774.14 1128.69
O Current liabilities
Z (a] Financial Liabilities _
(1) Borrowings 23 6599.76 11378.27
<( (i) Trade payables 24
b a) Total cutstanding dues of micre enterprises
U} and small enterprises 2.8
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than mictoenlerprises and small enlerprses 445 47 101737
(i) Other financial liablities 25 831.94 1511.19
(b) Other current liabilities 26 148.59 81027
(c) Provisions 27 50.02 49.99
(d) Current Tax Liabllities 28 - 251.58
Total Equity and Liabilities 51040.04 57272.54
The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial statemenis For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date attached
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO. IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
Charlered Accountants Managing Director
FRN 0028085 DIN : 00091370
B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Partnar
Membership No.: 243632
K.Panneer Selvan T.Karthik Narayanan KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Place ' Chennal Chial Firancial Officer Company Secretary & Executive Director
o Date - 28/05/2025 CMA M No.B9894 Compliance Officer DIN : 00091466
M No.A51274
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Amount Rs, In Lakhs

Figures as atthe | Figures as al the
end of Current | end of the Previous
FaRCUlTE I’#}f Reporting Peried | Reporting Period
WMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Revenue fram operations 29 22735.39 29254 .45
|| Other Income 30 19568.02 02563 .05
Il Tetal Income (1+11) 24693.40 35507 .50
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 3 15080.34 1780073
Purchase of Stack-in-trade 136.60 147 .66
Changes in inventones of finished goods.
wark-In- progress and stock-intrade 32 J3362.93 6238.42
Employes benefits expense 33 2259.81 246556
Finance cosls 34 831.95 1050.53
Deapreciation and Amortisalion 35 514,01 527.24
Other expensas 36 234828 2437 .24
Total expenses (IV) 24643.91 29668.39
V Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and tax (i - iv) 48 49 5839.1
Vi Exceptional tems - Profit on sata of Assat held for sala 480354 A0d 42
VI Profit/(loss) before tax 530.03 6643.53
Vill Tax expense
- Current Tax 37.60 315.00
- Deferred Tax Exp 663.58 72569
-Tax relating to earlier years .78 (23.64)
IX Profit/(loss) for the period (172.24) 5626.48
X Profit/{loss) from discontinuing operations - -
XI Other Comprehensive Income
llems that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss)
Remeasurements of defined banefll plan actural gains (losses) (80.58) 46.20
Income tmx sxpense on above 18.44 (11.63)
(62.15) 34,57
X1l Total Comprehensive Income for the period (234.39) 5,661.05
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive income
for the period)
Xill Earnings per equity share(ln Rs.)
(1) Basic (0.15) 4.96
(2) Diluted (0.15) 4.96

The accamparying noles form an integral part of these financial slalemants
As per our report of even date attached

Forand on bahall of ha Board of Lireclors

For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO. IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
Chartered Accountants Managing Director
FRN 0028088 DIN : 00091370
B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Pariner
Membership No,, 243632

K.Panneer Selvan T.Karthik Narayanan KIRAN VELAGAPUDI

Place : Chennal

Date : 28/05/2025 CMA M No.8894

Chiel Financial Officer  Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer

Executive Director
DIN : 00091466
M No.A51274



STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(@ IND COR

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

For Year Ended For Year Ended
Farticwiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Total Income for the Period (PBT) 530.03 B643.53
Adjustiments:
- Imterest Income (403.16) (507.09)
- Loss/(Profit) an sale of Property, plant and equipment (555.02) (805.10)
- Loss/ {(3ain) on sale of Investments (28.31) (17.38)
- Unclaimed balances credited back (0.12) (0.356)
- Excess provision cradited back 15.25 (0.88)
- Adjustmant for QCI (80.59) 46.20
- Intarest axpense 931.95 1050.53
-Dividend Income [398.93) (364 48)
- Fair Value Adjustment (437.57) (4819.63)
-Assals Wrilten off 33.07 -
- Provision for Advances 36.00 -
- Dapraciabon and amartizatian 314,01 AT 24 |
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 135.11 1752.62
Changes in
- Decreaze/(Increase) In Trade Recelvables 151.50 (377.87)
- Decrease((Increasa) In Inventory 6648.91 21059.94
- Decrease/lIncrease) In Other current MNon Cumrent Financial Assot{s) (F.44) (10.08)
- Decreasel|Increase) In Currenl Investmenls (595 .89 0948.41
- Dearease/(Incraase) In Other non-cutrgnt / Non current asset (133.21) 6232
- (Decrease)Increase In Long lerm Provisions 5.37 5.24
- {Decreasa)/ncrease In Other Financial liabilibes Non Current (20) 46 11,34
- {Decrease)Increase In Trade Payables current [668.96) 115.66
- {Decreasa)increase In other current labilities (1039.22) (978.65)
- {Decrease)/Increase In Other financial liablilies currant (679.25) 401.05
- {Decrease)increase In Short Tarm provisions curran| 0.03 1.09
Income taxes paid (Net) B62.27 321.86
Net Cash generated from [ (used in) operations JB823.76 2609.30 |
Cash fMows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, planl and equipment (342.68) (633.41)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 798.92 100845
Investment made in current and Non Current Investments (251.70) {962 .66)
Cividend Income 409.83 364 46
Proceeds from sale of Investments 262.53 202.93
Changes Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalenls (284 84 (1294.21)
Interest recelvad 403.15 507.09
Net cash generated from/{used In) Investing activities 985.32 (707.35)
Proceads fram / (repayment of) long term and shart term Borrowings (4234.88) (3692.44)
Dividend Paid (226.77) (226.77)
Interest paid (831.95) (1050.53]
Net cash used in financing activities (5393.60) [4969.74)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (449.42) (1315.17)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2136.13 3451.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1686.71 2136.13 |
Componenis of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)
Cash on hand 5.27 5.10
Balances with banks 16681.44 2131.03
Total cash and cash equivalents 1686.71 2136.13
The accompanying noles form an Integral parl of these financial stalemants For and an bohalf of the Board of Direclors
?E per our report of even date attached IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
or B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO. :
Chartered Accountants Managing Director
DIN : 00091370
FRN DD2808S
B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner
Membership No.: 243632
K.Panneer Selvan T.Karthik Narayanan KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Place : Chennai Chiel Financial Officer  Company Secretary & Executive Direclor
Diate : 28/06/2025 CMA M MNo.9894 Compliance Officer DIN : 00091466

M No.A51274




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

A) Equity Share Capital

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

Balance at the beginning

Changes in equity share

Balance at the end of the

Particulars of the reporting period capital during the year of the reporting period
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 1,133.85 1,133.85
For the year ended 31st March, 2025 1.133.85 1,133.85
B) Other Equity
Other Components
Reserves and Surplus of Equity
Particulars Generzal Investment allowance Capital Retained Remeasurement of Net Defined Total
Reserve resorve utilised redemption reserve Earnings benefil Liability/ Assst
Balance as at April 01, 2023 11,209.42 45.05 155.45 18,956.74 53.39 | 30,420.05
Dividend paid (226.77) (226.77)
Profit / (Loss) for the period 5,626.48 5,626.48
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 34,57 34.57
Balance as at March 31, 2024 11,209.42 45.05 155.45 24,356.44 87.96 | 35,854.33
Dividend pald (226.77) (226.77)
Profit / (Loss) for the period (172.24) (172.24)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (62.15) (62.15)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 11,209.42 45.05 155.45 23,957 .44 25.81 | 35,393.17
The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of theas Nnanclal atatements For and on behall of the Board of Direciors
As per our report of evan date attached
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO. IRMGARD VELAGAFUDI
Chartered Accountants Managing Direclor
FRNM D02B08S DIN : 00091370
B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner
Mambership No.. 243632
K.Panneer Selvan T.Karthik Narayanan KIRAN VELAGAPUDI

Place : Chennal
Date : 28/05/2025

Chief Financial Officer

CMA M No.9884

Company Sacretary &
Compllance Officer
M No.A51274

Executive Diractor
DIN : 00091466
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Corporate Information

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Ltd is a listed entity, one among the leading
sugar manufacturing companies In India .The Company has a Sugar factory at
Vuyyuru, Krishna District, Andhra Pradesh with a sugarcane crushing capacity of
7500 tons per day. Its allied business consists of manufacturing and marketing of
Rectified Spirit, Ethanol, Incidental Cogeneration of Power, Organic Manurs,
Mycorrhiza Vam, Calcium Lactate and Co2. Processing of Urad Dal, Surgical Sprit,
Enginearing unit at Thuvakudy, Tamil Nadu. It has ils registered office at 239/183,
Ramakrishna Buildings, Anna Salal, Chennai, Tamil Nadu 800006, India.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised o
issue on 28/05/2025

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, notified under Sec 133 of The Companies
Act, 2013. The Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where
a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
standard requires a change in the accounting policies hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments and net defined benefit liability thal are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below,

(c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and thereported amounls of assets and
liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
slatements and lhe reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the years
presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeoing basis.
Revisions to accounting eslimales are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and
critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The

Company has estimated useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of

assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset,
past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The
Company reviews the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets al the Balance Sheel date. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation expense in fulure periods.
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CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangibie assets are
tested for impairment when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying
value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use
and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant
astimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples,
growth rates and net margins used to calculate projecled future cash flows, risk-
adjusled discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realized. The
Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws
and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s
expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets.
Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the
valualion of deferred tax assels and there the tax charge in the statement of profit
or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgments on the interpretation of tax
legislation, developments in case law and the potential oulcomes of tax audits
and appeals which may be subjecl lo significarnt unceriainly. Therefore the actual
results may vary from expectations resulling in adjustments to provisions, the
valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax setflements and therefore the tax
chargein the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value measurement financial instruments: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. This
involves significant judgments to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date. Fair value of
financial instruments thal are traded in active markel is determined from markel prices as
reduced by estimated cost of trading.

Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings, the ultimate
outcome of each being always subject lo many ungcertainties inherent in litigation. A
provision for litigation is made when itis considered probable that a payment will be made
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, Significant judgment is made
when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavorable outcome and the
ability to make a reasonable eslimate of the amount of potential loss. Liligation provisions
are reviewed at each accounting penod and revisions made for the changes in facts and
circumstances.

Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assurnptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(d) Functional currency :

These financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR) which is also
the Company's functional currencies.
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(¢)

(f)

Revenue recognition :

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue comprise of sale of sugar, and other sugarauxiliary products. Revenue
s recognised when following conditions are satisfied:

tha company transfers to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods

the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliable

it is probable thal the economic benefils associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns
and discounts.

Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interes! rate
method,

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized on cash basis.

Employee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

Provident Fund: The eligible employees of the Company are entitied to receive
benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both
employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’
salary), which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the year. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposiled
with Government administered provident fund. The Company has no further
obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Gratuity Fund Gratuity is a defined benefit plan, provided in respect of
pastservices based on the actuarnal valuation carried out by LIC of India and
corresponding contribution to the fund is expensed in the year of such
contribution. The scheme is funded by the company for employees and the liability
is recognized on the basis of contribution payable to the insurer i.e the Life
Insurance Corporation of India. However, the disclosure of information as
required under Ind As -19 have been made In accordance with the actuarial
valuation. The unfunded liability is recognized on the basis of report submitted by
a private actuarial valuer

Compensated Absences
Entittement lo annual leave is recognised based on actuarial valuation. The

Company determines the liability for such accumulated |leave at each Balance
Sheeldale and the same s charged o revenue accordingly
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V.

(9)

Superannuation Fund

Contribution to defined benefit scheme with LIC towards retirement benefit in the
form of superannuation Is recognised as expenses In the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which employee renders the related service.

Other Employee Benefits

Other benefits, comprising of discretionary Long Service Awards are determined on
an undiscounted basis and recognised based on the entitliement thereof.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounis. The Company makes specified contributions
towards superannuation scheme. Obligations far contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expenses in profit or loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are slated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

All property, planl and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the
acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties and taxes (other than
those refundable), expenses directly related to the location of assets and making
them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets, the
attributable borrowing costs (refer note no. 2(p) below). Initial estimate shall also
include costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which il is
located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An assets’' carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater thal its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit and loss so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method excepl for asset
situated at Registered Office, which are depreciated by written down value
method.The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The eslimated useful lives of the depreciable
assefs is in accordance with rules prescribed under part * C “of Schedule |l to the
Companies Act, 2013,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the confinued use of the asset
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assel and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Capital work in progress represents projecls under which the property, plant and
equipment's are not yel ready for their intended use and are carried al cost
determined as aforesaid.
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(i)

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software and designs, and cost incurred for
development of the Company's website and certain contract acquisition cosis. Intangible
assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including any directly attributable costs of
preparing the asset for its intended use. Internally developed intangibles are capitalised If,
and only if, all the following criteria can be demonstrated:

1) the technical feasibility and Company's intention and ability of completing the
project,

i) the probability that the project will generate future economic benefits;

iii) the availability of adequate technical financial and other resources to complete
the project; and

iv) the ability to measure the development expenditure reliably.

Expenditure on projects which are not yet ready for intended use are carried as intangible
assets under development.

Intanaible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful economic life and
assessed for Impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assel may be
impaired, The amortisation periods are reviewed and impairment evaluations are carried out
al least once a year. The estimaled useful life used for amortising intangible assels are as
under:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Software and Licences 3 years

An intangible assel is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefils are
expected from use of disposal. Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible
assel, measured as lhe difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset s
derecognized.

Impairment of assets:

Assels that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are lesled
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's camying

amount exceeds ils recoverable amount,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects currenl market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediatsly in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
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)

(k)

(1)

been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) In prior years, A reversal of an Impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement
of Profitand Loss.

Foreign Currency Translation:
Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign
currency amounlt the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency
al the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at histornical cost and
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate al the date of the
transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried al fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rales that existed when
the values were the fair value measured.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting
period, Exchange differences on restatement of other monelary items are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets taken on lease;

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease ransfer substantially
all the risk and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All the other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis, unless another basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits received from the use of the assets taken on lease or the payments of lease rentals
are in line with the expected general inflation compensating the lessor for expected
inflationary cost. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Assels held under finance lease are capitalised at the inceplion of the lease, with
corresponding liability being recognised for the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower. the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease paymenls are apportioned between
the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the statement of Profit or Loss so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Assets held
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Inventories:
« Finished goods are valued as follows :

Allfinished goods are valued al lower of weighted average cost or net realizable
value.

Molasses, a byproductis valued at estimated net realizable value.
«  Crops under cullivation are valued at cost.

« Work In progress is valued at lower of welghted average cost or net realisable value of the
finished goods duly adjusted according to the percentage of progress.
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« Raw materials, stores, spares, materials in transit are valued at welghted average cost.
However, when the net realizable value of the finished goods they are used in is less than
the costofthe finished goods and If the replacement cost of such materials etc. is less than
their holding costin such an event, they are valued atreplacement cost.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised in the period to which they relate when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and that the Company will comply with
the attached conditions

Government grants are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systemalic basis
over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the granls are intended to compensate.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred ax
asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respeclively.

(i) Current Tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses
relate. Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income
after considering lax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.

(i1) Deferred Tax :

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax
assels and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial
statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction thal is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the exient that itis probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences except
in respect of laxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conto.)

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

(P)

(q)

(r

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the assel realized, based on tax rales (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to seltle its current tax assetls and
llabllities on a net basis

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or construclive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted using a pre-tax raie
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation and the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from
pasl events, due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not
wholly within the control of the Company, or where any present obligation cannot be
measured in terms of fulure outflow of resources, or where a rellable estimate of the
obligation cannotbe made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those
having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized in these financial statements, but are disclosed in Note No .45.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.
Borrowing Costs:

General and specific berrowing costs directly altributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets that necessarily lakes a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added lo the cosl of those assets, until such time as the assels are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
gapilalization. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to a qualifying asset are
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using the effective interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalent (for the purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year are classified by operating,
investing and financing activities.
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(s)

(t)

(u)

Earnings Per Share:

Basic eamnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the
post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year including potential equity shares on compulsory
convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss)
after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend.
interest and other charges to expense or income (nel of any atiributable taxes) relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting:

The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the
Managing Direclor.

The Managing Director, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the commitiee that makes
strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segmenl ravenue, segment expenses, segment assets and
segment liabllities have been identified o segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assels and liabilities
which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable
basis have been included under “unallocated revenue ! expenses / assets/liabilities”.

All operating segments, operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Board of
Directors o make decisions about resources to be allocaled {o the segmenls and assess
their performance.

Financial Instruments:
Financial Assets:

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of
its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characleristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and measurement:

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are
recogrised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date thal the Company commits to
purchase or sell the assel.
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Debt instruments at amortised cost
A'debtinstrument is measured al the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
aresolely payments of principal and interest (SFPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium and fees or cosls that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category generally applies to loans and advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
are classified as FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoclates are
carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Derecognition

Alfinancial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:

« Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its righls to receive cash flows from the assel or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay lo a third party undera ‘pass-lhrough arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has lransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred |ts rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred assel to the extenl of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaraniee over the lransferred asset is
measured at the lower of the ariginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

Inactordance with Ind-AS 108, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
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risk exposure:

a) Financial assetsthat are debtinstruments, and are measurad atamortised cost
e.q., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b} Tradereceivables.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
frade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company fo track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
Balance Sheet date, right from its Initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subseguently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including
derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fairvalue

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, al initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaclion costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

l.oans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement
of Profitand Loss when the liabllities are derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheetl if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultanaously.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized atthe proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3 - Property Plant and Equipments

Amournt Bs, In Lakhs

Computers &

Description Land Buildings ;:3;3;2:1: FUII':T‘iI;t:::';;:Hﬂ Vehicles Eqﬂif:::':neent Total
As at March 31, 2023 (At Cost) 2402.73 323463 6874 83 36.54 177.16 132.55 12858.45
Additions during the year - 110.83 383,38 - - 44.29 538.50
Deletions during the year - (6.91) - (15.64) (1.58) (24.13)
As at March 31, 2024 (At Cost) 2402.73 334547 7251.30 36.54 161.53 175.26 13372.82
Additions during the year - .90 261.35 - 48.15 7.16 317.57
Deletions during the year 10.09) (1.18) (488.22) (8.19) (65.04) (19.71) (582.43)
As at March 31, 2025 (At Cost) 2402.65 3345.19 7024.43 28.35 144.64 162.71 13107.96 |
Depreciation
Asat 01.04.2023 - 786.50 2,986.40 20.26 0.18 99.68 3963.03
Charge for the year - 109.26 381.54 2.31 16.26 13.63 522.98
Delastions during the year - - (0.18) - (14.86) (1.57) (16.54)
As at March 31, 2024 - B95.76 3367.75 22.57 71.59 111.80 4469.48
Charge for the year - 102.81 362.40 222 17.76 16.81 509.00
Deletions during the year - (1.712) (454.34) (7.23) (62.73) (19.51) (544.94)
As at March 31, 2025 - 1004.45 3275.81 17.56 26.61 109.10 4433.53
Net Book Value
As at March 31, 2025 2402.65 2340.74 3748.62 10.79 118.03 53.60 B674.43
As at March 31, 2024 240273 2449.71 3883.54 13.97 89.94 63.45 8903.35

3.1. The fitle deeds of immovable properiies are held in the name of the Company, except In respect of certain immovable properties (land and huildings),

which have been transferred to the Company as per a scheme of demarger, which are in the name of the erstwhile demerged Company.
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3 (a) -Capital work in progress
As at 31.03.2025

Amount Es. In Lakhs

Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1-2Years| 2-3Years | More than Total
1 year 3 Years
Projects in Progress 25.11 - 25.11
As at 31.03.2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Lessthan | 1-2Years | 2-3Years | More than Total
1 year 3 Years
Projects in Progress

4 - Other Intangible Asset

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

Valuation of Cost

As at 31" March 2023 (At Cost)
Additions during the year
Deletions during the year
As at 31" March 2024 (At Cost)
Additions during the year
Deletions during the year
As at 31" March 2025 (At Cost)

Amortization and Impairment
As at 31.03.2023

Amortization for the year

As at 31" March 2024
Amortization for the year

As at 31" March 2025

Net Book Value
As at 31" March 2025
As at 31" March 2024

183.56 183.56
1.00 1.00
184.56 184.56
184.56 184.56
165.32 165.32
4.26 4.26
169.58 169.58
5.02 5.02
174.60 174.60
9.96 9.96
14.98 14.98
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5 - Investments

Amount Hs. In Lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares Value MNo. of Shares Value

a) List of Quoted Shares (Fair value through Profit and Loss account)
Kobo Biotech Ltd. 100 - 100 -
Baja) Hindustan Sugar Ltd. 1000 0.19 1000 0.29
Balrampur Chini Mills Ltd. 1000 5.48 1000 3.62
Bannari Amman Sugars Lid. 50 1.82 50 1.15
Blue Star Ltd. 95768 2046.28 - -
Coromandel International Lid, 330 6.54 330 3.55
EID Parry (1) Ltd. 1000 7.86 1000 2.46
Indian Sucrose Lid. 100 0.09 100 0.08
Indraprastha Gas Ltd. 511000 1037.94 181988 1096.39
IRB Invit Fund 2771150 1385.58 2051550 1805.39
IRB Ifrastructure Devlopers Ltd. . 0.00 60000 35.13
lgrasi Motors India Ltd. 37300 184.54 64800 272.03
Jubilant Agri and consumer Products Ltd. 80 1.00 &80 0.94
Jubiliant Pharmova Ltd. (Formerly know as Jubilant Life Science Lid.) 1600 14.33 1600 9.12
Jublliant Ingrevia Ltd. 1600 10.40 1600 7.24
Kothar Sugars And Chemicals Lid. 5 - 5 -
Mava Ltd. 160 0.83 a0 0.39
Precision Wires India Ltd. 2700360 3568.26 2687360 3461.86
Sakthi Sugars Ltd. 50 0.01 50 0.01
Savita Oil Technologies Lid. 485420 1789.74 481920 2227.11
Simbhaoli Sugars Lid. 117 0.01 117 0.03
The Andhra Sugars Ltd 500 0.23 200 0.46
Dhampur Sugar Mills Ltd. 100 0.12 100 0.21
Dhampur Bio Organics Ltd 100 0.07 100 0.12
Thiru Arooran Sugars Ltd. 100 0.01 100 0.01
Yuken India Lid. 244064 1950.80 222364 1989.00
Rites Lid, 70080 156.54 35040 232.60
Supreme Engineering Ltd. - - 880000 8.80

Total 12168.77 11160.98
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9 - Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments

Amount Ks. In Lakhs

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
No. of Shares Value No. of Shares Value
b) Investments in Quoted Equity Instrumenis (Fair valued through Profit
and Loss a/c). Pledged with Ketak Mahindra Bank Ltd, to avall Working Capital
Term Loan and short term loan of Rs.20 crores (P.Y. 40 Crores). ( Refer Note
No.19
Blue Star Ltd. 95768 2045.72 191536 2439.59
Indraprastha Gas Lid. 2221900 4513.12 1110950 4785.97
Total 6558.84 7225.58
¢) List of UnQuoted Shares (At Cost)
Nabsamruddhi Finance Limited 50000 5.00 50000 5.00
Cesare Bonetl Intermational Pnvate Limited 160000 16.00
L NTL India P Ltd 23900 _97.99
Total 118.99 5.00
d) Investment in Subsidiaries (At Cost)
The Eimeo KCP Lid 600000 60.00 600000 60,00
KCP Sugar Agricultural Research Farms Ltd 2250000 225.00 2250000 225,00
Total 285.00 285.00
Grand Total 19131.61 18676.54
5.1 Aggregate amount of quoted investments - Market Value 18727.62 18386.55
5.2 Aggregale amount of unquoted investments 403.99 290.00

861EE0D1dS66LNLIZFSLT] - NID
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6 - Other Financial Assets (Non Current) Amount Bs. In Lakhs

As at March |As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Particulars

Security Deposits (unsecured considered good) 84.80 85.97

7 - Other Non Current Assets

Capital advances 90.51 -
Deposit made as per Court Order 403.48 | 403.48
Total 493.98 | 403.48
8 - Inventories
Raw materials 391.06( 3758.00
Work In progress 693.49 549.50
Finished goods 10704.48 | 1422240
stores and spares 403.55 322.59
Crops under cultivation 11.01 -
Total 12203.59 | 18852.50

9 - Investments

Investments in Mutual Funds (Fair valued through Profit and Loss alc) 4766.99| 4171.11

10 - Trade Receivables

Unsecured Considered good 1030.72 1182.31
Unsecured Considered Doubtful 146.89 146.89
1177.61 1328.20

Less:

Allowances for Doubtful debts (146.89) | (146.89)
Total 1030.72 1182.31

Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31.03.2025

Outstanding for following penods from due date payment

Particulars Lessthanlg months t 1-2 | 2.3 |More than
6 months| 1 year | years years | Jyears
(iy Undisputed trade recevables - considered good|  666.66 944| 12880 0.03 0.01] 804,94
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have
sighilicant increase In credit risk - - - - -
(iil) Undisputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Dispuled Trade Receivable - considered good - - - -| 22578 22578

Total

(v) Dispuled trade recaivable which have
significant increase In credit risk - - - -] 146.85| 146.82

(v} Dispuled Trade Receivables - credil Impaired - - . ; K 2
Total 666.66 944| 12880 0.03| 372.68| 1177.61
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Trade Recelvable ageing schedule as at 31,03.2024

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

Outstanding for following perieds from due date payment
Less than| 6 months| 1-2 | 2-3 |More than
rafuciars 6 months| -1year | Years | years | Jyears Yol
(i} Undisputed trade recevables - considered good| 638.92 0.31 236 7234 24260 956.53
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivable
Which have significant increase in credif risk - - - - -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trads Receivable - considered good - - - -| 22578| 22578
(v) Bisputed trade recaivable which have
significant increase in credit nisk . - - -| 146.89] 140.89
vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
Total 638.92 0.31 236| T234| 61527 1328.20
11 - Cash and cash equivalents
Particul As at March As at March
ey 3, 2025 31, 2024
I} Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 85.40 80.69
- Fixed Deposits with Banks 1596.04 2050.34
ii} Cash on hand 5.27 5.10
Total 1686.71 213613
12 - Bank Balances other than Note 11 above
Flxed Deposits with Banks 1667.15 1334 46
Bank Balances held as Margin Maney Deposits 491.45 503.00
Unpaid Dividend and Interest account 43.15 79.45
Total 2201.76 1916.92
13 - Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good;
- Advance lo Employees and athers 8.09 2.66
- Interest accrude on Fixed Deposlt with banks 32 29.74
Total 41.00 32.40
14 - Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax / TDS | TCS paid 26.11
15 - Other Current Assets
Advances lo Supplier and service providers 528.28 531.22
Advances to Supplier (Considered Doubtful) 40.27 4.27
568.55 53548
Less: Provision for Advance to supplier (Considered Doubtiul) 40.27 427
528.28 531.22
Prepaid expenses 110.19 116.36
Balance with statutory authorities, GST Inpul tax elc) 24.81 9.78
Total 663.29 657.36
16 - Assets held for sale
Plant and Machinery - 239.50
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17. Equity Share Capital

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars ﬁ:t 2"’3‘;’5‘;“ ,,q-; “?.t zhg;f:h
Authorised Share Capital
25,00.00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 2500.00 2500.00
Total 2500.00 2500.00
Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up
11,33,85,050 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1133.85 1133.85
Total 1133.85 1133.85

17.1 Movement in respect of Equity Shares is given below :

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No's. Amount in Lakhs No's. Amount in Lakhs
Al the beginning of the period 113385050 1133.85 | 113385050 1133.85
(+) Issued during the period - - | ]
(-} Redeemed during the period . : i E
Outstanding at the end of the period | 113385050 1133.85 | 113385050 1133.85

17.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re.1/- per share. The holders of
the equity shares are enlitled to receive dividends as declared from time to lime, and are entilled to voting

rights proportionate to their share holding at the meetings of shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the
remaining assets of the company , after distribution of all preferentlal amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

17.3 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars
No's. % of holding No's. % of holding
Durgamba Investment Private Limiled 43742656 38.58% | 43742656 38.58%
Total 43742656 38.58% | 43742656 38.58%
17.4 Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31.03.2025
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 | 01 Lhanges
Particulars during
No's. % of holding No's. % of holding the year
Durgamba Investment Pvt.Ltd | 43742656 38.58% | 43742656 38.58% I
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi 1805280 1.59% 1805280 1.59% il
Ms.Kiran Velagapudi 268820 0.26% 268820 0.26% il
Mr.Vinod R Sethi 183610 0.16% 183610 0.16% il
Total 46020366 40.59% | 46020366 40.59% Nil
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Amount Rs. In Lakhs

18 Other Equity _As at March 31, 2025
Other '
Reserves & Surplus Components of
_ _ Equity |
Particulars Investment Capital Profit | Remeasurement | Total
General | allowance Capital Retained | of Net Defined
Reserve reserve redemption  Earnings | benefit Liability/
- utilised reserve Assel
Balance as at '
April 01, 2024 11208.42 45.05 | 155.45 | 24356.44 87.97 | 35854.33
Dividend Paid . .| (226.7T7) - | (226.77)
| |
Profit / (Loss)
for the period - - - (172.24) - (172.24)
Other '
Comprehensive
Income for the i i : 162.18)) (62.15)
Year
Balance as at '
March 31, 11209.42 45.05 155.45  23957.44 £5.81 | 35393.7
2025 | |
As at March 31, 2024
Other
Reserves & Surplus Components of
" Equity
Particulars Investment Capital Profit Remeasurement Total
General | allowance | Capital Retained | of Net Defined
HEEGW‘H‘ reserve mdemp“un Eﬂminﬂﬁ- hﬂn'ﬂﬂt Llﬂl:l"".]ﬂ'
utilised resarve Assel
Balance asat | ' : '
April 01, 2023 | 11209.42 45.05 15545 | 18256.74 53.39 | 30420.05
Dividand Paid (226.77) (226.77)
Profit [ (Loss) i ) i
for the period 2626.48 2626.48
Other
Comprehansijve . i )
income:for-the 0.00 34.57 34.57
Year
Balance as at
March 31, 11209.42 45.05 155.45 | 24356.44 87.97 | 35854.33
2024 |
19 Borrowings (Non-Current)
= As at March | As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Secured Borrowings from Banks
Term Loan
a) Working capital Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd . 385.25
Less : Current Maturity classified in Note No, 23 . (385.25)
Net .

Theabone [an s seounsd by saonnd panpassa chargean he ourmsr assets of the companyand fuither secured by a pleaps ovar salaciad quotad Equity
shares held by i Company withs olber lisled snlites (Classified i Nole 9 ) This loan = ovailed i August 2018 and repayable i 16 quartisry mstalmnls
aftes a monilodurm pahdd of one vaar. The enlire loan has beon repaid during he voar

Unsecured Borrowings

(b) Fixed Deposits from Public

Total Non Current Borrowings

Less : Current Maturity classified in Note No.23
Less : Unclalmed deposils classified in Note No.25

6584.25 628242

2072.05 2269.02

129.62 174.45

Net 4382.58 3838.95
(a) + (b) 4382.58 3838.95
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20 - Other Financial liabilities ( Non Current)

Amount Ks. In Lakhs

Particulars 2025 | 32024
Interes! accrued bul not due on fixed deposits from public 45.17 73.04
Securily Deposit 32.36 25,05
Total 77.63 98.09
21 - Provisions (Non Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits 200.08 199 96
22 - Deferred Tax Liability
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assels and liabilities are attributable to the following:
As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant & Equipment 1102 48 1217 .04
Deferred Tax Liability on Fair value Gain Investments 1299.04 5387
Total 2401.52 1801.81
Deferred tax Assets
Unabsorbed loss under Income tax Act 536.55 573.24
On account of timing differences in recognition of expenditure 90.83 99.88
between books of accounts and Taxation
Total 627.38 673.11
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (1774.14) (1128.68)
Current Liabilities
23 -Borrowings
Secured Demand Loans from Banks * (Refer note below) 3927.71 7724.00
Unsecured loan from Bank 600.00 1000,00
Current Malurities of long term debl ( Refer note Ne.19{(a) and 12 (b) 2072.05 2654.27
Total 6599.76 11378.27

*Secured by hypathecation of on the entine current assets and further secured by a first jsecond charge created on movable fixec assets of Sugar

unlt 3t Vawyuru, Piadege of investment in aquily shares af olhar entifies with Kotak Mahindra Bank Lid (Rafr Note Mo 5 (b))

24 - Trade Payables

- Dues to Micro and Small Enterprices 2,81 :
- Others 445.48 1017.37
Total 448.29 1017.37

The Company has nol raceived any intimation fram supphers regarding their stalus under the Micro, Small and Madium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Trade Payable aging schedule as at March 31, 2025

Less than 1 1-2 2103 More than Total
Year Vears years 3 years
(i) MSME: 2 81 2 . 2.81
(i) Others 429.09 . 16,38 | 44548
(iiif} Disputed dues - MSME z 5 x .
(iv) Disputed dues - Others . . =
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Trade Payable aging schedule as at March 31, 2024 Amount Rs. In Lakhs

' Less thar 1 1-2 2103 More than | ...
Year vears years 3 years
(i} MSME : ; " . " :
(i) Others 991.90 8.06 2.07 1734 | 1017.37
(i) Dispuled dues - MSME . . . - .
~(lv) Disputed dues - Others : - | - | . B
25 - Other Financial Liabilities
As at March
FRiGelie " t 2095 | 34,2024
Unclaimed Dividends 25.91 56 11
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits from public 107.97 §7.88
Unclaimed matured deposits and interest accrued thereon 146.86 194.79
Outstanding Liabilities for Expenses 460.63 B46.91
Eamest Money and Other Deposits 90.57 £42 40
Total 831,94 1511.19
26 - Other Current Liahilities
Statutory Liabilities 125.72 379.16
Advance from customers 22.87 4311
Total 148.59 810.27
27 - Provision
Provision for Employee benefils 50.02 4989
28 - Current Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities . 251.58
29 - Revenue From Operations
Figures for the Figures for the
Particulais Current Reporting | Previous Reporting
Perlod Perlod
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Products - Domestic 22735.39 20254 45
Total 22735.39 29254 45
30 - Other Income
Interesl Received 403.16 507.09
Dividend Income 39993 364 .46
Gain relating to fair value of equity Investments 437.57 4819.63
Profit on sale of Investments (Net) 28.31 17.39
Income from Mutual Fund 277.96 284 1B
Managemanl Services 160.00 120.00
Rent Received 60.15 50.00
Miscellaneous Receipls 111.09 71.39
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (Net) 13.38 0.68
Prafit on sale of Agricultural land { Acauisition by Government) 61.09 -
Unclaimed Balance credited back 0.12 0.35
Claims Received . 16.75
Pravision no langer required withdrawn 5.25 (.88
Total 1058.02 6253.06




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conto.)

Amount Rs. In Lalkhs

Particulars As at March | As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
31 - Cost of Materials Consumed
Consumption of raw materials 14732.82 17196.02
Consumption of slores and spares 357.51 804.71
Total 15090.34 17800.73
Consumption of Sugarcane included in the above 9773.63 15450.46

32 - Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods , Work-in-Progress and stock in trade

Figures for the Figures for the
Barticulars Current Reporting | Previous Reporling
Period Period
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance
Work in Progress 549.50 59.54
Finished goods 14222.40 19951.12
Crops under cultivation 0.67
Total 14771.91 20011.33
Closing Balance
Work in Prograss (693.49) (549.50)
Finished goods (10704.48) (14222.40)
Crops under cultivation (11.01)
Total (11408.98) (14771.91)
Net 3362.93 523942
33 - Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 1813.79 1998.01
Contribution lo provident and other funds 194.93 207 .86
Remuneration to wholetime directors 101.24 102.28
Staff welfare expenses 149.85 157.41
Total 2259.81 2485 56
34 - Finance Cosl
Interesl Expenses 871.98 1007.01
Other Borrowing cost 59.97 43.52
- Total 931.95 1050.53
35 - Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation / Amortisation for the year
- Tangible Assets 508.99 522.98
- Intangible Assels 5.02 4.26
Total 514.01 527.24
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36 - Other expenses Armount Rs. In Lakhs

Figures for the Figures for the
Current Reporting | Previous Reporting
Period Period
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Power and Fuel 362.30 348.81
Labouyr Charges 211.48 176.04
Rental charges 7.35 2.00
Repairs and maintanence

-Buildings 18.75 50.58

- Machinery 672.00 807.75

- Others 64.68 58.29
Insurance 46.41 39.85
Payment made lo auditors (Refer note below) 8.51 B.11
Legal and Professional Charges 58.20 54.11
selling expenseas 201.70 184.72
Provoision for Doubtiul debt 36.00
Assets Wrilten off 33.07 .
Director's Sitting Fees 10.20 8.80
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (CSR) 22.31 21.38
Securty Charges 93.39 97.51
Miscallaneous expenses 501.95 577.20

Total 2348.28 2437.24

Payment made to statutory auditors :
i. As Audit fees 5.00 5.00
i, For other services 2.86 2.88
iii. For reimbursement of expenses 0.65 0.24
Total 8.51 B.11

37. Value of Imports made by the Company during the financial year calculated on C.LF. basis:

2024-2025 2023-2024
Particulars Rs. Rs.
()  Raw Materials il il
(i) Components and Spare parts il Nil
(iil}y Capital Goods NIl NIl

and components during the financial year:

38. Comparison between consumption of Imported and Indigenous raw materials, spare paris

Particulars 2024-2025 % 2023-2024 %
Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs

a) | Raw Matenals:

I} Imported NIL NIL

i) Indigenous 14732.82 100 17196.02 100

Total 14732.82 100 17196.02 100
b) | Spare parts and Compenents: (debited to respeclive heads)

) Imported . [ = .

i} Indigenous 469.38 100 449.62 100

Total 469.38 100 449.62 100
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39. Under Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 the company Is required to spend Rs. Nil/-
(P.Y.Rs.Nil) during the year under review lowards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
aclivities as framed by the Company in ils Corporate Social Responsibility program. However,
the Company has spent Rs. 22.31 lakhs/-, (P.Y.Rs. 21.38/- lakhs)

40 . Sale of Products and Services

Amaunt Rs. In Lakhs

2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
ProdUcte ] Services Wit Quantity Value f.'ls.l.emtil‘,*J Value
Sugar Qlls 332986 12881.33 501607 18740.66
Molasses MTs 7834.56 1296.05 15866 2262.73
Bagasse MTs 6288.09 153.96 17646 421.95
Industrial / Anhydrous Alcohol | Bls 1538120 1020.18 6423360 3957.28
Bio Fertiliser Qtis 80236 543.43 116750 647.63
Urad Dal Qtls 45723 4584.75 12767 1150.94
Electrical Energy Kwh 4499000 252.78 | 4826300 262.16
Calcium Lactats Kgs 328125 455.19 311416 428.11
Engineering - 1393.71 - 1219.33
Others - 153.99 - 163.67 |
Total -|  22735.39 - 29254.45
Note: Sale of Products does not include the following inter unit transfers:
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Products / Services Units -
Quantity Value Quantity Value
Sugar Qtls 2222 68.88 2574 87.66
Molasses MTs. 4424 708.53 24676 3393.98
Bagasse MTs. 72378 1859.27 110046 2139.62
Industrial / Anhydrous Alcohol | Bls 200 0.20 16200 9.42
Electrical energy KWH 7529939 423.94 | 11604677 631.29
Steam MTs. 118202 1589.78 188459 16843.14
Filter Cake MTs. 9187 13.79 13665 20.66
Sugarcane - Agricultural Produce | MTs. 299 12.89 704 25.91
Bio Gas M3 126712 5.33 1180982 37.73
Total 4682.61 §189.42 |
41. Raw Materials Consumed
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024 |
il L Quantity Value Quantity Value
Sugar — Sugarcane MTs 264477 9836.90 436469 15481.31
Molasses MTs 4424 708.53 24676 3393.98
Black Gram Qo 4782956 4417.86 13566 1116.96
Others g 573.83 . 741,40
Total E 15537.11 E 20733.65
Less: Inter Divisional Transfers - 804.29 - 3537.63
Net Consumption - 14732.82 - 17196.02 |
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E 42 .Opening Stock of Finished Goods Amount Rs. In Lakhs

E As at April 01, 2024 As at April 01, 2023

&) Particulars Units ,

3 Quantity Value Quantity Value
‘I"‘|_:J Sugar Qtls 308325 11679 443826 15442.72
- Molasses MTs 8040 1326.59 2579 3455.93
LL Industrial / Anhydrous Alcohal | Bls 1853867 1103.46 1751148 941,97
E Bio Fertiliser Qitls 289 14.08 35988 13.48
LE Urad Dal Qtls 622 45.24 1154 8§6.06
f.ﬂ: Others 53.68 10.95
U—TJ Total 14222.40 19951.12
! 43.Closing Stock of Finished Goods Amount Rs. In Lakhs
g As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
QO Particulars Units

Quantity Value Quantity Value
g: Sugar Qus 187353 7813.17 308325 11679.35
2z Molasses MTs 10731 1749.22 8040 1326.59
E Industrial / Anhydrous Alcohol BlLs 1476157 894,90 1853867 1103 .46
O Bio Fertiliser Qs 11888 32.26 289 14.08
— Urad Dal Qtls 884 54,96 622 45,24
) Others 49.98 53.68
L Total 10704.48 14222.40
IC_D 44. Particulars regarding Capacity and Preduction Amount Rs. In Lakhs
Zz Capacity Actual Production
Licenced Installed 202425 | 2023-24
Class of Goods (as certified by the management)
Units
a. Sugar Unit Vuyyuru 7500 7500 Qtis 214236| 368680
(Tonnes of Cane crushed per day)
b. Molasses (By-Product) MT's 14950 22791
c. Industrial { Anhydrous Alcohol 50000 50000 Bl perday | 1160610| 6541278
d. Blo Fertiliser Qtls 91836 81052
e. Electrical Power
Incidental Co - Generation Power 15 MW 15 Mw Kwh 14352500| 18925684
Plant, Vuyyuru
f. Urad Dal Qtis 45985 12235
45, Contingent Liabilities :
a. Outstanding Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the company is Rs.150.49 Lakhs
(PY Rs. 150,49 Lakhs)
b.  Demands raised on the company by the respective authorities are as under;
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Amount Rs. In Lakhs

Particul As at March As at March
articulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Share transmission 11.06 11.06
Labour cases 59.31 86.36
Non enrolment of contract labour for the purpase of 110.95 110.85
contribution to Provident Fund
Case on Duty relating lo Caplive Power Generation 578.87 578.87
and sale to grid
Value Added Tax case 16.61 16.61
Total 776.80 803.85

Based on the expert opinions obtained, the Company had been advised not to make any provision in the
Accounts,

46. Additional information regarding expenditure / earnings in foreign currency.
Amount Rs. In Lakhs

) As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024

Expenditure in Foreign currency on:

(i) Salary and allowance NIl NIl

(i) Tours and Travels Nl Nl

(i) Others Nil Nil
Earnings in Foreign Exchange

(i) Export (FOB) Nil Mil

47.

Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31" March 2025:

Amoun! Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount
b) Interest due thereon

2.81

—

1

Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enlerprises Developmenl Act, 2006,
along with the amourt paid to the supplier beyond the

appointed day,

Nil

=

1B

Amaount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006;

Nil

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Ml

Ml

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable aven in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises
Development Act, 20086,

il

Ml
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Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards
48. Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegories were as follows.

Amount Rs. In Lakhs
As at March 31, 2025

Financial assets/ Financial assets/
Particulars Amortized liabilities at fair liabilities at fair
cost value through value through
profit or loss OcCl
Assels:
Other Financial Asseats 84 80
Other Non current assels 493 .98
Non-Current Investments 19131.61
Current Trade Receivables 1030.72
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1686.71
Other Bank Balances 2201.76
Current Investments 4766.99
Other Financial Assels 41.00
Liabilities:
Borrowings (Non Current) 4382 58
Other Long term financial liabilities 77,63
| Other Financial Liabllities B31.94
Borrowings 6599.76
Trade Payables 448,29
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
Particulars Amortized liabilities at fair liabilities at fair
cost value through value through
profit or loss OCl
Assels:
Other Financial Assets 85.97
Other Non currenl assels 403.48
Non-Current Investmenls 1B8676.55
Current Trade Receivahles 1182.31
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2136,13
Other Bank Balances 1916.92
Currenl Invesiments 4171.11
Other Financial Assets 32.40
Liabilities:
Borrowings (Non Current) 3838.95
Other Long term financial lighilities 98.09
Other Financial Liabilities 151119
Borrowings 11378.27
Trade Payables 1017.37
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b. Fair Value Hierarchy
] Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabllities.

. Level 2 - Inputs other than quoled prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3 - Inpuls Tor the assels or liabilities thal are not based on observable markel dala
(unobservable inputs).

¢c. Valuation Technique used to determine Fair Value:
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
. Use of quoted market prices for Listed instruments
d.  The following tables present fair value hierarchy of assels and liabilities measured at fair value:

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars For the year 31.03.2025 For the year 31.03.2024

Level1 | Level2 | Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3 Total
Financial
Assets
Investments in

191316 4 1913161 18676.55 - -| 1BB76.55
Equity Instruments 1 : =
Investments In 4766.90 . ’ 4TEE9Y 41T . 4 #mn
Cuoted Mutual
Funds

49. Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose to limited financial risks: market risk, credil risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s primary focus is o foresee the unprediclability of financial markets and seek to
minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk of loss of future eamings or fair values or fulure cash flows thal may result
from a change in the price of a financial instrument.

The company is exposed to markel risk primarily related to forelgn exchange rate risk (currency
risk), Interest rate risk and the market value of its investments.

Securities Prices Risk:

The company's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from Invesiments held and classified
in the Balance Sheet as Fair Value through P&L. The company has investment in the form of
Mutual funds and Equity shares. The company monitors the movement in the value of the
Investments by observing the NAV.

Credit Risk

Credil risk refers to the risk of defaull on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial
loss. It principally arises from the Company's Trade Receivables, Advances and deposit(s) made.

Trade recelvables

The company has oulstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs.1177.61 Lakhs and Rs.1329.20 Lakhs
as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respaciively. Trade receivables are lypically unsecured ara
derived from revenue eamed from customers. Company's exposune to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual charactenistics of each customer. The company is not exposed to concentration of credit risk
lo any one single customer. Default on account of Trade Receivables happens when the counterparty fails
lo make contractual payment when they fall due,

Further for amounts overdue are constantly monitored by the management and provision lowards
expected credit loss are made inthe books. Management estimated of expacted credit loss for the Trade
Receivables are provided below with the classification on debtors.
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Credit risk exposure:

An analysis of age of trade receivables at each reporting date is summarized as follows:
As at March 31, 2025

Less than 6 months| 1-2 | 2-3 More
Particulars 6 months | -1year | years | years | than Total
3 years
) Urudiapiited tap-receaiVabis= | | a5/ 044 | 12880| 003 | 001| 804.94
considered good
(i} Un disputed Trade Receivable - - - . - - ’
Which have significant increase
in credit risk
(iil} Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - - - - .
credit impaired
| (iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - . . . .
considered good 225.78 225.78
(v) Disputed trade recelvable which
have significant increase in - = = - 146.89 146.89
credit risk
| (vi)Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - . .
credit impaired
TOTAL 666.66 9.44 | 128,80 0,03 | 37268 | 1177.61
As al March 31, 2024
Less than | 6 months | 1- 2 2-3 Mare
Particulars 6months | -1year | years | years | than Total
J years
(i} Undispuled lrade receivables - | 53892 0.31 236] 7.23| 24260| 956.53
considered good
(if) Un dispuled Trade Receivable - - - - - - -
Which have significant increase
in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - - - - -
credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - - - - - - .
considered good
(v} Disputed trade receivable which
have significant increase in » = = = 225,78 | 22578
credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - = - - 146.89 146.80
credit impaired
TOTAL 638.92 0.31 236 7.23 | 61527 | 1329.20

Trade receivables are impaired in the year when recoverability 15 considered doubliul based on the
recovery analysis performed by the company for Individual trade receivables. The company considers
that all the above financial assets that are not impaired for each reporting dates under review are of good

credil quality.
Liguidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of monthly and yearly projections. The company’s principal
sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents. cash generaled from operations, Term loans, deposils

from public and short term borrowings from Bank.
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The company manages liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inflows and by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash requirements are compared to available cash in order to
determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirements consist mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable, employee dues,
repayment of loans and retention & deposits arising during the normal course of business as of each
reporting date. We mainfain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meel our shorl-term
liquidity requirements.

Long term liquidity requirements are monitored on a periodical basis and manage them through internal
accruals. Qur non-current liabilities include Term Loans from Banks, Relentions & deposits.

The table have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the company can be raquired to pay.

The table include both principal cash flows.
Amount Rs. In Lakhs

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conto.)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Particulars Payable with More than 1 Payable with More than
in 1 year year in1year 1 year
Loan from Bank . - 385.25 -
Deposits from Public 2201.67 4382.58 2443.47 3838.95

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any
movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs.
The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest-bearing liabilities being short

term barrowings.

The following table represents the contractual obligation and receivables to/from financial liabilities and
financial assels respectively.

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Fixed Rate Instruments
Financial Asset
- Margin Money with Bank 491.45 503.00
Financial Liabilities
Variable Rate Insfruments
- Term Loan from Bank - 385.25
- Demand Loan from bank 4527.71 8724.00

The Company's variable interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt obligations arising from Long
term and Short debt borrowings

The interest expenses and impact on it on account of Increase/decrease of 100 basis paints in interest
rates al the balance sheet is provided in lable below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Interest Expenses arising on account of variable rate of 318.65 463.51
interasl on Bank borrowings
Impact on :
Increase in 100 basis point 45.27 91.08
Decrease in 100 basis points (45.27) (91.09)

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneous parallel shifts in the vield curve. Although
some assels and liabilittes may have similar maturities or periods lo re-pricing. these may not reacl
correspondingly to changes in markel interest rates. Also, the interest rates on some types of assets and
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liablliies may fluctuate with changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types of assets
may change with a lag. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest
rate across all vield curves. This caloulation also assumes that the change occurs al the balance sheet
date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date.

The period end balances are nol necessarily representative of the average debt outslanding during the
period.

Capital managements

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern in order lo provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an oplimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjusl the amount of dividends paid
lo shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets or by adequate funding by
the shareholders to absorb the losses of the Company.

The Company's capital comprises equity share capital, retained eamings and other equity aftributable lo
equilty holders, The primary objective of Company's capital management is to maximize shareholders
value. The Company manages its capital and makes adjustment to it in light of the changes in economic
and markel conditions, The capital gearing ratio Is provided in table below,

Particulars “ns at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024.
Non Current Borrowings 4382.58 3838.85
Total Equity 36527.02 36988.18
Long term debt 1o Equity Ratio 0.12 0.10

*Debt represents long term borrowings. Equity represents Share capital, other Equity

50. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 “Employee Benefits”
General description of various defined employee’s benefils schemes are as under:
a) Provident Fund:

Company’s Provided fund is managed by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Company
pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate.

b)  Gratuity:

Gratuity Is a defined benefit plan, provided In respect of past sarvices based on the actuanal
valuation carried out by LIC of India and corresponding contribution to the fund is expensed in
the year of such contribution.

The scheme is funded by the company for employees and the liability is recognized on the
biasis of contribution payable to the insurer, l.e., the Life Insurance Corporation of India,

The summarized position of various defined benefils recognized in the Statement of Prafit &
Loss, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and Balance Sheet & other disclosures are as
under; However, the disclosure of information as required under |ndAs 19 have been made in
accordance with Actuarial valuation.

The summarised position of various defined benefits recognised In the stalement of Profit
and Loss. Other comprehensive income (OCI) and Balance sheet and other disclosure are
as under:
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Movement in defined benefit obligation:

Amaurt Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Defined benefit obligation - Beginning of the year 897.49 1018.00
Current service cost 47.43 47.08
Interest Cost 65.07 73.96
Past Service Cost s 2.14
Benefits Paid (147.14) (187.47)
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/(gain) 80.59 (46.20)
Defined benefit obligation — End of the year 943.44 897.49
Movement in plan asset:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 920.20 1026.33
Employer contributions 97.00 21.82
Benefits paid (147.14) (197 47)
Re-measurements — Return on plan assets 65.01 69.51
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 935.07 920.20
Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Currenl service cosl | 47 .43 47 06
Expected retlumn on Plan Assets | (65.01) (69.51)
Interest Cost 65.07 73.96
Net Actural (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year 80.59 -
Cost Recognized in P&L 128.08 91.51
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to assumption changes 80.59 (46.20)
Difference between Actual Return and Interest ) )
Income on Plan Assets- (gain)/loss
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in OCI 80.59 (46.20)
Actuarial Assumption
Discount rate 1.25% 7.25%
Rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Altrition Rate 6.50% 5.50%
Retirement Age bl B0
Average Future Service 8.80 8.80
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51. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-37 “Provisions, Contingent

Liabilities and Contingent Assets”

Amount Rs. In Lakhs
As at March 31, 2025

At the At the
Description beginning Addition Used end of the
of the year year
Amount in Rupees in Lakhs
Pravision for leave encashment 249.95 B1.77 81.62 250.10
As at March 31, 2024
Provision for leave encashment 244 .50 68.71 63.26 249 95

52, Disclosure required by Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement:

Maximum amount

Loans and Advances to Outstanding as at outstanding during the
Subsidiary Companies year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
The Eimeo-K.C.PLtd. Nil | Nl Nil NIl
KCP Sugars Agricultural Nil | Nil | Nil Nil

Research Farms Lid.

53. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

1.Subsidiaries

a) The Eimece-K.C.F. Ltd., Chennal, India
b) KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Lid,,Chennal India.

c) Quality Engineering Works, Slep down subsidiary.
(Partnership firm in which The Eimco-K.C.P. Lid. and KCP
Sugar Agricultural Research Farms Lid. having a Profil
sharing ratio of 98.60 : 0.40 )

2.Key Managerial Personnel

a) Shri. Vined R. Sethi, Executive Chairman

b) Smt. Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Direclor.
c) Smt. Kiran Velagapud|, Execulive Direclor.

d) Shn.K.Panneer Selvan, Chief Financial Officer
&) Shri Karthik Narayanan, Company Secretary

3. Entity in which Directors of the

Company are interested

a) Amethyst Café Put. Lid.

k) V M Rao Consultants LLP

¢) Durgamba Invesiment Pvi. Lid,

d) Anibrain Digital Technologies Pwt, Lid.
&) Sethl Funds Management Pvt. Lid.
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(B). Transactions During the year Amount Bs. In Lakhs
) Subsidiaries Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars 2024 - 2025| 2023 - 20242024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Rent Received from The Eimeo - K.C.P. Lid 23.40 18.00 - .
Rent Recaived from Amethyst café P Lid - - 22.00 18.00
Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel : - . . = .
Mr.Vinod R, Selhi, Execulive Chalrman - - 12.53 12.52
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director - - 48.00 48.00
Ms.Kiran Velagapudi, Executive Director * - - 40.71 41.76
MrK.Panneer Selvan CFO, - - 27.82 2510
Mr.T.Karthik Narayanan, Company Secretary - - 12.71 0.67
Purchase of Fixed Assets from The Eimco- K.C.P. Lid 3.22 0.22 . 2
Purchase of Fixed Assets from Quality Enginearing 30.04 . = .
Sale of Goods to The Eimco - K.C.P. Ltd 1238.42 1200.88 : -
Consultancy fee received from The Eimeco—K.C.P. Lid 160.00 120.00 ; -
Sale of Goods to Quality Engineering 18.00 ' ; .
Interest on fixed deposit pald to Key Management Personnel : - s . - =
Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director . - 24.71 24.51
Mr. K.Panneer Selvan CFO 4 : . 1.60
M/s. Durgamba Investment Pt Lid " . 38.10 35.10
M/s. The Eimco - K.C.P. Ltd 73.15 14.00 = -
M/s.Quality Engineering Woarks 7.64 213 . -
(C) Closing balances as on 31/03/2024
Subsidiaries Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars
2024 - 2025| 2023 - 2024 2024 - 2025|2023 - 2024
 Parly
(a) The Eimeo — K.C.P. Lid {(Receivable) 159.84 121.75 -
(b) Quality Engineering (Receivable) 20.16 # - -
(c) Share Capital held by Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Vinod R. Sethi, Executive Chairman - . 1.84 184
Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director - - 18.05 18.05
Ms. Kiran Velagapudi, Executive Director - - 2.89 289
Mr. K. Panneer Selvan CFO - - 0.01 0.01
(d) Fixed Deposit held by key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Irmgard Velagapud|, Managing Director - - 300.00 300.00
M/s. Durgamba Investment Pyt Ltd - - 420.00 | 420.00
M/s.The Eimco KCP Ltd 950.00 450.00 - -
M/s,Quality Engineemg Co. 100.00 100.00 - -

* excluding the perguisites considered for the purpose of Income fax
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono. )

54. Minimum Remunaration paid to Managerial Personal :

In terms of Section 197 read with Schedule V oof the Companies Act,2013, the Financial Year
2024-2025 being the fifth year of adequate profits during the tenure (2020-25) of
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director and Mr.Vinod R Sethi, Executive Chairman, the
minimyum remuneration paid o Managerial Personnel of a sum of Rs.60.53/- for the Financial
Year 2024-25 is ratified by the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 28.05.2025 based
on the recommendation of Nomipation and Remuneration Committee. In pursuance of
Section 197(10}, a special resolution will be placed before the sharcholders for their approval
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

55. The utle deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company, except in
respect of certain immovable properties (land and buildings), which have been transferred to
the Company as per a scheme of demerger, which are in the name of the erstwhile demerged
Company. -Nil

56. The company has not revaloed its property, plant and equipment during the vear. -Nil

57. The company has not revalued its intangible assetls during the year.

58. Details relating 1o loans or advances in the nature of loans 1o Promolers, Directors, KMP

and related parties. -Nil
59. Aging schedule of Capital work-in-progres — Reler note no. 3(a) -Nil
60, Details relating 10 agewg of Intangible assets under development - Nil
61. Details relating to Benamm Property held by the Company - Nil

62. Disclosures of Borrowings from Banks or financial mstitutions is used tor intended purpose.

63. Details relating (o declaration of the company as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

mstitution or other lender - Nil
64. Details relating to the nature of transaction carried out with the struck- off company - Nil
65. Detmls repacding registration or satisfaction of charges with Remstrar of

Companies, beyond the statutory period - Nil
66, Details regarding compliance with number of layers of companies - Nil
67. Details reganding compliance with approved scheme of armangements - Nil

68. The Company has not advanced of loaned or mnvested funds to any other person(s) or
enfify(ies), inclnding foreign ennties (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) chirectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entinies wdentificd m anv
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficraries) or
(h) provide any guarantee, securty or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes.

69. The Company has not recetved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

() directly or indirectly lend or invest i other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficianes)
or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficianes.

70. Details relating to the transactions undertaken in Crypto or Virtual Currency - Nil

71. Details relating to the undisclosed income reported - Nil
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72 Reconclliation between stock statements submitted to the bank and books of accounts

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

: Amount | Amount as
Quarter] Name of Particules | "o per | reported in the | AMount Reason for
ended | the Bank of securities books of | quarterly retum of material
provided account | statement | Difference|  discrepancies
Q1 | Stale Bank Finished T:; iﬁg*’;‘:iﬂt"
area | 2009800 |gn4532 | 879938 | 245.94 | separate valuation
ank Sugar & Rz A
: pted for
Lid, Axis Molasses hank: ard hacks:
Bank Lid & The bank requires
CTBC Bank stock valuation
Ltd hased on 3
months moving
average of marke!l
price or current
market price
whichever lower
where as books cosl
or net realizable
value whichever s
lower.
Q2 -do- -do- 4926.17 4662.91| 263.26 -do-
Q3 -do- -do- 2738.65 245449 284.16 -do-
Q4 -do- -to- 9562.38 9288.31| 274.08 -0~
73 Disclosure of various Ratios
:: Name of the RatiJ Numerator Denominator 3?3;325 ETazrgg 4 % Change
1 Current Ratio Current Assats Current Liabilities 2.80 1.84 d44%
2 |Debt Equily Ratio. | Tetal Non current
and current borrowings | Shareholder's Equity 0.30 0.41 (277%)
3  |Debt Service Proft After Tax + Interest an Loans +
Coverage Ratio Depreiation + Frnnoipal repayment
Interasl on Loans + | made during the year
non-cash adjustments | for fong term loan 0.25 1.52 (84%)
4 Retum on Equity Net profits after tax | Average Shareholder's
Ratio Equity - 16% 103%
S inventory Turmover
Ratio Sdles Average Inventory 1.46 1.47
6 |Trade Receivable mrerﬂéa Accounts
Tumover Ratio Credit Sales Receivable 18.14) 25.66 (£9%)
7 |Trade Payable Credil Purchase Avarage Accounts
Tumover Ratlo Payablas 20.82 18.70 11%
8 Net Capital Turnover | Net Sales = Total Working capital = Currer]
Ratlo Salas - Sales Return | assels - Current liabilities 1.58 2.04 (22%)
B  |Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after tax Net Sales = Total Sales
Salas Relum (1%) 19% 104%
10 |Retum on Capltal Earning before Total Assels - currenl
Employed interest and tax Liabilities + Current
Borrowings 0.03 0.18 (B1%)
11 |Ratum on Investment | Income generated
from investmenls Average Investments 0.05 0.27 82%




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conto.)

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

74. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 "Earnings Per

Share(EPS)"” Basic and Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of

basic
Amount Rs. In Lakhs
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2025 2024
Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the (172.24) 5626.48
owners of the company
Earnings used in calculation of basic
earnings per share(A) (172.24) 2626.48
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share(B) 1133.85 1133.85
Basic and Diluted EPS(A/B) - Rs. (0.15) 4.96

75 .Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

76. SEGMENT REPORTING :

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

(1) The Company has identified lhe reportable segmenls as on 31-03-2025 and others taking into account the nalure of products and services, the different
risks and returns and the Inlernal reporling systems. The accounting policies for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies followed by the Company.

PRIMARY SEGMENT
PARTICULARS SUGAR CHEMICALS POWER & FUEL | ENGINEERING URAD DAL OTHERS il
Current |Provious | Current |Previous | Current | Previous | Currant| Previous] Current |Previous | Current |Pravious | Current |Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
1 Segment Revanue
Exlernal Revenue 14477.19|215675.88| 1481.88 | 439671 | 262.78 | 282.16 |1393.71] 1219.57 | 4585.32] 1151.39 | 544,650 | 648.84 | 2273539 | 29254 45
Inter Segment Revenus 2663.35] 5667.67| 149.08| 161.86| 1870.18 | 2359.72 - - - - 0.01 0.16 | 4682.61 | B8189.42
Total Revenues 17140.565|27243.55| 1630.96 | 4558.57 | 212295 | 2621.88|1383.71| 1219.57| 4585.32| 1151.39 | 544.571 | 649.00 | Z7418.00{ 37443.87
2 | Segment Resulls
Frofit before depriciation, finance
cosl and taxation (821.03)] 651.41| (42.12) 5920 88.80 408,331 78047 82049 (B4.24) /681 | 36243 | 30818 284 31| 212542
Less : Finance Cosl 276.96] 40973 19.59 65.84 3.34 3.83 (.04 0.04 o651 17.38 .21 8070 362 .65 S06.63
Less : Unallocable Finance Cost 5689.31 543.91
Less: Depeciation and
Amarlizaticns 18891 183.59] 116.32 11904 71.08 86.35 48 45 48 39 24.81 25.54 2647 47.15 496 06 509 06
Less: Unallocable Depreciation
and Amortizations 17.85 18.18
Less: Impaimment on Capltal
Assals - -
Profit on sale of Lakshmipuram
Plarmt and Machinary 480 .54 204 42
3 Unallocable Expenditure 1201 14 | 5303.08
Less : Tax f02.27 | 102868
Total Profit (1286.90) 58.09|(178.03) | (125.67) 14.36 | 319.05] TA41.98| 572.06| (174.56) 33.88| 31875 | 25233 | (172.24) | 5626.47
Capital Employed
4 | Segment Assels 13382.03[16727.20| 2313.75 | 2457.82 | 1442. 11 | 1637.94 |2605.84] 2505.05| 1878.16| 4391.77 | 276.16 |1619.76 | 21878.06|28339.33
9 | Unallocable Assels 29102.91 | 28234.89
6 | Segment Liabilities 5120.46|105660,18 61.74 71.18 11.90 16.44) 245.53) 398.62| 13946] 13948 B4.95 |1057.06 | 5662.04 | 12242.94
7 | Unallocable Liabilities 8789.91 | 8343.10
8 | Capital Employed JGHZT.02 | 368588.18
9 | Capital Expenditure 24584) 206.95 84.26 | 26401 1.75 19.83 3,97 15.98 - - 6.86 29 86 34268| 536.73

1. The operanons of the company predominantly relate to mamifacmre of Sugar. Electrical Energy ngmeering, Bio Fenilizers and Chemicals comprising mainly Indusitial Alcohol, CO2 and Calemum Laciate
1. The Business segments that are disclosed under "Ciihers” comprise Bio Fernhzers
3. Inter sezment transfers dre prived ot market rates excepting Steam which has no markel rate and henee valued at cost




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conto.)

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198

il) Geographical Segment: Amount Rs. In Lakhs
Current Previous
Particulars Reporting Period | Reporting Period
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Sales within India 22735.39 20254 45
Sales outside India - .
Total 22735.39 29254 45

Note: Company does not own or operate any business oulside India

Carrying Amounts of Geographical Assels and additions to tangible and intagible fixed assels:

Additions to fixed assets &
|
+. Carrying amounts of segment assels Intangible assets
Particulars Current reporting Previous Current reporting Previous
period reporting period period reporting period
Located In India 51040.07 oT272.54 342,68 536.73
 Located outside India - . .
Tolal 51040.07 a7272.54 342.68 536.73
The accompanying notes form an imepral parl of these finahcial sialements For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even dale attached
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO. IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
Chartered Accountants Manaaging Direclor
FRN 00280835 DIN : 00031370
B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner
Membership No,: 243632
K.Panneer Selvan T.Karthik Narayanan KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Place - Chennai Chiel Financial Officer Company Secretary & Executiva Direclor
Date - 2B/05/2025 CMA M No.9894 Compliance Officer DIN : 00091486
M No.A51274
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

=

NOTICE is hereby given that the FIFTY SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of The Eimco -

K.C.P. Limited will be held on Monday, the 22" Day of September, 2025 al the Registered Office of the
Company al 'Ramakrishna Buildings’, No.239, Anna Salai, Chennal — 600 006 at 10.00 A M. to transact
Ihe following businesses.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopl the Audited Financial Statemenls of the Company for the financial
year ended 31/03/2025 together with the Reports of Auditor and Board of Directors thereon:

2. To appoint a Director, in the place of Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Director (DIN: 00091370), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

[f BY ORDER OF THE BOARD /I

Place : Chennai ol ME.J‘H:II'IHI'
Director
Date :13/08/2025 DIN: 08389896

NOTES:

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT ANOTHER PERSON AS A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /| HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMEER.,

2. PROXY FORM, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DULY COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE MEETING.




THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
CIN: U27209TN1367PLC005550

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 57" Annual Report conlaining the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2025

DIRECTORS' REPORT

1. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

Amount in Rupees in Lakhs

B For the Financial Year For the Financial Year
Ended 31/03/2025 ended 31/03/2024
_ o | Orders 9185.96 7044 29
e £ | (valued in Lakhs)
7]
E E
gt
Og
Turnover and Other 10228.07 7290.53
i Income
=
E Profil / (Loss) before Tax 2262 64 1324 46
g Profit / (Loss) after Tax 1656.08 1079.41
o
= Total Comprehensive 1630.15 1088.13
= Income
]
=
i
2. DIVIDEND:.

Your Direclors have not recommended any Dividend for the Financial Year under review with a
view to conserve profits.

3. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES :

The Share Capital of the Company Is Rs.60.00 Lakhs. The total Reserves and Surplus has
increased to Rs.7,952.84 Lakhs as on 31/03/2025 as against Rs. 6,322 69 Lakhs as on 31/03/2024.

4, FIXEDDEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits during the year under review.,

5. MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY:

The Company is a 'Material Subsidiary' of its Holding Company, the K.C.P. Sugar and Industries
Corporation Limited, in terms of Regulation 16 (1) (c) of SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, based on the financials for the year ended 31/03/2022.
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10.

1.

12,

13.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :

Electricity:

The Company strives lo utilise energy efficiently at its manufacturing plants. Towards this, part of the
Ijghting systems were replaced to LED from CFL lamps. Further, motors are provided with inverter
(VFD) which results in 20% power saving.

Technology Absorption:

The Company has in-house developed machineries (horizontal belt filters) towards import
substitution for flue gas desulphurisation projects which were hitherto imported from China.

In respect of further integralion of allied products, in the forthcoming year, the Company plans lo
absorb technology related lo cyclones to work towards Sell Reliant India.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Qur Export earnings during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 is Rs. 2165.34 Lakhs as against Rs.
2203.94 Lakhs for the previous year. During the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, the Company has
incurred expenditure in foreign currency amounting to Rs.27.91 Lakhs towards Tours & travels.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosure as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not
applicable lo the Company as there is no employee Talling under any of thase calegories mentioned
therein,

BOARD MEETINGS:

Four Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 on 29/05/2024, 10/07/2024,
29/10/2024 and 10/02/2025.

ANNUAL RETURN:

As per Section 92(3) of the Companies act, 2013, Annual return of the Company is disclosed on
Company's websile under the web-link: https //www ekecp.com/

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (k) of the Companies Acl, 2013 and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, Particulars of Contracts / Arrangements entered into by the Company with
the related parties in terms of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AQC -2, is
annexed hereto as "Annexure - 1',

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The details of CSR Policy of the Company and the measures [ activilies taken by the Company on
CSR during the Financlal Year under review, as required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporale
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed herelo as 'Annexure - 2,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company being a 'Material Subsidiary' Is subject to Secretarial Audi, in
lerms of Section 204 of the Companies Acl, 2013
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CIN: U27209TN1367PLC005550

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

18.

20,

The Board of Direclors of the Company in Its Meeting held on 29/05/2024, appointed Ms. Rajashree
Santhanam, Practising Company Secretary as Secretanal Auditor for the Financlal Year 2024- 2025.

The Segretarial Audit Report of the Company, in terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, is
annexed herewith as "Annexure - 3'. There are no gualifications, reservalions or observalions or
adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said Secretarial Audit Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS :

Pursuant to Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company observes Secretarial
Standards with respect to General and Board Meetings, prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS :

The Company adheres lo the Accounting Standards as applicable to it and there are no deviations. In
this respect.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 :

No loan / guarantee / investment Is given / made by the Company, In terms of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025,

DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION:

Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi, Director (DIN: 00091370), who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

STATUTORY AUDITOR:

M/s. B.Purushotlam & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0028085) is the Statutory Auditor of the
Company for the Financial Year under review. The Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial
Statements of the Company is annexed to this Annual Report. There are no qualifications or
reservations or observations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said Statutory Auditor's
Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to Section 138 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had appointed M/s. Vimala
& Pankal, Chartered Accountant (FRN : 0016385S) as Internal Audilor of the Comparty to conduct
Iinternal audit for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025, The Internal Auditor has submitted their repors
1o the Board of Directors of the Company, periodically.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
of your Company state as follows:

(a) thatin the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed and that there were no material departures there-from;
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(b) that the Direclors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates lhat are reasonable and prudent so as 1o give a true and fair
view of the slale of affairs of the Company al the end of the financial year, 31/03/2025 and of the
Profit of the Company for that period;

(c) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
Irregularities;

(d) thatthe Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis,

(e) that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(fy thal the Direclors had devised proper sysiems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such syslems were adequale and operating effectively.

21. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors would like to take this opportunity to express their deep sense of gratifude 1o the
Stakeholders of the Company.

/I BY ORDER OF THE BOARD //
P. Manohar Kiran Velagapudi
Place : Chennal Director Director
Date : 13/08/2025 08389896 00091466




THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
CIN: U27209TN1967PLCO005550

DIRECTORS' REPORT«con.,)

ANNEXURE - 1

FORM No. AOC - 2 - DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS | ARRANGEMENTS
ENTERED INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN
SECTION 188 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

[Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8 (2] of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014]

Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at arm's length basis:

(a) | Name of Related Party and (Nature of | K.C.P. Sugar and Industries Corporation

Relationship) Limited
(Holding Company)
(b) | Nature of Contract /| Arrangement / Lease, Purchase of Goods and Services,
Transaction Managemenl Consultancy Services

(e) | Duration of Contract / Arrangement/ 11 Months

Transaction
(d) | Salient Terms of the Contract/ Taking on lease of a building of the Holding
Arrangement | Transaction Company on rental basis for Registered
Office of the Company
(e) | Date of approval by the Board 09/02/2024

(period covered. 01/01/2023 to 30/11/2024)

10/02/2025
(peniod covered. 01/12/2024 to 30/11/2025)

09/02/2024
(period covered: 01/01/2024 to 30/11/2024)

(f) | Amount paid as Advances, if any NIL

/I BY ORDER OF THE BOARD //

P. Manohar Kiran Velagapudi
Place : Chennal Director Director
Date : 13/08/2025 08389896 00091466
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ANNEXURE - 2
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]
S. No. Nature of Particulars Particulars
L. Brief oulline on CSR Policy of the | The Company's CSR activiies broadly
Company relate to:
(1) Promoting health care including
preventive health care and sanitation;
(i) Promoting education and employment
enhancing vocational skills;
(i) Eradication of poverty and ensuring
better living conditions;
(iv) Ensuring environmental sustainability;
(v) Rural Development Projects; and
(vi) Conducting relief operalions in natural
disaster hit areas and contribution to
Government Disaster Relief Fund.
2. Composition of the CSR Committee
S.No.| Name of Director Designation in Number of Number of
Committee / Meetings of CSR | Meetings of CSR
Nature of Committee held | - Committee
Directorship during the Year | attended during
the Year
(i) Ms.Irmgard Chairperson / 1 1
Velagapudi Director
(if) Mr.P.Manohar Member | Director 1 1
(i)
Mr. K.R. Adivarahan | Member / Director 1 -
3. Web Link where Composition of CSR Committee, | www.ekcp.com
CSR Policy and CSR Projects of the Company
are disclosed
4. Details of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects Mot Applicable
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Average Nel Profil of the Company for last
three Financial Years (in Lakhs)

934.14

Two percent of the Average Net Profit of the
Company as given in ltem 5(a) above (in
Lakhs)

18.68

c)

Surplus ansing out of the CSR Projects or
Programmes or Activities of the previous
Financial Years (in Lakhs)

Ml

d)

Amount required to be set off for the Financial
Year, if any (in Lakhs)

NIl

Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year
(5a+5b-5c) (in Lakhs)

18.68

Amount spent on CSR projects

Projects 18.70

Other than Ongoing | Nil
Project

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
(in Lakhs)

NIl

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if
applicable (in Lakhs)

Mot Applicable

Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(6a+Bb+6c) (in Lakhs)

18.70

CSR amount spent or unspent for the
Financial Year

NIl

Excess amount for sel off, if any (in Lakhs)

Ml

Sl. No.

Particular

Amount (in Lakhs)

(i)

Two percent of Average Net Profit of the|

Company as Per Section 135 (5)

18.68

(i1

Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year

18.70

(il

Excess Amount Spent for the Financial Year

(Giath)

0.02

(V)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activilies of the previous

Financial Years. if any

NIl

(v)

Amount available for setoff in succeeding

Financial Years [(iii){Iv)]

0.02
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1. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
Sl. | Preceding | Amount Amount  [Amounl Amount remaining lo be spent in
No. | Financial transferred to, spent in |transferred lo| succeeding Financial Years.
Year Unspent the any fund
CSR Account| Reporting [specified under
under Financial |Schedule VIl as
Seclion135 (6) Year per seclion
135 (6), if any.
Name of thel Amount| Date of
Fund transfer
Not Applicable
8. | Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to assets so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the Financial Year; (asset-wise details).
(i) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s),
(i) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of
capital assel.
(1) Details of the entity or public authority r.l1r benleﬂciary Not Applicable
under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address elc.,,
(v) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary
under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address ele.,.
Specify the reason(s),if the Company has failed to spend
9 two percent of the Average Net Profit as per Section 135
: Not Applicable

(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Place : Chennal

Date : 13/08/2025

K. R. Adivarahan
CSR Committee
DIN : 00019844
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MR
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.2 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2074and Regulation 24 A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 as amended]

To,
The Members,

M/s. The Eimco-K.C.P. Limited
CIN No.: U27209TN1967PLCO05550
183, New No.239, Anna Salai
Ramakrishna Buildings

Chennal 8000086,

Dear Members,

| have conducted the secrelarial audit of the compliance of applicable statulory provisions and the adherence to
good corporale practices by Mis. The Eimco-K.C.P. Limited (hereinafler called the "Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted In @ manner thal provided us a reasonable basis Tor evaluating lhe corporate
conducls/statulory compliances and exprassing our opinion thereon,

Based on my verilication of Company’s books, papers, minule books, forms and returns filed and other records
maijntained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representalives during the conduct of secrelarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financlal year ended on 31" March, 2025 generally complied with the
provisions of Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards listed hereunder subject (o the reporting made
harainafter.

(il The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(liy  The Securilies Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there under, to the extent
applicabla to the Company;

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to the extent
applicable to the Company;,

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Reguiations, 2015, 1o the extent applicable to material unlisted public companies;

| have also checked the compliance with the applicable clauses pertaining to Secrelarial Standards issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, elc. mentioned above,

| further report that

i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituled with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Direclors and Independent Direclors

it) The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Acl,

iii) Adequate nolice is given o all directors lo schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and delailed notes
on agenda were sent in advance as stipulated in the Companies Act, 2013, and a system exists for
seeking and ablaining lurther information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participalion at the meating,

iv) As per the minules of the meslings duly recorded and confirmed by the Direclors, the decisions of
the Board were carried through by majority while there ware no dissenting views recorded as part of
the minules.
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V) The Compliance by the Company of the applicable financial |aws like direct and indirect tax laws and
maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this audit sihce
the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditors, tax auditors and other
designated professionals.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events [ actions having major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, elc.

Rajashree Santhanam
Practising Company Secretary
FCS 10367
CP 10096
PR 1553/2021
UDIN: FO10367G000327046
Place: Chennai
Dale : 13/05/2025




DIRECTORS’ REPORTcont.)

THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
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ANNEXURE-A

To,

Mi/s The Eimco-K.C.P. Limited

CIN No.: U27209TN1967PLC005550
183, New Ne 239 Anna Salal
Ramakrishna Buildings, Chennai 600008

Our Secretarial Audit report dated 13/05/2025 is to be read along with this letier.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. | have followed the audil practices and processes as were appropriate to obfain reasonable assurance
aboul the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on lesl basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, |
followed provide a reasonable basis of our opinion.

3. | have not verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limiled lo the verification of procedures on les!

basis.

6. The Secrelarial Audit report is neither an assurance as lo the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Rajashree Santhanam
Practising Company Secretary
FCS 10367
PR 155312021
CP 10096
UDIN: FO10367G000327046
Place: Chennai
Date: 13/05/2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of THE EIMCO K.C.P. LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of THE EIMCQO K.C.P. LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as al March 31, 2025, the standalone statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income ), the standalone statement of changes in equity and
standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under sec 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)Rules,2015,as amended,("Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on [hat date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements In accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companigs Act 2013 (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We belisve
that the audil evidence we have obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
audil opinion an the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audil of the standalone financial slatements of the current period. These malters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial slatements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do naot provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there
are no key audit matters to be communicated in our audit report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included In the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Infermation, bul does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report therean.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other
information and, in doing 50, consider whether the olher information is matenally inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge oblained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
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When we read these reporls, if we conclude that there is a material misstatemeant of this other
information, we are required to communicate that matter to those charged with governance and
describe actions applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Direclors are responsible for the matiers stated in Seclion
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Acl’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income / loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Acl. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant o the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
Fair view and are free from material misstalement, whether due o fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Direclors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going congern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management efther intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative bul to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objeclives are lo abtain reasonable assurance about whether the slandalone financial slatemenis
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but 15 not a
guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always delect a material misstatement
when il exisls. Misslalemenls can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As parl of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due fo fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misreprasentations, or the ovarride of inlernal control.

» Obtain an understanding of inlernal {inancial controls relevant lo the audit in order to design
audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequale internal financial controls system in place and the operaling
effectiveness af such conlrols.

« Evaluale the appropriateness of accounling policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a maternial uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
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continue as a going concem, If we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are required
o draw attention in our auditor's reporl to the relaled disclosuras in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audil evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
evenls or conditions may cause the Company lo cease lo conlinue as a going concarn.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial slatemenls represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be Influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and
gualitative factors in (I) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resulls of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstalements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contro! that we idenlify during our audil,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Froam the matters communicated with those charged wilh governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected lo outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements include the Company's share In the net loss of INR 0.89 lakhs for
the year ended March 31, 2025, in respect of loss from the partnership firm in which the Company has
invested, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have
been audited by the other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management, and our
opinion on the standalone financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respecl of this partnership firm, and our repert in terms of subseclion (3) of Seclion 143 of
the Actin so far as it relates to the aforesaid parinership firm, is based solely on the report of such other
auditor.

Qur opinion is nol modified in respect of this matter with respec! to our reliance on the work done by
and the repor! of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audil.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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(c) The slandalone balance sheel, standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone stalement of cash flow and slandalone statement of
changes in equity deait with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

() On the basis of written represenlations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025, from being appointed as a director In terms of section 184 (2) of the Acl.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effecliveness ol such conlrols, refer lo our separale Report in
“Annexure B" {o this report.

lg) With respect to the matter lo be included in the Auditors Reporl In accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our epinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given Lo us,
the remuneration paid by the Company lo its directors during the year is in accordance wilh the
provisions of section 197 and schedule V of the Act.

(h) With respectfo the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanalions given to us;

. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its financial
position.

.  The Company did nol have any long-term conlracts, including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a) The management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 61 to the standalone financial statements, that no funds (which are material either
individually or in aggregate), have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represenled, 1o the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in nole 61 to the slandalone financial statements, that no funds (which are material either
individually or in aggregate), have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in wriling or otherwise, thal the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend
or invesl in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Parly ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries;

(e) Based on the audil procedures thal have been considered reasonable and appropriale in
the circumslances. nathing has come to our notice that has caused us lo believe thal the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(2), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.
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v. The Company did nol propose, declare or pay dividends during the year ended March 31,
2025,

vi. Based on our examination and the explanations provided by the Management, the Company
has used an accounting software “SQL SERVER" which does naot possess the required audit
trail functionality and edit log requirements as stipulated by Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended. During the second half of FY 2024-25 the
Company had started to migrate its accounting and financial data to Microsoft Navision
which possess the above audit lrail and edil log requirements and has fully adopted the said
ERP from 01 April 2025 onwards. Refer note 63 lo the standalone financial statements.

For B. Purushottam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership number: 243632
UDIN: 25243632BMKYHBS5702

Place: Chennal
Date : 28/05/2025
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ANNEXURE ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE EIMCO K.C.P. LIMITED, ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Based on the audil procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view of the
standalone financial stalements of the Company and laking into consideralion the informalion and
explanations given lo us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us, in the normal
course of audil, and to the bes! of our knewledge, we report thal:

] In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of inlangible assets.

(b) the Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and eguipment at regular
intervals so to cover all the assets which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of ils assets. According o the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properlies where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed In favor of the lessee), disclosed
in the standalone financlal statements included under property, plant and equipment are
held in the name of the Company.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and eguipment and intangible
assets during the year.

(@) no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
al 31 March 2025 for holding any benami properly under the Benaml Transactions
(Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

il (a) The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nalure of its
inventory. According o the information and explanations givan to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(b) The Company has availed working capital facilities in excess of INR 5 crores from banks /
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assels and the quarterly returns /
statements filed by the Company are in agreement with the books of accounts.

lii. The Company has not made investments or provided guarantee or securty or granted loans or
advances, secured or unsecured, lo Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties, during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable:

lv. The Company has complied wilh the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Acl, in respect of
loans granted, investmenls made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v. The Company has not accepled any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by
RBI and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order
is not applicable.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (conro.)

=

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and records maintained by the company pursuant
to the Rules made by the Central Govermment for the maintenance of Cost Records under section
148(1) of the Companies Acl, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and mainlained.

vil. inrespecl of slalulory dues:

(a) the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’' slate insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of cusloms, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no
undisputed amounts payable which were outstanding as on 31 March 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the dale on which they became payable.

(b) The Company does not have disputed statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above
and hence reporting under clause 3(vii)(b} of the Order Is not applicable.

vili. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. {(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has nol been declared a willful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or
government or any government authornty.

(c) the Company has nol faken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is
not applicable,

(d) on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(8] on an overall examination of the standalone financial stalements of the Company, the
Company has nol taken funds frem any entity or person on account of or o mee! the
obligations of its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates as defined under the Act.

(fi according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies, as defined under the Act.

x. {a} The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt inslruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has nol made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x){b)
of the Order is not applicable

Xi, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reporting during
the year

(@) no reporting under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the date of this report

(b)  asinformed by the Company, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the
year.
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xil. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order Is not
applicable.

xiil. In our opinion, the Company Is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the requisite details have been disclosed in the standalone financial slalements elc.. as required
by the applicable accounting standard.

xiv. (&) inourandbased anour examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurale
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company Issued during the year and till
date,

xv. The Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its direclors or persons connecled
with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvl. In our opinion, the Company is not required 1o registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1834 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) and its sub-clauses of the Order is not
applicable.

xvi.. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii, There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basls of the financial ratios, ageing and expecled dates of reallsation of financial assels and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial siatements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Managemenlt plans and based on our examination
of the evidence suppaorting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us lo
believe thal any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeling its liabilities existing al the date of balance sheel as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet dale. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

¥x., (&) There are no ongoing projects as defined under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act and
hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order Is not applicable

(b) There are no unspent amounts as defined under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act and
hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is nol applicable.

For B. Purushottam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 002808S

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership number: 243632
UDIN: 25243632BMKYHB5702

Place: Chennai
Date : 28/05/2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE EIMCO K.C.P LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of THE EIMCO K.C.P. LIMITED
(“the Company’) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Managements and Board of Directors Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Direclors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
eslablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thal were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detaction
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is lo express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nole on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Seclion143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included oblaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesling and
evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misslatemenl of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intfemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's intermal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) Pertain o the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.
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(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transaclions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Pravide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstalements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financlal control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thal the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporing criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. Purushottam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership number: 243632
UDIN: 25243632BEMKYHB5702

Place: Chennai
Dale : 28/05/2025



BALANCE SHEET As AT MARCH 31, 2025

Amount in Lakhs unless othorwise staled

Figures as at the end of{Figures as at the end of
Particulars Note No. current raporting eurrant reporting
pariod pariod
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assels
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 728.08 641.85
(b) Capital work-in-progress - .
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 6.10 3.05
(d) Intangible assels under development 44 85.30 65.25
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investmenis 5 1,650.84 1,151.73
(1) Other Financial Assels 6 6.07 6.57
(f) Delerred {ax assels, (net) 7 23.99 35.56
(g) Other non-current assels 8 - -
Current assets
(&) Inventones G 1.127.87 1.608.05
(b) Firancial Assets
{i) Investments 10 3,048.51 3,101.35
(i} Trade receivables 1 3,991.04 1.850.26
(i) Cash and cash aquivalents 12 21945 47.91
(Iv) Bank Balances othet than (iii) above 13 426.27 362.12
{v) Dther financial assets 14 1.66 3.86
(¢) Current Tax Asssals (Net) - -
(¢} Other current assets 15 1§1.99 59374
Total Assets 11,4897.16 9,481.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity Share capital 16 60.00 60.00
(b) Other equity 17 7,952.84 6,322 69
Liabilities
Nen-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 18 1,067 .06 871.18
(b) Deferred tax liabllities (net) - -
(c) Other Non-Current liabilities 19 - 84 .67
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(ii) Trade payables 20
a) Tolal oulstanding dues of micro enterprises - 58.65
and small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than B96.59 729.61
micro enterprises and small enterprises
{iil) Other financial liablities 21 6.87 7.08
(b) Other current liabililles 22 1,096.18 1,237.35
(c) Provislons 23 154.01 9149
(d) Current Tax Liabilittes (Nel) 24 263.62 18.6¢
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,497.16 9,481.40

The significant accounting policies and accompanying notes Torm an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date atiached Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 002808S P. MANOHAR
Direcior
B.Mahidhar Krrishna DIN : 0B389896
Partner
Membership Number : 243632
KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Director
Place : Chennal DIN : 00091466

Date : 28/05/2025



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
CIN: U27209TN1967PLCO005550

Amount in Lakhs unlezs otharwize staled

Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars Note No, | Current Reporting Previous Reporting
Period Period
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|  Revenue from Operations 25 9.501.79 6,471.05
I Other income 26 72628 819.48
Hl  Total Income (1) 10,228.07 7.290.53
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 27 4.231.11 3,008.96
Changes in inventones of finished goods, 28 393.08 314.60
work-in-progress and slock-in-trade
Employes benefits expense 29 1,320.29 977,61
Finance costs 30 51.98 68.70
Depreciation and Amortisation 31 73.50 46,44
Other expenses 32 1,895.48 1,549.75
Total expenses (IV) 7.965.43 5 066.07
V  Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 2.262.64 1,324 46
VI Exceplional items - -
Vil Prefit/{loss) before tax 2,262.64 1,324.46
Vil Tax expense
- Current Tax 586.78 253.25
- Deferred Tax 20.29 (4.95)
- Earlier years Taxes (Net) (3.26)
IX Profit/(loss) for the period 1,656.08 1,079.41
X Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuramenis of defined benafit plan (34.64) 11.65
acturial gains/ (losses)
Less:Income tax expense on above (8.72) 293
(25.92) 8.72
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1,630.15 1,088.13
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive
income for the period)
Xl Earnings per equity share of face value
Rs.10/- each
(1) Basic ( in Rs.) 276.01 179.80
(2) Diluted ( in Rs.) 276.01 179.90

As per our report of even date attached
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0028085

B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner
Membership Number : 243632

Place : Chennal
Date : 28/05/2025

The significant accounting policies and accompanying notes Torm an integral part of these financial statements
Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

P. MANOHAR
Direcior
DIN: 0B386896

KIRAN VELAGAPUDI

Director
DIN : 00091466
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Amourt in Lakhs unless othervise stated

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars For Year Ended For Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / ( Loss) before Tax 2.262.64 1,324 46
Adjustments:
- Interest income {88.51) (55.66)
- Profit on sale of assels (0.18) (0.88)
- Loss on sale of assels - 0.06
- Excess Provision credited back (229.70) (258.55)
- Credil Balances wrilten back {85.20) (47.70]
- Profit'Loss from Partnership firm (.89 (111.33)
- ECL on Trade Receivables -
- Difference In Foreign exchange on closing receivables - -
- Adjustment Tor OCI (34 .64 11.65
- Dividend Income . (32.72)
- Notional increase In Fair value of Mutual Fund Investment (102.28) (185.08)
- Depreciation and amortization 73.50 45.44
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,785.54 689.70
Changes in
- Decrease/(Increase) In Trade Receivables (2,131.78) (395,73)
- Decrease/{Increase] In Inventory 48118 436,45
- Decrease/(Increase) In Other current Financial Asset(s) 220 (0.01)
- Decrease/{Increase) In Other current Assel(s) 411.75 (368,77
- Decrease/(Increase) In Current investmaents 165.12 (933.20)
- Decreasel(Increase) In nan-current financial assets-Loans 0.50 (0.82)
- Decrease/(Increase) In Other non-current assat -
(Decrease)/Increase In Other non-current liabllities {84 67) 1.81
(Decrease)/Increase In Long term Provisions 425.57 220.82
(Decrease)/Increase In Trade Payables current 183.563 283.71
(Decrease)/Increase In other current liabilities (141.17) 201,80
(Decrease)/Increase In Other financial liablities current (0.21) (0.01)
(Decrease)/Increase In Shorl Tenn provisions current b2.02 (34.18)
Income laxes paid (341.35) (276.70)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) operations 818.74 (176.04)
Cash flows from investing activities
Invesimenl in Public Deposit with Corporate (S00,00) -
Purchase of fixed assels (184.53] (79.41)
Froceads from sale of fixed assels 1.97 5.95
Dividend Income - 32.72
Decrease / (Increase) in margin money deposit (64.15) (16.48)
Interest received 88 .51 55.66
Met cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (647.20) (4.57)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from long term loans -
Repayment of long term loans
Net cash used in financing activities -




CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 (CONTD.,)

THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
CIN: U27209TN1367PLC005550

Amount in Lakhs unless othernvise stated

For Year Ended Faor Year Ended
YAIUENAS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 171.54 (180.61)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4791 228.52
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 219.45 47.91
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12)
Cash on hand & Balances with Bank 218.45 47.91
Total cash and cash equivalents 219.45 47.91

As per our repor of even date atlached
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0028085

B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner
Membership Number : 243632

Place - Chennai
Date : 28/05/2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P. MANOHAR

Director
DIN : DB389898

KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Diractor
DIN : 00091466



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 1. Corporate Information

The EIMCO - K.C.P. Lidis a Process Technology Company and leading manufacturer of Liguid - Solid
Separation equipment for Industrial and Environmenlal Applications: Thickening, Clarification,
Classification, Vacuum Filtration, Aeration Systems etc.

The EIMCO - K.C.P. Lidwas established in 1967 and has more than 25,000 installations worldwide. The
EIMCOQ - K.C.P. Lidis a wholly owned subsidiary of K.C.P. SUGAR AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED

The financial statemenis were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 28/05/2025.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance:

The financial stalements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounlting
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting
standard is initially adopted ar a revision to an existing accounting requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a hislorical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

(e} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabllities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the years presented.
Aclual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

In particular, Information aboul significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements pertain to:

e  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has
estimated useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated
usage of the assel, the operaling condition of the assel, pas! history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and Intangible assels al the Balance Sheet date. This reassessmenl may
result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

. Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assels are tested for
impairment when evenis occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value, The recoverable amount of
cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell, The calculation
involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turmover and earnings
multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-
adjusted discount rate, fulure economic and market conditions.

. Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable
that deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax
assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business
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THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
CIN: U27209TN1367PLC005550

plans, including management's expeclations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of
the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred lax liabilities
or the valuation of deferred tax assets and there the tax charge in the statement of profit or
[ol::H

Provision for tax liabilities require Judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation,
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may
be subject lo significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectalions
resulting in adjustments o provisions. the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash lax settlemenls
and therefore the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

e  Fair value measurement of derivative and other financial instruments: The fair value of
financial instruments that are nol traded in an aclive market is determined by using valuation
technigues. This involves significant judgements to select a variely of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on markel conditions exisling at the Balance Sheel dale.

. Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision
for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when
evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfaverable outcome and the ability to
make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed
at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

. Defined benefit plans: The cosl of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the
defined bensfit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit cradit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation ad its
long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive lo changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(d) Revenue recognition :

Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, relurns and discounts.
Sales Revenue is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed lo the buyer being the point of despatch. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable. Sales are nel of discount and rebates.

Revenue on rendering of the service, is recognised on completion of services on pervasive evidence
of an arrangemenl exists, rates are fixed or are determinable and collectability is reasonably certain.

Interest

Interest income Is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend Iincome is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.
(e} Employee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

I.  Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary which is recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. Amounts collected under
the provident fund plan are deposited with government administered provident fund. The
company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contribution.
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plans, including management's expeclations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of
the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred lax liabilities
or the valuation of deferred tax assets and there the tax charge in the statement of profit or
[ol::H

Provision for tax liabilities require Judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation,
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may
be subject lo significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectalions
resulting in adjustments o provisions. the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash lax settlemenls
and therefore the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

e  Fair value measurement of derivative and other financial instruments: The fair value of
financial instruments that are nol traded in an aclive market is determined by using valuation
technigues. This involves significant judgements to select a variely of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on markel conditions exisling at the Balance Sheel dale.

. Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision
for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when
evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfaverable outcome and the ability to
make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed
at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

. Defined benefit plans: The cosl of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the
defined bensfit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit cradit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation ad its
long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive lo changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(d) Revenue recognition :

Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, relurns and discounts.
Sales Revenue is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed lo the buyer being the point of despatch. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable. Sales are nel of discount and rebates.

Revenue on rendering of the service, is recognised on completion of services on pervasive evidence
of an arrangemenl exists, rates are fixed or are determinable and collectability is reasonably certain.

Interest

Interest income Is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend Iincome is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.
(e} Employee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

I.  Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary which is recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. Amounts collected under
the provident fund plan are deposited with government administered provident fund. The
company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contribution.
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(f)

ii. Gratuity Fund

The Company makes annual contributions to gratulty funds administered by the truslees for
amounts notified by the funds. The Gratuity plan provides for lump sum payment to vested
employees on retiremenl, death or termination of employment of an amount based on the
respective employee’s last drawn salary and tenure of employment. The Company accounts
for the net present value of its obligations for gratuity benefits, based on an independent
acluarial valuation, determined on the basis of the projected unit credit method, carried out
as at the Balance Sheel dale. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the
other comprehensive income and reflected in retained eamings and will not be reclassified
to the statement of profit and loss.

ili. Compensated Absences
The Company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability for
which Is determined on the basis of an scheme operated in the company using the projected
unit credit method, carried out at the Balance Sheel date.

iv. Other Employee Benefits:
Other benefits, comprising of discretionary Long Service Awards and Leave Travel

Allowances, are delermined on an undiscounted basis and recognised based on entitlement

thereof.
V. Superannuation Fund

Contributiont defined benefit scheme with LIC towards retirement bensfit in the form of
superannuation Is recognised as expenses in the statement of prafit and loss during the period in
which employee renders the related service

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost, Cost includes the acquisition cost
or the cost of construction, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), expenses
directly related {o the location of assets and making them operational for their intended use and,
in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs (refer note no. 2(p) below). Initial
eslimate shall also Include costs of dismantling and removing the item and resloring the sile on
which it is located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An assels’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assel's
carrying amount is greater that its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to wrile off the cost of assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
written down method The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospeciive basis.

In respect of Leasehold Buildings, depreciation on buildings on leased properties is based on the
tenure which is lower of the life of the buildings or the expecled lease period. Improvements to
buildings are depreciated on the basis of their estimated useful lives,

Assels under finance leases as depreciated over the expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assels. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by
lhe end of the lease lerm, assels are deprecialed over lhe shorter of the lease lerm and their
useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
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between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment's are
not yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software and designs, and coslt incurred for development
of the company's firewall and other firewall support services. Intangible assets are initially measured
al acquisition cost including any direclly attribulable cosls lor ils intended use.

Expenditure on projects which are nol yet ready for intended use are carried as intangible assets
under development.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assel may be impaired.
The amortisation periods are reviewed and impairment evaluation are carried out at least once a
year. The estimated useful life used for amortising intangible assets are as under:

Class of Assets Estimated useful life

Software & allied equipment 5 Years

An intangible assel is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefils are expected
from use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assel, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset, and are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

(g) Impairment of assets:

Assets thal have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for Impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounl may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased lo the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, bul so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recoghized immediately in Statement of Prafit and Loss.

(h) Foreign Currency Translation :
Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying o the foreign
currency amaunt the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

(1)

i)

(k)

(1)

Subsequent Recognition

As atthe reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rates thal existed when the values were the fair value
measured.

All monetary assets and liabllities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period.
Exchange differences on restatement of other manetary items are recognised in the Slatement of
Profit and Loss.’

Assets taken on lease:

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanlially all
the risk and rewards of ownership to lhe lessee. All the other leases are classified as operaling
leases.

Operaling lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis, unless another basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefils
received from the use of the assels taken on lease or the payments of lease rentals are in line with
the expecled general inflation compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

Assets held under finance lease are capitalised at the inception of the lease, with corresponding
liability being recognised for the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of the lease
liability and finance charges in the statement of Profit or Loss so as to achieve a constant rate of
Interest an the remaining balance of the liability. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted Average basis) or net realizable
value. Cost include the cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those refundable),
inward freight, and other expenditure directly atiributable to the purchase. Trade discounls, rebates
and benefils are deducted in determining the cost of purchase. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for the inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
lo make Lhe sale.

Finished goods and Work in Progress include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories 1o their present location and condition,

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised in the period to which they relate when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the Company will comply with the attached
conditions

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred lax assel
or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, excepl when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred lax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in eguity, respectiveiy.
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(i) Current tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounled in the same period to which the revenue and expenses
ralate, Provision for current income tax is made or the tax liabilily payable on taxable income
after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seltle the asset and the
liability on & net basis.

(i) Deferred tax :

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach, Deferred Income tax
assets and liabilities are recegnised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
hetween the tax base of assels and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the Initial recognition of goodwill, an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available againsl which the deduclible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences except
in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed al each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient laxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred Income lax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabllities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to sel off
current tax assels against current tax liabilitles and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same laxation authority and the Company intends to satlie its current tax assetls and
liabiliies on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") credil is recognized as an assel only when and to the
extent there Is reasonable certainty thal the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount
of the MAT credit asset is written down {o the extent there is no longer a reasonable certainty
to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

(m) Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
when a reliable estimate of the amount of the abligation can be made. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, the provision is discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments af the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation and the unwinding
of the discount is recognised as interest expense. Liabllity in respect of delivery guarantees is
recognized in accounts in the year in which delay occurs as per the contract.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly
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(n)

(o)

(P)

(q)

(r)

within the control of the Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of
future oulflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannol be made. Cbligations
are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources
are provided for.

Contingent assels are not recognized in the financial statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalent (for the purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the dale of acquisition), highly
liquid investiments that are readily convertible into knewn amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
recelpts or payments. Cash flow for the year are classified by operating, investing and financing
activities.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax
effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year including potential equity shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted
eamnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax {including the posl-tax effecl
of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, Interest and other charges to expense or
income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting:

The Company identifies operaling segmenis based on the internal reporting provided to the chief
opetraling decision-maker,

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the committee that makes strategic
decisions,

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have
been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined
based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabllities which relate to the
Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included
under “unallocated revenue [ expenses [ assets/liabilities”,

Financial Instruments:
Financial Assets.
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amorlised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characterisfics of the financial
asset,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

Initial Recognition and measurement:

All financial assels (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or logs) are recognised
initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Debl instruments al amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ Is measured al lhe amortised cosl if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual tarms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After Initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium and fees or cosls that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included In finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and
advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) calegory are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Derecognition

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) Is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

- The rights lo receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

fa) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company conlinues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing invelvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associaled liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis thal reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Conlinuing invelvemenl thal lakes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment lass on the following financial assefs and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b)  Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance
Sheet date, right from is Initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured al amortised cost, except
for financlal liabilities al fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that
are liabililies, shall be subsequently measured al fair value

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised nitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contraclts and derivative financial instruments,

Derecognilion

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an exisling financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is lreated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, The difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in the Slalement
of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument Is any contract thal evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducling all of its liabilities. Equity Instruments Issued by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received, nel of direcl issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equily.
No gain or loss Is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instrumants.
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=

4 — Other Intangible Assets

Amount in Lakhs unless othorwiss sfatod

Particulars Computer Software Total
Cost or Valuation
As at 31" March 2023 (At Cost) 3.97 3.87
Additions during the year = .
As at 31" March 2024 (At Cost) 1.97 3.97
Additions during the year 10.50 10.50
Amortization and Impairment
As at 31% March 2023 (At Cost)
Amortization for the year 0.92 0.92
As at 31 March 2024 (At Cost) = =
Amaortization for the year (.43 7.45
As at 31" March 2025 (At Cost) 8.37 8.37
Met Book Value
As at 31" March 2025 6.10 6.10
As at 31" March 2024 3.05 .
4 A- Imangible Assets under Development
Computer
Description St Total
As at March 31, 2023 ( At Cost) 46.67 46.67
Additions during the year 18.58 18.58
Deletions during the year - .
As at March 31, 2024 ( At Cost) 65.25 §5.25
Addilions during the year 2114 21 14
Deletions during the year 1.10 1.10
As at March 31, 2025 ( At Cost) 85.30 85.30
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule
Intangible assets Amount in CWIP for a period of
under dﬂ"h"ﬂlﬂp“’l—ﬂﬂt Less than 1.9 YEEII"S 2.9 YE'ET'E MDI’E lhﬂn Total
1 year 3 Years
Projects in progress- 20.04 16.58 - 46.67 65.30
Computer Software
Projects temporarily - - 2 g
suspended
Intangible assets under development completion schedule
Intangible assets T bie:complesad Mt
under development | L@ss than 1-9Years | 2-9Years | Morethan Tolal
1 year J Years
Computer Software 85.30 = - - 85.30
5 - Non-Current Investments
As at March As at March
Revicuiate 31, 2025 31, 2024
Investment in Partnership firm (Quality Engineering Works) 700.84 701.73
Public Deposit with KCP Sugar and Industries Corparation Limited a50.00 450.00
Total 1,650.84 1,151.73
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

Additional Information : Amaunt i Lakhs unless otfrrwize stated
Name of the partners, their share and their capital in Quality Engineering Works (Firm)
Capital Share Capital Share
Name of the Pastners hoShare |, at 31.03.2025)|(As at 31.03.2024)
The EIMCO - K.C.P. Ltd. 99.60% 700.84 701,73
KCP Sugars Agricultural Researchs Farms Limited 0.40% 2,73 2.3
Total 100% 703.57 704.46
6 - Other Financial Assets (Non-current)
As at March As at March
Paticuiars 31, 2025 3, 2024
Long Term Security Deposit 6.07 6.57
7 - Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
; As at March As at March
Particutars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liability
On account of fair value gain on investment 25.74 2983
Sub Total 25.74 2.93
Deferred tax Assets
Property, Plant & Equipmentl 16.23 14.03
On account of timing differences in recognition of expenditure 33.50 24.46
Sub Total 49,73 38.49
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 23.99 35.56
Tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss
B | As at March As at March
articulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Current income tax
Currenl year 589.28 253.25
Sub Total (A) 586.28 253.25
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 20.29 (4.95)
Change in accounting policy
Sub Total (B) 20.29 (4.95)
Total (A+B) 606,57 248.30
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income included in the above
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Defined benefit plan acturial gains (losses) (8.72) 2.93
Total (8.72) 293
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8 - Other Non Current Asset

Amounl! in Lakhs uniess olherwise staled

Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Income 1ax refund receivable - -
Total - -
9 - Inventories
As at March As at March
i
resicusn 31, 2025 31, 2024
Raw malerials and components 447.83 535.52
Work in Progress 354.58 816.50
Finished goods” 323.55 254,71
Loose tools 2.11 2.33
Total 1,127.87 1,609.05
For mode of valuation, refer accounting policies 2(j)
10 - Investments(Current)
; As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Investments in Mutual funds 3.,048.51 3,101.35
Total 3,048.51 3,101.35
11 - Trade Receivables
As at March As at March
PGl 31, 2025 31, 2024
Unsecured Consldered good 3,991.04 1,859.26
Considered Doubtful 37.03 44.11
Less: 4,028.06 1,.903.37
Impairment for Trade recelvable under expected credit loss model (37.03) (44.11)
Total 3,991.04 1,859.26
Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31.03.2025
Cutstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 | & months - 1.2 2-3 | More than| Total
months 1 year years years 3 years
(i) Undsputed Trade Receivables - considered good 3300.58 247 .00 114.45 7547 203.55 | 3991.04
(il Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant Increase (n credil risk
(iil) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 6.02 .39 2262| 37.08
{iv} Disputed Trade Recelvables~ considerad good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables— which have significant
increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Recelvables - credit Impalred
Total 3300.58 297.00 120.48 | 83.85| 226.17 | 4028.06
Less Impairment for Trade recelvable under expecled - - .02 8.39 22621 37.03
credt loss mode
Total 3300.58 297.00 114.45 1547 203,55 | 3991.04
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Amount im Lakhs urless otherwise sloted

Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31.03,2024

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

Cutstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Particulars Cessthan®d | 6months- | 1-2 2-3 | Moethan| Tolal
minths 1 year y&ars jears | 3 years
(I} Undtsputed Trade Receivables - considered good 1185.65 233.44 8212 | 31210 4585 (185926
i) Undisputed Trade Recelvabies - which have
sianificant Increase in credi risk
(iil] Undisputed Trade Recelvables — credi! Impaired 4.32 34.68 5.1 44.11
(I} Disputed Trade Recelvables- considered good
(v] Disputed Trade Receivabias - which hava significant
incraase i credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired
Total 1185.65 do.d4q | 346,78 51.08 |1903.37
Less |mpalrmenl for Trade recelvable under expectad 4,32 4.68 5.11 4.1
credil loss model
Tolal 1185.65 82.12 | 31210 4595 |1859.26
12 - Cash and cash equivalents
As at March As at March
silee Dy 31, 2025 31, 2024
|) Balances with banks:
-In current accounts 218,68 46.31
-In Fixed Depaosits = "
i) Cash on hand 0.17 1.59
Total 219.45 47.91
13 - Bank Balances other than Schedule 12 above
As at March As at March
EAs 31, 2025 31, 2024
Bank Balances held as Margin Money Deposits against 426.27 362.12
guarantees issued by the bank
Total 426.27 368.12
14 < Other Financial Assets (Current)
As at March As at March
Particilers 31, 2025 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good,
- Loans and Advances to Employees 1.66 3.86
- Interest accured on Fixed Deposit . -
Total 1.66 3.86
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15 - Other Current Assets

Amount in Lakhs unless athorwise siafod

M |
Unsecured considered good
GST Inpul credits etc., with government authorities 35.88 139.66
Prepaid Expenses - 0.16
Advances to Supplier 146.00 453.04
Travel Advance 012 0.88
Total 181.99 593.74
16 - Equity Share Capital
A |
Authorised Share Capital
10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 100.00 100.00
Total 100.00 100.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid UP
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 60.00 60.00
Total 60.00 60.00

16.1 Movement in respect of Equity Shares is given below :

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
No's. Amount In Lakhs No's. Amount in Lakhs
Al the beginning of the period 6,00,000 60.00 6,00,000 60.00
(+) lssued during lthe period - - - -
(-) Redeemed during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period | 6,00,000 60.00 | 6.00,000 60.00

16.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

voling rights proportionate to their share holding at the meetings of shareholders.

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

16.3 Details of Shareholdings of Holding Companies

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. The holders
of the equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the
remaining assets of the company , after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No's. % of holding No's. % of holding
K C P SUGAR & INDUSTRIES 6,00,000 100% | 6,00,000 100%
CORPORATION LTD
Total 6,00,000 100% | 6,00,000 100%
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Amourt in Lakhs unless otherwisa sfated

16.4 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No's. % of holding No's. % of holding
K C P SUGAR & INDUSTRIES 6,00,000 100% | 6,00,000 100%
CORPORATION LTD
Total 6,00,000 100% 6,00,000 100%
16.5 Details of Shares held by Promoters
e 01 Changes
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 dufing
No's. % of holding No's, % of holding the year
K CPSUGAR & INDUSTRIES 6,00,000 100% 6,00,000 100% Nil
CORPORATIONLTD
Total 6,00,000 100% 6,00,000 100%
17 Other Equity
As at March 31, 2025
Reserves and Surplus | Other Components
Sarttcul of Equity
o General | Retained Remeasurement Total
Reserve | Eamnings of Net Defined
benefit Liability/ Asset
Balance as at April 01,2024 113.01 6,217.79 (8.11) | 6,322.69
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - | 1.656.08 - | 1,656.08
| Otther Commprefiensive Ingoms oy tis Yoer : : LHAR) | Leava)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 113.01 7,873.86 (34.03) | 7,952.84
As at March 31, 2024
Reserves and Surplus | Other Components
of Equity
Parti
ArCHies General | Retained Remeasurement Total
Reserve | Earnings of Net Defined
benefit Liability/ Asset
Balance as al Apnl 01, 2023 113.01 5.138.37 (16.83) | 5,234.56
Profit/{Loss) for the period 1,079.41 - | 1,079.41
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - 8.72 8.72
Balance as at March 31,2024 113.01 6,217.79 (8.11) | 6,322.69
18 - Provisions(Non Current)
As at March As at March
Papticulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits -
- Leave Encashment 99.94 97.18
Provisians for Liquidated Damages 967,12 774.00
Total 1,067.06 871.18
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19 - Other Non Current Liablilites

Amount in Lakhs unless oftharwise siated

As at March As at March
Rardculars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Advances received from cuslomers (Long term) - 84.67
Total . 84.67
20 - Trade Payables
As at March As at March
Particulms 31, 2025 31, 2024
Trade payables
- Dues 1o Micro and Small Enterprices { Refer Nole 386) - 58.65
- Others 896.54 729.61
Total 896.59 788.26
Trade Payable aging schedule as at March 31, 2025
Outstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Partic. s Less than 1 1-2 2103 Maore than Total
Year years years 3 years
(i) MSME - . = x =
(i) Others 877.35 1.64 3.48 14.13 896.59
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv] Disputed dues - Others . - - - -
Trade Payable aging schedule as at March 31, 2024
Dutstanding for following periods fromdue date of payment
Particulars Lessthan1 | 1-2 | 2t03 | Morethan | 1.
Year years years 3 years
(i) MSME 58.65 . - . 58.65
(i) Others 707.32 8.13 8.90 5.26 729,61
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - . . ; .
(iv) Disputed dues - Others . : ] 2
21 - Other Financial Liabilities
As at March As at March
Particulars
31, 2025 31, 2024
Payable to Employees 6.87 7.08
Total 6.87 7.08
22 - Other Current Liabilities
Particul As at March As at March
articulars 31, 2025 31,2024
Statutory Liabilities 98 97 g 27
Advance from customers 1.066.66 1.227 .85
Other Current Liabilities 0.55 0.28
Total 1,096.18 1,237.35
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Amournt in Lakhs unfess otherwise slalad

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conro.,

23 - Provision(Short Term)

As at March As at March
Particulars 34, 2025 31, 2024
Provision for Employee benefits 38.72 6.40
Provision for Defect Liability period 115.29 85.08
Total 154.01 91.49
24 - Current Tax Liabilities
As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Provision for Income tax (Net) 263.62 18.69
Total 263.62 18.69
25 - Revenue From Operations
Year Ended Year Ended
Particul
i March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Sale of Products
- Domestic 7.084.80 3,468.74
-SEZ 125.34 02.47
- Deemed export 8.71 313.70
- Export 1,992.84 2,188.33
Sale of Services
- Domestic 106.22 336.57
-SEZ 0.42 37.20
- Export 172.51 14 .61
Other operating revenue 10.94 18.43
Total 9.501.79 6,471.05
26 - Other Income
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest income from financial asset 99.51 55.66
Dividend Income from Mutual Funds - J2.72
Profit share from partnership firm - 111.33
Duty Drawback Incentive 29.32 23.88
Difference in Foreign Exchange 33.85 463
Provision no longer required withdrawn 229.70 259,55
Credit Balance Written Back 85.20 AT 70
Motional increase in Fair value of Mutual Fund Investment 102.28 185.06
Excess provision written back on expected credit loss as per IND AS 7.08 24.67
Excess warranty provision written back as per IND AS - 24.45
Miscellaneous Receipts 5.38 24.28
Profit on Sale of Assels 0.16 0.89
Profit on redeemption of mutual fund 119.04 -
Packing & Forwarding Charges 1467 14 66
Total 726.28 819.48
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27 - Cost of materials Consumed

Amaount in Lakhs uniags olharwise statad

Year Ended Year Ended
PAsGars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Opening Balance
Raw Materials and Components 535.52 658.19
Add: Cost of
Raw Materials and Components 4 143.22 2.886.30
Less Closing Stock
Raw Materials and Componenis 447 .63 535.52
Total 4.231.11 3,008.96
28 - Changes in Inventories of Finlshed Goods , Work-in-Progress and stock In trade
Particulare Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance
Work in Progress 816.50 516.41
Finished goods 254.71 869.40
Less Closing Balance
Work in Progress (354.58) (816.50)
Finished Goods (323.55) (254.71)
Total 393,08 314.60
29 - Employee benefits expense
Year Ended Year Ended
Rl March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 86061 738.78
Contribution to provident and other funds 378.86 177.23
Staff welfare expenses 80.82 61,50
Total 1,320.29 977.61
30 - Finance Cost
; Year Ended Year Ended
Pastculrs March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Bank Guarantee Commission and other charges 51.08 68.70
Total 51.98 68.70
31 - Depreciation and Amortisation
Year Ended Year Ended
—— March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Depreciation / Amortisation for the year
- Tangible Assets 66.05 45.52
- Intangible Assels 7.45 0.92
Total 73.50 46.44
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32 - Other expenses Amount in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
: Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Manufacturing Expenses:
Fabrication Charges 475.46 446.76
Contract Labour Charges 46.73 36.71
Power and Fuel 27.80 26.23
Repairs and maintanence
- Workshop 16.72 20.82
- Machinery 0.27 0.12
- Others 0.93 14.18
Insurance 3.17 3.25
Research , inspection and testing charges 7.15 10.42
Loss from Partnership firm (.89 -
Performance and delivery guarantee claims 430.30 213.83
Warranty Provision 30.21 -
Administration Expenses:
Rental charges 26.40 21.48
Office Maintenance 27.18 20.99
Rales and laxes 12.38 8,78
Payment made {o audilors (Refer note below) 1.66 1.66
Legal, Technical and Professional Charges 200.39 158.15
Security Charges 76.83 71.43
Telephone Charges 8.82 9,32
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 18.70 15.50
Car Hire Charges 30.88 26.89
Interest, late fees and Others 2.35 4.66
Irrecoverable loans and advances written off 4.68 4.76
Selling Expenses:
Packing and forwarding charges 35.72 18.63
Carriage outwards 142.05 172.28
Travel and conveyance 28.55 22.45
Travelling hotel expenses 15.99 23.81
Travelling-Foreign 27.91 Q.80
Sarvice charges and commission 20.54 63.77
Other selling expenses 34.66 27.73
Import of Services (Sales Commission & Other Services) 99.57 62.65
Miscellaneous expenses 40.60 32.40
Total 1,895.48 1,549.75
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Payment made to statutory auditors :

i. As auditors 1.50 1.50

ii. For taxation matters - -
jil. For other services 0.05 0.05
iv. For reimbursement of expenses 0.1 011
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33. Sale of Products and Rendering of Services:

Amaunt in Lakhs urless otharwlse staled

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Sales:
Fillers
Numbers 9 Nos 6 Mos
Value 3664.92 879.54
Thickeners, Components,Spares, Bar screens, elc. 5546.77 5184.70
(Unitguantification not possible)
Scrap 10.94 18.43
Total 9222.63 6082.67
Services:
Service Charges 259.16 164.44
Design, Erection & Fabrication 20,00 203.84
Total 279.16 388.38
Total (Sales and Services) 9501.79 6471.05
33.1 Major Raw Materials consumed
2024-25 2023-24
Particulars MT Value MmT Value
in Rs. in Rs.
Stainless Steel 40.82 109.47 77.78 191,28
Iron and Steel 75.73 57.02 102 80 79.53
Total 116.55 166.46 180.38 270.79

33.2 Particulars regarding Capacity and Production:

The Business carried on by the company does not require any Industrial Licence. Owing o the nature
of the company's Business the installed Capacity cannot be quantified. Actual Production: 9 Nos.(PY.
6 Nos.) Filters, besides Washers, Classifiers, Clanfiers, Components, Spares eic.

34.1 Contingent Liabilities:

The Guarantees Issued by the Company’s Bankers in favour of the customers against advances from
them and other obligations amounting to Rs. 2178.22 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 2807.58 Lakhs) are securad by
hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, as primary security and entire fixed
assels as collateral security.

34.2. Pending Litigations:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact the financial positian.
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_ : Amount in Lakhs unless otherwise staled
35. Additional information regarding expenditure/earnings in foreign currency:

aaiia Padioutans oz | ook
A Expenditure in Foreign currency on:
(i) Salary and allowance . :
(ii) Tours and Travels 27.91 7.12

(iil) Commission paid on Export sales - -

(iv) Reimbursement of Expenses on Product

Representation in abroad - -

(v) Repair Works - -

(vi) Seminar and Conference

(vil) Import of Materials/ Equipment (CIF Value)
a. Capital goods - -
b, Componants and spares 85349 27.39
. Finished goods/Semi Finished goods
d. Raw Materials

e. Import of Services 899.57 62.65
B Earnings in Foreign Exchange:
(i) On account of Exports 2165.34 2203.94

36. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31 st March 2025:

S.No. . As at March | As at March
— 31,2025 | 31,2024
1 Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:

a) Principal Amount - 58.65
b) Interest due thereon - -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conro.,

2 Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Nil il
Medium Enterprises Developmenl Agl, 2006, along with the amount pald o
the supplier beyand the appainted day;

3 Amount of Interest dus and payable for the period of delay in making Nil il
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

4 Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Mil

5 Amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding Nil Nl
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterpnse, for the purpose of disaliowance as a deduchble expenditure
under saction 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006.
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Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards

37. Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financlal Instruments
37.1 Financial Instruments by Categories
The carrying value and fair value of financial instrumenls by calegories were as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

Amount in Lakhs as of March 31, 2025

Financial assets/ | Financial assets/
Particulars Amortized liabilities at fair liabilities at fair
cost value through value through
profit or loss 0OClI
Assets:
Nan-Current Investments 1650.84
Current Investments 3048.51 |
Current Trade Receivables 3991.04 |
Cash & Cash Equivalents 219.45 |
Other Bank Balances 426.27 |
Other Non-Current Financial 6.07
Assets (Security Deposit)
Other Current Financial Assels 1.66 |
Liabilities: |
Other Financial Liabilities 6.87 |
Wnrl-ci_ng Capital Loans - |
Trade Payables 896.59 |
Amount in Lakhs as of March 31, 2024
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
Particulars Amortized liabilities at fair liabilities at fair
cost value through value through
profit or loss OCI
Assets.
Non-Current Invesiments 1181.73
Current Investments 3101.35
Current Trade Receivables 1859.26
Cash & Cash Equivalents 47.91
Other Bank Balances 362.12
Other Non-Current Financial 6.57
Assels (Securily Deposil)
Other Current Financial Assets 3.86
Liabilities:
Other Financial Liabilities 7.08
Working Capital Loans 5
Trade Payables 788.26
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37.2 Fair Value Hierarchy
. Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assel or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

37.3 Valuation Technigque used to determine Fair Value:
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
. Use of quoted market prices for Listed instruments
37.4 The following tables present fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
Amount in lakhs
For the year 31, 2024
Level 2 | Level 3 Total

Far the year 31, 2025
Level2 | Level3 Total

Particulars

Level 1 Level 1

Financial
Assets

Investments in
Quoted Mutual
Funds

3048.51 . 3048.51 | 3101.35 - - 3101.35

38. Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose o limited financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk.
The Company's primary focus Is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to
minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fulure earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may resull
from a change in the price of a financial instrument.

The company Is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency
risk), Interest rate risk and the market value of its investments.

Securities Prices Risk:

The company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from Investments held and classified
in the Balance Sheet as Fair Value through P&L. The company has investment in the form of
Mutual funds and Equily shares, The company menitors the movemenl in the value of the
Investments by observing the NAV.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial
loss. It principally arises from the Company's Trade Receivables, Advances and deposit(s) made.

Trade receivables

The company has outslanding trade recaivables amounting o Rs.4028.07 Lakhs and Rs,1803.37 Lakhs
as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured are
derived from revenue eamed from customers, Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The company is not exposed to concentration of cradit
rsk to any one single customer, Default onaccount of Trade Receivables happens when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payment when they fall due.
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Credit risk exposure:
An analysis of age of trade receivables at each reporting date is summarized as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars -
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
0 to 180 days 3271.55 - 1185.65 -
180 days and more 756.52 37.03 T17.72 4411

Trade receivables are impaired in the year when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the
recovery analysis performed by the company for individual trade receivables. The company considers
that all the above financial assels that are notimpaired for each reporting dates under review are of good
credil quality,

Liquidity Risk

Qur liguldity needs are monitored on the basis of monthly and yearly projections. The company's principal
sources of liguidity are cash and cash equivalents, cash generaled from operations, and Contribution in
the form of share capital,

The company manage our liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inflows and by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash requirements are compared o available cash In order to
determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirements consist mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable, employee dues,
and deposits arising during the normal course of business as of each reporting date. The company
maintain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet our short-term liquidity requirements.

Long term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage them through internal accruals. Qur
non-current liabllities include Retentions & deposits.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rales may have polential impact on the stalement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and equity, where any transaction references more than one
currency or where assets / liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the respective entities.

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Group operates, |ts operations are
subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate
to fluctuations in US Dollar, Great Britain Pound against the Indian Rupees.

The company evaluales the impact of foreign exchange rale fluctuations by assessing ils exposure 1o
exchange rate risks. It hedges a part of these risks by using derivative financial instruments in line with
its risk management policies.

The foreign exchange rale sensilivity is calculated by aggregalion of the nel foreign exchange rate
exposure and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shif of all the currencies by 5% against the
Indian Rupees.

The lollowing analysis has been worked oul based on the net exposures for the company as of the dale
of statements of financial position which could affect the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and equity, Further the exposure as indicated below is mitigated by some of the
derivative contracts enlered into by the company
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The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure as of March 31, 2025

Assels
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
USD 290930 BO0O8OT7
SGD - -
CAD 439891 24000

5% appreciation / depreciation of the respeclive foreign currencies with respect o Indian Rupees would
result in decrease / increase in the company’s profit before tax as detailed in table below:

USD & CAD sensitivity at year end As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Receivables:

If INR rate over Other currency increases by 5% (25.10) (33.36)
If INR rate over Other currency decrease by 5% 2510 33.36

39. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 “Employee Benefits”
39.1 General description of various defined employee’s benefits schemes are as under:
a) Provident Fund:

The company's Provident Fund I1s managed by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, The
company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate.

b) Gratuity:

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan, provided in respect of past services based on the actuarial valuation
carried out by LIC of India and corresponding contribution to the fund is expensed In the year of
such contribution,

The scheme is funded by the company and the liability is recognized on the basis of contribution
payable to the insurer, i.e., the Life Insurance Corporation of India, however, the disclosure of
information as required under Ind AS-19 have been made in accordance with the actuarial valuation.

c) Superannuation Fund

Contribution to defined contribution scheme with LIC towards retiremenl benefit in the form of
Superannuation is recognised as expense In the slatement of Profit and Loss during the periad in
which employee renders the related sarvice.

39.2 The summarized position of various defined benefils recognized in the Slalement of Profil & Loss,
Other Comprehensive Income (OCIl) and Balance Sheet & other disclosures are as under:

Grat oli

Movement in defined benefit obligation:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Defined benefit obligation - Beginning of the year 129.22 126.32
Currenl service cosl 0.80 8.55
Interest Cost 0.10 0.16
Past Service Cost . -
Benefils Paid - (3.16)
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/(gain) 34 .64 (11.65)
Defined benefit obligation — End of the year 164.82 128.22
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Movement in plan asset:
(Amount in Lakhs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 140.49 130.51
Employer contributions - 3.77
Benefits paid - (3.16)
Re-measurements — Return on plan assets 24.32 Q.37
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/{gain) - -
Fair value of plan assets al end of year 180.23 140.49
Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Current service cosl 0.86 B.55
Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit Liabllity/{assets) 0.10 9.16
Expected return on plan assets (24.32) (9.37)
Cost Recognized in P&L 11.28 8.33
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to assumption changes (34.64) (11.65)
Difference between Actual Return and Interest i )
Income on Plan Assets- (gain)/loss
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in OCI (34.64) (11.65)

Actuarial Assumption

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Discount Rate 7.25% 7.25%,
Rate of Salary increase 5% 5%

Category of investment in Plan assets

Category of Investment

% of fair value of plan assets

insurance Policies 100%

Operating Leases

Operating Lease Disclosures — As per Ind AS No. 17

Rentexpenses of Rs. 27.40 Lakhs (PY Rs.21.00 Lakhs)in respect of obligation under operating
leases have been recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. There are no future obligations in
respect of the operating lease
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41. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Parties Disclosures”
41.1 Key Managerial Personnel

Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi

Ms.Kiran Velagapudi
Mr.P Manohar
41.2 Related Parties:
Holding Company: K.C.P. Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited,

Partnership Firm. Quality Engineering Works - Thuvakudi -Trichy

a. Transactions during the year:
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel or their Relalives

(Amount in Lakhs)
S|.No.| Particulars 31.03.2025( 31.03.2024

1 | Rentpald to Holding Company: KCP Sugar and Industries Corporation Lid., 23.40 18.00
2 | Purchases and Services received from Holding Company:

KCP Sugar and Industries Corporation Lid., 1398.42 | 1320.88
3 | Sales/Services Provided loHolding Company: KCP Sugar and Industries _

Corporation Lid 3.22 U.22
4 | Interes! recaived from Holding Company: KCP Sugar and Industnes 7315 34.00

Corporation Ltd, towards the Fixed Deposits ' '
5 | Remuneration Paid to Whole Time Director: Smt.Irmgard Velagapud| 28 00 24 00
6 | Remuneratin Paid to Whole Time Director: Smt. Kiran Velagapudi 5.60 -
7 | Salary Paid to Whole Time Director: Shri.P.Manohar 50.00 48.75
g | Purchases/Services received from Partnership Firm: Quality Engineering

Warks- Thuvakudi ~Trichy i 19798
g | Sales/ Services provided lo Partership Firm: Quality Engineering 0.27 5.95

Works - Thuvakudi - Trichy
10 | Rent paid toPartnership Firm: Quality Engineering Works- Thuvakudi -Trichy 3.00 3.00

b. Cumulative balances outstanding as on 31" March 2025:
In Holding Comapny: K C P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Trade Payable 169.85 121.75
Trade Receivable - -
Public Deposits in KCP Sugar and Industries Corporation Itd, 950.00 450.00

¢. Cumulative balances outstanding as on 31 March 2025
In Partnership firm: Quality Engineering Works-Thuvakudi -Trichy

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Balance in Partner Capital Account — Debit Balance 700.84 701.73
Trade Payable 1.52

Advance against supply of service




d. The Eimco-KCP Limited is having control (99.60%) over the affairs of Quality Engineering
Works (Partnership Firm)

Quality Engineering Works- Thuvakudi- Trichy - Financial Information
{Amount in Lakhs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cono.)

S.no Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
(Audited) (Audited)
1. Reporting period for the related party 01.04.2024 to 07.04.2023 to
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
2. Reporting Currency Indian Rupees Indian Rupees
J. Capital 703.57 704 .46
4, Reserves & Surplus - -
9. Total Assels 734 .87 724 .46
6. Total Liabilities 734.87 724 46
[ Turnover 104.80 160.28
8.  Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (0.90) 14,59
9. Provision for Taxation - 4,55
10.  Profit after Taxation {0.80) 10.04
11. % of Share Holding 99.60% 99.60%
42. Disclosure of CSR Activities
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
i) Amount required to be spent by the company 18.70 14.75
during the year
i)  Amount of expenditure incurred 18.70 15.50
i) Shortfall at the end of the year NIL NIL
iv) Total of previous year shortfall NA NA
v) Reason for shorifall NA NA
vi) Nature of CSR Contributions lo Contributions to
various registered | various registered
trusts trusts
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43. Ratios.
st | st
Name of the Ratio Numerator Denominator March| March| % Reason
2025 | 2024 | change
Current Ratig Current Assel Current Liabilities 372 | 354 5%"
Return an Equity Net Profit alter taxes - | Average Shareholder's 0.23 | 0.18 24%,
Ralio Preference Dividend | Equity
Inventory Turnover | Sales Average Inventory 6.73 | 3.32 | 1039% [Due toincreasa in
Tumover and reduction
Ratio In Avarage Inventory
Trade Receivable Credit Sales Average Accounls 3.20 | 377 | (15%)
Turnover Ratio Receivable
Trade Payable Credit Purchase Average Accounts Payables | 4.92 | 4.31 14%
Tumover Ratio
Nel Capital Tumover | Net sales = Tolal Average Workingcaptal= | 0.79 | 0.35 | 127% | Due io increase in
Ralio Sales-salesrelurn | Curent Assets - Current Tumever
Liabilities
Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after fax Met Sales = Total 017 | 047 4%
Sales-Sales Relumn
Return on Capital Eamings before interest| Total Assets - current 025 | 0.18 38% | Due o Increase in
employed and taxes Liabifities + Current Prafil
Barrowings
Return on Investment | Income generaled from | Average investments 0.07 | 0.09 | (16%)
Investments

Note: Debl service coverage ratio& Debt equity ratio is not applicable to the company

*Debtors collections improved compared to previous year.

“*Increase in turnover with a negligible increase in working capital has resulted in an
improvement in the ratio.

44. Segment Reporting [Refer Annexure - 1]

45. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 “Earnings Per Share (EPS)"
Basic and Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic
EPS and Basic EPS is as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2025 2024

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the owners 1656.08 1079.41
of the company
Earnings used in calculation of basic earnings 1656.08 107941
per share (A)
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for &.00 6.00
the purpose of basic earnings per share (B)
Basic and Diluted EPS (A/B) - Rs. 276.01 179.80

46. Details relating to borrowings from bank Is oblained through security of current assels,

disclosure of the quarierly stock statement /book debt agree with the books of accounts

47. Details relating to Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name

of the Company

-Yes

- Nil
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48,
50.
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52.
33.
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55.
56.
57.

58.

59.
60.
61.

64.

48. Details relating to whether the company has revalued its property, plantand

equipment (including Right-to-use Assets) during the year - Nil
Delails relating to whether the company has revalued its intangible assels - Nil
Details of related party transaclions under CSR aclivities are - Nil
Details relating to loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors,

KMP and related parties - Nil
Details relating to whether the company has Capital Work-in progress - Nil
Details relating to Benami Property held by the Company - Nil

Details relating to declaration of the company as wilful defaulter by any bank

or financial institution or other lender - Nil

Detalls relating to the nature of transaction carried out with the struck-off company - NIl

Detalls relating to the transactions undertaken in Crypto or Virtual currency - Nil
Details relating to the undisclosed income reported - Nil
Details regarding registration or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies,

beyond the statutory period - Nil
Details regarding compliance with number of layers of companies - NIl
Details regarding compliance with approved scheme of arrangements - Nil

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified
by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any
fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

62. The company has not declared any dividend during the year.

63. Note on Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 In the case of The Eimco K.C.P

Limited- during the financial year 2024-25, the Company has maintained its books of
accounts in the accounting software SQL SERVER which does not possess the required
audit trail functionality and edit log requirements as stipulated by Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended. During the second half of FY 2024-25 the
Company had started to migrate its accounting and financial data to Microsoft Navision
which possess the above audit trail and edit log requirements and has fully adopted the said
ERP from 01 April 2025 onwards

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.
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THE EIMCO - K.C.P. LIMITED
CIN: U27209TN1967PLC005550

ANNEXURE 1

SEGMENT REPORTING:

The Company has identified the reportable segments as on 31-03-2025 and others taking into accouril the
nature of products and services, the different risks and returns and the internal reporting syslems. The
accounting policies for segment reporting are In lineé with the accounting policies followed by the

Company.

PRIMARY SEGMENT

As per our report of even date allached

For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.

TOTAL
Export Sales Domestic Sales
BNo FARTICULARS \ Current Previous Current | Pravious | Cument Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
i Segmom Revenue
External Rayenus 216534 220384 7336 44 426711 | 9501.79 6471.05
Other Income - 72628 81848 | 726.268 81648
| Inter Segment Revenue . - | - - | - -
Total Ravenues 216534 2203.94 733644 | 426711 | 10228.07 7280.53
2 | Segment Results 5 | ; '
Priasft before depramation,
finance cost and taation 1444 .91 BUEAT 3060.68 229797 4505.49 3196,15
Less | Finance Cost - . . = . :
Less - Unaliocable Finance
Cost - | 51.88 68.70
Less: Depreciation and
Amortizations -
Less: Unallocable I
Ceprectaton and
Amortizations - 73.50 46.44
Less: |mpairment on Capital
Assols -
3 Utialiocatla Expanditure | 2117.36 1756 54
Lass © Tax . 606.57 245.05
| Total Profi 184481 | Bea.i7 | 306058 |  2207.97 1656.08 | 107841
Capital Employed ,
4 Segment Assels : - . -
§ Unallocabla Assats -| 1149718 9481.40
B Segment Liablities ol . .
7 Unalincable Liabilities - J484.32 3098.71
B Capital Employed - | B012.84 6382.69
9 | Capital Expenditure X = < & 184.53 | T9.41 |

Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Charered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 0028088 P. MANOHAR
Director
B.Mahidhar Krrishna DIN: 0B389896
Partner
Membership Number : 243632
KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
, Diractor
Place : Chennai DIN : DD091466

Date . 28/05/2025
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the TWENTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of

KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Limited will be held on Monday, the 22™ Day of September,
2025 at the Reqgistered Office of the Company at 'Ramakrishna Buildings', No.239, Anna Salai,
Chennal - 600 006 at 9.30 AM. to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31/03/2025 together with the Reports of Auditor and Board of Directors
thereon,

2. To appoint a Director, in the place of Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi (DIN:00091370), Director who
retires by rolalion and being eligible, offers herself for reappointmant.

/I BY ORDER OF THE BOARD //

VINOD R. SETHI
Place : Chennali DIRECTOR
Date : 13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF THE COMPANY IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT ANOTHER
PERSON AS A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF
THEMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BEAMEMBER.

2. PROXY FORM, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DULY COMPLETED
AND SUBMITTED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT

LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

[IBY ORDER OF THEBOARD //
VINOD R. SETHI
Place : Chennai DIRECTOR
Date : 13/08/2025 DIN: 00106598
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10.

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 26" Annual Report containing the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2025,

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

During the Financial Year ended 31/03/2025, the turnover and other income is Rs.33.57 Lakhs as
against Rs.43.13 Lakhs for (he previous financial year. The Company has made a profit after lax of
Rs.(45.10) Lakhs for the Financial Year ended 31/03/2025 as against Rs.12.62 Lakhs in the pravious
financial year.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors have not recommended any Dividend for the Financial Year under review,

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES:

The Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 225.00 Lakhs. The Reserves and surplus as on 31/03/2025
is Rs. 548.58 Lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 557.85 Lakhs)

FIXED DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepled any fixed deposits duning the year under review,
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As the Company is involved in agricultural activities, there is no relevant disclosure under
Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption. There are no Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosure as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not
applicable to the Company as there is no employee falling under any of those categones mentioned
therein.

BOARD MEETINGS:

Five Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 on 29/05/2024, 10/07/2024,
2911042024, 24/12/2024 and 10/02/2025,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

There are no contracts or arrangements with related parties, in terms of Section 188 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Pursuant to Section 118 (10) of the Companies Acl, 2013, the Company observes Secretarial
Standards with respect to General and Board Meetings, prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

The Company adheres lo the Accounting Standards as applicable to it and there are no deviations. in
this respect.
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11.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

No loan [ guarantee [investment is given [ made by the Company, in terms of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2024 - 2025

12. DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION:
Ms. Irmgard Velagapud|, Director { DIN ; 00091370), who retires by rolation at the ensuring Annual
General Meeting (AGM), being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

13. STATUTORY AUDITOR:

M/s. B Purushottam & Co, Charlered Accountants (FRN: 002808S) is the Statutory Auditor of the

Company for the Financial Year under review. The Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial

Statements of the Company is annexed to the Annual Reporl.There are no qualifications or

reservations or observations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said Statutory Auditor's

Report.

14. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant lo Section 134 (3) (¢) read with Seclion 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Direclors

of your Company state as follows:

(a) thatinthe preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed and that there were no materal departures there-from;

(b) that the Directors had selecled such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimales thal are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the slale of affairs of the Company al the end of the financial year 31/03/2025 and of the
Profit/ Loss of the Company for that period:

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenling and delecting fraud and other
irreqularities,

(d) thatthe Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts an a going concemn basis;

(e) thatthe Directors had laid down intemnal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such intemal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f) thatthe Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

15. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT :
Your Directors would like to lake this opportunity lo express their deep sense of gratitude 1o the
Stakeholders of the Company.
/f BY ORDER OF THE BOARD /f
: . VINOD R. SETHI I.L. FLORENCE
riace: Fhenna DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Date : 13/08/2025 DIN : 00106598 DIN : 09273113
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of KCP SUGARS AGRICULTURALRESEARCH FARMS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of KCP SUGARS AGRICULTURAL
RESEARCH FARMS LIMITED("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income ), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under sec 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015,as amended,("Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive Income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013 (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined thatthere are no key audit matters to be communicated in our audit report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Beard's Report, Corporate Governance and
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Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledaoe obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income / loss, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularilies; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements thal give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the slandalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
Process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a quarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
« I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
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basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.,

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to conlinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audil evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we idenlify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement thal we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matlers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order,
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2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, (including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Repori are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial stalemenis comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of writlen representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025, and laken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of
the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operaling effecliveness of such controls, refer lo our separale
Report in "Annexure B" to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration to its directors
during the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

l. The Company does nol have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position to the financial statements.

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

if. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March
2025.

(a) The management has represented, to the besl of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, that no funds (which are material
either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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v,

(b) The management has represented, to the besl of ils knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, that no funds (which are material
either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (*Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or
indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Cempany did not propose, declare or pay dividends during the year ended 31
March 2025.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the
slatutory requirements for record retention. Our examination of the audit trail was in
the context of an audit of financial statements carried out in accordance with the
Standard of Auditing and only to the extenl required by Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, We have not carried out any audit or
examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried oul any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail,

For B. Purushottam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership no: 243632
UDIN:25243632BMKYHCB8857

Flace: Chennal
Date : 28/05/2025



(CONTD.,)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Limited
CiN: UT3100TN1958PLCO&1501

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's report of even date to the members of KCP
SUGARS AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH FARMS LIMITED, on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view of
the financial slatements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us, In
the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge. we repart that:

. In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) a. the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b. the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets,

(b) the Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment
at reqular intervals so to cover all the assels which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification

(¢) the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under property, plant
and equipment are held in the name of the Company

(d) the Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets during the year

(e) no proceedings have been Initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder

ii. {a) the Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its inventory. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noliced on such verification.

(b) the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5
crores, in aggregale, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assels and hence reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable

iii. The Company has not made investments or provided guarantee or security or granted
loans or advances, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties, during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)

of the Order is not applicable:
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I,

Vi,

vil.

Vil

X,

the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable

the Company has nol accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by RBI and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Acl and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cosl records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the business activities carmried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable

in respect of statutory dues:

(a) the Company Is regular in depositing undispuled statutory dues including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable which were
outstanding as on 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date on which they became payable

(b) details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 31 March 2025, on account of dispules are given below:

Name of the Amount in | Period to which the | Forum where the
statute INR lakhs amount related to | dispute is pending
NIL

there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(@) the Company has nol defaulled during the vear in repayment of dues lo any lender
during the year,

(b) the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank of financial
institution or government or any government authority

(¢) the Company has not taken any term loan during the year.

(d) on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries / joint ventures / associates.

(fi the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries / joint ventures / associate companies and hence reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.
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x. (a) the Company has nol raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
Is not applicable,

(b) the Campany has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable

xi. {a) no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reporting during the year

(b) no reporting under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Acl has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the date of this report

(c) as informed by the Company, there were no whistle-blower complaints received
during the year.

xil. the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable

xiii, In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed In the financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards

XV,
fa) the Company does not have an intemal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system as per section 138 of the Act,

(b) as reported under sub-clause (a) above, the Company did not have an internal audit
system for the period under audit

xv, the Company has not entered into any non-cash (ransaclions its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

xvl. in our opinion, the Company Is not required to registered under section 45-|A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) and its sub-
clauses of the Order is not applicable

xvii. the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year coverad by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

xvill. there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

#ix. on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expecled dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Direclors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
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AX.,

date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheel date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 1o
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up lo the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) there are no ongoing projects as defined under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Act and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

() there are no unspent amount as defined under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Act and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For B. Purushottam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership no: 243632
UDIN:25243632BMKYHC8857

Place: Chennai
Dale : 28/05/2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of KCP SUGARS AGRICULTURALRESEARCH
FARMS LIMITEDof even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KCP
SUGARS AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH FARMS LIMITED (“theCompany”) as of March 31,
2025 in conjunction with our audil of the standalone financial statementsof the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internalfinancial controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company cansidering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Auditof Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls that were operaling
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financialinformation, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting ofthe Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan andperform the audit lo obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls overfinancial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the
internalfinancial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included oblaining an
understanding of internal financialcontrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
malerial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materialmisstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis forour audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls syslem over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process desighed to
providereasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect thetransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial slatements in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding pravention or timely delection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets thal could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financialcontrols over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk thal the internal financial controlover financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Compary has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. Purushottam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 002808S

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership no: 243632
UDIN:25243632BMKYHCB8857

Place: Chennali
Date ; 28/05/2025
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BALANCE SHEET As AT MARCH 31, 2025

Amaount Rupees in Lakhs
; As at As at
Paiticutars Note | March31,2025 | March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 45.16 45.23
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investmenls 4 T05.45 G63.81
Current Assets
(a) Inventories G 6.68 8,58
(b) Financial Assels
(I} Cash and Cash Equivalents T 85.07 76.54
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 3] 3.70 2.27
Total Assets 846.06 797.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capilal 9 225.00 225.00
(b) Other Equity 10 548.58 557.85
LIABILITIES
Non - Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax 5 72.33 14.44
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(I} Other Financial Liabllities 11 0.15 0.15
Total Equity and Liabilities 846.06 797.44

The significant accounting policies and accompanying Noles form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B.Purushottam & Co,,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.: 0028085 VINOD R.SETHI
Director

B MAHIDHAR KRRISHNA DIN: 00106598

Partner

Membership No.243632

Place: Chennal I.LFI__DHEHEE

Date : 28/05/2025 Diractor

DIN: 09273113
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Amount Rupees in Lakhs

e STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars Note | Figures forthe | Figures for the
Current Previous
Reporting Period | Reporting Period
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
| Revenue from Operations 12 17.00 20.57
Il Other Income 13 16.57 22.56
Il Total Income (I+11) 33.57 43.13
IV Expenses
Cosl of Materal Consumead 14 11.24 19.52
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress 15 2.90 0.87
and Stock-in-trade
Employee Benefits Expense 16 3.52 an
Depraciation and Amortisation 17 0.18 0.1%
Other Expenses 18 6.14 3.21
Total Expenses (IV) 23.99 26.87
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 9.58 16.26
VI Exceptional ltems - -
VIl Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 9.58 16.26
Vill Tax Expense
- Current Tax 2.25 345
- Deferred Tax 52.08 0.14
- Income lax related lo earfier years 0,34 -
IX Profit/(loss) for the period (45.10 12.62
X  Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 41.62 170.07
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plan Acturtal Gains / (Losses) . -
Incame Tax Expense on above 5.79 19.46
Xl  Total Other Comprehensive Income 35.83 150.62
Xll  Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (Comprising (9.27) 163.23
Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the Period)
Xl Earnings per equity share (In Rs.)
(1) Baslc (2.00) (.56
{2} Diluted (2.00) 0.56

The significant accounting policies and accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B.Purushottam & Co,,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.: 00280835 VINOD R.SETHI

B MAHIDHAR KRRISHNA nm?];g:;%ﬂjga

Partner

Membership No.243632

Place: Chennai |LFLORENCE
Director

Date : 28/05/2025

DIN: 09273113
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Amount Rupess in Lakhs
For Year Ended | For Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities

Total Income for the Period(PBT) 9.58 16.25
Adjustments:
- Profit on sale of Investment - (5.16)
- Dividends Recelved (10.27) (10.90)
- OCI Adjustments (41.62) (170.07)
- Interest recelved (6.30) (6.05)
- Fair Valie Adjustment 41 62 170.07
- Profit from Partnership made - {0.45)
- Depreciation and amortization 0.18 0.16
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (6.81) (6.14)
Changes in
- Decrease/(Increase) In Trade Recelvables - -
- Decrease/(Increase) In Inventory 2 80 0 .&7

- Decrease/(Increase) Income tax - -
- Decrease/(Increasa) In Other current Financial Assel(s) -
10.92)

(Decrease)fIncrease In Olher currenlt financial liablities -
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (3.91) (6.19)
Less: Income tax paid (4.01) (2.81)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operations (7.92) (9.00)
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of Fixed assels (0.11] -
Furchase of Shares . (45.72)
Sale of investments - 46.32
Investment made
Interest recelved 6.30 6.05
Dividend recelved 10.27 10.80
Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities 16.46 17.53
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term loans - .
Repayment of long term loans - -
Net cash used in financing activities - -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 8.53 8.54
cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 76.54 68.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 85.07 76.54
85.07 76.54
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6)
Cash on hand 0.04 0.58
Balances with banks 85.03 75,98
Total cash and cash equivalents 85.07 76.54

The significant accounting policies and accompanying Notes form an inlegral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B.Purushottam & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.: 0028085 VINOD R.SETHI
Director

E MAHIDHAR KRRISHNA DIN: 00106598

Partner

Membership No.243632

Place: Chennal .L.FLORENCE

Date : 28/05/2025 Directos

DIN: 09273113
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 - Company Information

KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of KCP Sugar and
Industries Corporation Ltd. The core activity of the company is research relating lo Agriculture,

2 - Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statementofcompliance:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, The accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently to all
years presented in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation:
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for certain
financial instruments that are measured al fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

(¢) Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgements. estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of conlingent liabllities
al the date of the financial slalements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for
the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimales are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies thal have lhe most significant effect on the amounts

recognized in the financlal statements pertain to:

¢ Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company
has estimated useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the
estimated usage of the assel, the operating condition of the assel, past history of
replacement, anticipated lechnological changes. elc, The Company reviews the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assels al the Balance Sheel date.
This reassessment may resull in change in depreciation expense in future periods,

« |Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for
impairment when events occur or changes in circumslances indicate thal the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unitIs less than Its carrying value. The recoverable amount
of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The
calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumplions which includes turmover
and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future
cash flows, risk-adjusled discount rale, fulure economic and markel conditions.

+ Fair value measurement of derivative and other financial instruments: The fair value
of financial instruments that are not traded in an aclive market Is determined by using
valuation lechniques. This involves significant judgments to selecl & variely of methods and
make assumplions thal are mainly based on markel conditions existing at the Balance
Sheet date.



KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Limited
CiN: UT3100TN1958PLCO&1501

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate
outcome of each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation, A provision
for litigation is made when itis considered probable that a payment will be made and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant jJudgment s made when evalualing, among
other factors, the probability of unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable
estimate of the amount of polential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting
period and revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.,

Revenue recognition :

Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue comprise
of sale of agricultural products and bricks. Revenue from sale of goods s net of Indirect taxes,
returmns and discounts.

Revenue is recognised when following conditions are satisfied:

» The company transfers o the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods

» The enlity relains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

« Theamountofrevenue can be measured reliable

« |t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

* Thecostsincurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest

Interest income Is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effeclive interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend incomne is recognized on cash basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

All property, plant and equipment are Initially recorded al cosl. Cosl includes the acquisition
cost or the cost of construction, including duties and laxes (other than those refundable),
expenses directly related lo the location of assets and making them operational for their
intended use and, in the case of qualifying assels, the altribulable borrowing costs. Initial
estimate shall also include costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which itis located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only whenitis
probable that fulure economic bensfits associated with these will flow to the Company and the
costof the item can be measured reliably.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately lo its recoverable amount if the assel's
carrying amount is greater that its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less thelr residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
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(f)

(g)

In respect of Leasehold Buildings, depreciation on buildings on leased properties is based on
the tenure which is lower of the life of the buildings or the expected lease period. Improvements
to buildings are depreciated on the basis of their estimated useful lives.

Assets under finance |eases as depreciated over the expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable cerlanty that ownership will be
oblained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

The eslimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are in line with the Schedule 1] of the
Companies Act, 2013,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are
not yel ready for theirintended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid.

Impairment of assets:

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are nol subject to amortisation and are lesled annually
far impalrment. Assets that are subject to amorlisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimaled fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
maney and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to ils
recaverable amount. An impalment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impalirment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Inventories:

Standing crops are valued at cost. Other inventories are valued at the lower of cost (computed
on a Welghted Average basis) or nel realisable value, Cosl include the cost of fair value of
consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and
other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in determining the cost of purchase.
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(h) Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to sellle the
abligalion, and when a reliable estimale of the amount of the obligation can be made, If the
effect of the time value of money is matenal, the provision is discounted using a pre-tax rale
that reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks specific lo
the obligation and the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible abligation arising from past
events, due lo occumrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not
wholly within the control of the Company, or where any present obligation cannol be measured
in terms of future outflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be
made. Obligations are assessed on an angeing basis and only those having a largely probable
outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assels are nol recognized In the financial statements.
(il CashandCash Equivalent (forthe purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shor-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subjectto insignificant risk of changes in value.

(i) Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments, Cash flow for the year are classified by operating, investing and
financing activities.

(k) Earnings PerShare:

Basic eamnings pershare is compuled by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax {(including the post-
tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year including potential equity shares on compulsory convertible
debentures. Diluled earnings per share |5 computed by dividing the prolit / (loss) afler tax
lincluding the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or Income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considerad for
deriving basic earings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

(I) Financial Instruments:
Financial Assets:
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive Income or fair value through profit or (loss) on the basis of
its business modal for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and measurement:

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit/ (loss) are re of Ind-
AS 109 are measured al fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified
as at FVTPL. Investment in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates are camed al cost less
o impalrment, If any. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTp.)

either as al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL.The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis, The classification Is
made on inifial recognition and is irrevocable,

For equity instruments classified as FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of such
invesiments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deracognition

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (ie., removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when.

- Therights lo recelve cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without material delay to a third
party undera 'pass-through' arrangement; and either;

(a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(k} The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assel, but has transferred control of the assel.

When the Company has transferred its rights o receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferrad control of the asset, the Company continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognises an assoclaled liabllity. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis thal reflecls the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured al the lower of the original carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liahilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including
derivatives thal are liabllities, shall be subsequently measured al fair value

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, al initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabllities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of lcans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
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3 - Property Plant and Equipments Amount Rupees inf Lakhs
Description Land | Buildings Pantand | Fencing | Vehicles| Total
equipment

As at 317 March 2023 (At Cost) 36.87 8.35 8.92 0.15 0.10 53,89
Additions during the year - - - . . .
Deletions during the year . - - = a .
As at 31 March 2024 (At Cost) 36.87 8.35 8.52 0.15 0.10 53.99
Additions during the year - - 0.1 - - 0.1
Deletions during the year - - - - - -
As at 317 March 2025 (At Cost) J6.87 8.35 8.63 0.15 0.10 54.10
Depreciation and amortization

Opening Depreciation as on 01.04,2023 . 1.16 7.38 0.00 0.05 8.59
Charge for tha year - D.17 - - - 0.17
Delelions during the year - - - - - -
As at 31" March 2024 (At Cost) - 1.33 7.38 - 0.05 B.76
Charge for the year - 0.16 0.02 - - 0.18
Deletions during the year a
As at 31" March 2025 - 1.49 7.40 - 0.05 8.94
Net Book Value

As at 317 March 2025 36.87 6.86 1.23 0.15 0.05 45.16
As at 31" March 2024 36.87 7.02 1.14 0.15 0.05 45.23

4 - Investments (Non- Current)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Investments in Quoted Equity Instruments (Fair valued through OCI)

No. of Shares Value No. of Shares Value

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

Blue Star Ltd. (Face value of Rs.2/- each ) 11600 247 .82 11600 147.75
Geodesic Information Systems Lid 400 0.0 400 0.01
(Face value of Rs.2/- each )

Igarashi Motors India Lid 600 2.97 GO0 2 46
Indraprastha Gas Lid. 121400 246,59 60700 261.50
Yuken India Ltd. 2400 19.18 2400 19.56
Savita Qil Technolegies Ltd 40830 150.91 40930 187.79
(Face value of Rs.5/- each )

Precision Wire India Ltd 10500 13.86 10500 13.46
(Face value Split from Rs.5/- to Rs.1/- each)

IRB Ivit Fund 42700 21.38 42700 28.56
Sub Total 702,72 661.08

Investments in Partnership Firm
Quality Enginaering Works, Trichy 273 273

Total 705.45 663.81
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Additional Information :

4.1. Name of the partners, their share and their capital in Quality Engineering Works (Firm)

Name of the Partners % Share |Capital Balance | Capital Balance

31/03/2025 31/03/2024

The Eimco - K.C.P. Limited 99.60% 700.84 701.73
KCP Sugars Agricullural Researchs Farms Limited 0.40% 2,73 2.73
Total 100.00% 703.57 704.46

5 - Deferred Tax Liability
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable {o the following:

Particulais As at March As at March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Deferrad Tax Liability
- Property, Plant & Equipment 0.70 0.54
- Deferred Tax Liability on Fair Value gain investiments
listed securities 71.63 19.46
Sub Total 72.33 20.00
Deferred Tax Assel
- Unabsorbed Loss under Income Tax Act - 5.56
Sub Total - 5.56
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities) (72.33) (14.44)
b6 - Inventories
Standing Crops & Others 6.68 858
Total 6.68 9.58
7 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
1) Balances with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 21.74 15.69
- In Fixed Deposits 63.29 60.27
i) Cash on Hand 0.04 0.58
Total 85.07 76.54
8 - Other Current Assets
Income Tax 3.70 227
Total 3.70 2.27
9 - Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 500.00 500.00
Total 500.00 500.00
Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up
22,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each 225.00 225.00
Total 225.00 225.00
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

9.1. Movement in respect of Equity Shares is given below : Amount Rupees in Lakhs

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars No's. Amount in No's. Amount in
Lakhs Lakhs
Al the beginning of the period 2250000 225.00 2250000 225.00
(+) Issued dunng the period . . = -
(-) Redeemad during the perod - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 2250000 225.00 2250000 225.00

9.2. Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. The holders of
the equity shares are enlitled lo receive dividends as declared from time lo lime, and are entitled to voting
rights proportionate to their share holding at the meetings of shareholders.

In the evenl of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled lo receive the
remaining assets of the company , after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

9.3. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
No's. % of Holding No's, % of Holding
K.C.P Sugar and Industnies Corporation Ltd. 2250000 100% 2250000 100%
Total 2250000 100% 2250000 100%
9.4. Details of Promoter Shareholding
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
7 : % of Changes
No's. % of Holding | No's. % of Holding
K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Lid. | 2250000 100% 2250000 100% NIL
Total | 2250000 100%, 2250000 100% NIL

Amount Rupees in Laghs

10~ Other Equity For the Year Ended March 31, 2025
Reserves and Other Components of
Surplus Equity
Remeasurement of Net
Particul Retained Earnin
bl elaInea EaTINGS | bufined benefit Liability / Asset Total
Balance as at April 01, 2024 77.93 479.92 557.85
Profit | (Loss) for the period (45.10}) - (45.10)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - 35,83 3583
Balance as at March 31, 2025 32.83 915,75 548.56
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Reserves and Other Components of
Surplus Equity
Particulars Remeasurement of Net Total
Retained Earnings | Defined benefit Liability /
Asset
Balance as at April 01, 2023 65.31 329.30 304.61
Profit / {Loss) for the peniod 12.62 - 12.62
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - 160.82 150.62
Balance as at March 31, 2024 77.93 479.92 557.85




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

KCP Sugars Agricultural Research Farms Limited
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11 - Other Financial Liabilities

Amount Rupees In Lakhs

As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024
Outstanding Liabilities for Expenses 0.15 0.15
Total 0.15 0.15
12 - Revenue from Operations
: Year Ended Year Ended
P |
SoUS March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Sale of products 17.00 20,57
Total 17.00 20.57
13 - Other Income
Change in fair value of financial asset = -
Interest income from financial asset measured al amortised cos! 6.30 6.05
Dividend Income 10.27 10.90
Share of Profit from Partnership firm . 0.45
Profit on sale of Investments - 2.16
Total 16.57 22.56
14 - Cost of Material Consumed
Cultivation Charges 0.71 0.31
Labour Charges 5.94 2.96
Brick Work Expenses 4.58 16.25
Total 11.24 19.52
15 - Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods , Work-in-Progress and Stock in Trade
Opening Balance
Standing Crops 6.58 10.45
Less: Closing Balance
Slanding Crops (6.68) (9.58)
Total 2.90 0.87
16 - Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 3.30 2.86
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.22 0.25
Total 3.52 3.1
17 - Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation / Amortisation for the Year
- Tangible Assels 0.18 0.16
Total 0.18 0.16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

18 - Other Expenses Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Fameules March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Pesticides / Fertilizers 3.03 1.05
Repairs and Mainlenance:
- Traclor 1.12 0.67
- Others 0.48 0,72
Payment Made to Auditors (Refer note below) 0.20 0.15
Legal and Professional Charges 0.86 0.26
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.46 0.36
Total 6.14 3.21
Payment Made to Statutory Auditors :
l.  As Audit Fee (.15 (.15
ii. For Taxation Matters -
iil. For Other Services (.03
Iv. For Reimbursement of Expenses - -

Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
19 - Disclosures in respect ofind AS 107 - Financial Instruments
19.1. Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying value andfair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

March 31, 2025

Financial Assets / Financial
Liabilities at Fair | Assets / Liabllities at
Particulars Amortized Cost | ya1,e through Profit | Fair Value through
or Loss OcCl
Assets:
Investment 273 - 702,72
Cash & Cash Equivalents B5.07 -
Liahilities:
Other Financial Liabilitiss 0.15
March 31, 2024
Financial Assets / Financial
Liabilities at Fair |Assets / Liabilities at
dedoi il AmOrazed cont Value through Profit | Fair Value through
or Loss OCI
Assets:
Investmant 273 - 661.08
Cash & Cash Equivalents 76.54
Liabilities:
Other Financial Liabllities 0.15 -
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20 - FairValue Hierarchy

« Level 1-Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or llabilities.

« Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either direclly (ie., as pnces) orindirectly (ie., dernved from prices).

» Level3 -Inpuls for the assels or liabilities thal are nol based on observable market data
(unobservable inpuls),

20.1. Valuation Technique used to determine Fair Value:

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
« Use of quoled market prices for Listed instrumentls

20.2. The following tables present fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair

Amournl Rupess In Lakhs
For the Year 31/03/2025 For the Year 31/03/2024
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Ir]ve:slmﬂnls
in Quoted 702.72 . - 702.72 661.08 - - 661.08
Securities

21 - Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Parties Disclosures”

(&) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

1. Helding Company K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Lid

(B} Transactions During the Year - Holding Company - NIL

22 - Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 33 “Earnings Per Share (EPS)”
Basic and Diluted EPS

The 2amings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS
and Basic EPS Is as follows:

Amount In Rupees in Lakhs

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Reiticiany March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit / (Loss) for he Year, attributable to the Owners (45.10] 12.62
of the Company
Earnings used In Calculation of Basic Earnings
Per Share (A) (45.10) 12,62
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares lor 22.50 22.50
the Purpose of Basic Eamings Per Share (B)
Basic and Diluted EPS (A /B) {in Rs.) (2.00) 0.56
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23.

25.
26.
27.
28.

30.

3.
32.
33.

35.

36.

37.

Details relating to Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company - Nil
Details relating to loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors,

KMP and related parties - Nil
Details relating to Intangibles asset underdevelopment and ageing thereof - NIl
Details relaling to Capital Work in progress (CWIP) - Nil
Details of Trade receivables and ageing thereof - Nil
Details relating to Benami Property held by the Company - Nil

Details relating to declaration of the company as wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender - Nil

Details refating to the nature of transaction carried out with the

struck- offl company - Nil
Details relaling to the transactions under taken in Crypto ar Virtual Currency - Nil
Details relating to the undisclosed income reported - Nil
Details regarding registration or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of

Companies, beyond the statutory period - Nil
Details regarding compliance with number of layers of companies - Nil
Details regarding compliance with approved scheme of arrangements - Nil

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s)
or enlity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that thel
Intermediary shall

(a) direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ullimate Beneficlaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), including
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

(a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.
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48, Disclosure of various Ratios

March March 0
S.No.| Name of the Ratio Numerator Denominator 31,2025 | 31,2024 Eh:; ge Remarks
. Current ! - - Due to
1 Current Ratio Waatd Current Liabllities b22.20 57625 B% P
2. Returm on MNed profits Average
Equity Rafio after tax - Shareholder's
Praferance Equity
Dividend (0.06) 0.02 (422%) -
3. InuentnéiuTl;Jrnwr Sales Average Inventory 209 2 05 o, b
4. Net Capital Nel Sales= | Working capital =
Turmover Ratio Total Sales - Current assets -
Sales Retum | Current liabilities 0.19 0.24 (24%)
5 Met Profit Mat Profit Net Sales = Total Due to
Ratio after tax SﬂlEE - Sﬂj'ﬂs I:EEE] .61 f533%‘] Logs
Relurn
Relum on Total Assets -
Earnings bafore ol Asse Due to
Capital et and ] curment Liabiliies + 0.01 002 | (44%) | TLoss
Employed Current Borrowings
Income
7. Retum on Average
[ hrant generatad from 0.08 032 T7%
nvestmen e veistmiginis Investiments

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.)

Nole: Only few ratios are applicable o the company, which are disclosed in the above lable.

39. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached

For B.Purushottam & Co., For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.: 0028085

B MAHIDHAR KRRISHNA VINOD R. SETHI I.L.FLORENCE
Partner Director Director
Membership No.243632 DIN : 00106598 DIN: 09273113

Place: Chennai
Date : 2B/05/2025
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinien

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of K.C.P Sugar and
Industries Corporation Limited (the"Holding Company”) and Its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group®), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes lo
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as "the consolidated financial
statements ).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act , 2013 (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of
the act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2025, of consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing ("SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountanits of India (ICAl), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities In
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the component
audited by them, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These malters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the malters described below lo be the key audit matlers to be
communicated in our audit report;
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Determination of net realizable

value of inventory of sugar as at
the year ended March 31, 2025.

As on March 31, 2025, the
Company has inventory of sugar
with the carrying value Rs.
7,813.16 lakhs. The inventory of
sugar is valued at the lower of cost
and nel realizable value. We
considered the inventory valuation
of sugar as a key audit matter
given the relative size of the
balance In the consolidated
financial statements and significant
judgment  involved in  the
consideration of faclors such as
monthly quota, fluctuation in seliing
prices and the related nolifications
of the Government in determination
of net realizable value.

Our audit procedures included the following:

1.We understood and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of controls as
estabiished by the management in
determination of net realizable value of
inventory of sugar.

2.Assessing the  appropriateness  of
Company's accounting policy for valuation
of finished goods and compliance of the
policy with the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

3.We considered various factors including the
actual selling price prevailing around and
subsequent to the year-end, minimum
selling price, monthly quota and other
notifications of the Government of India,
initiatives taken by the Government with
respect to sugar industries.

4.Compared the cost of the finished goods
with the estimated net realizable value and
checked if the finished goods were recorded
at net realizable value where the cost was
higher than the net realizable value. For the
purpose of determining cost, the Company
has considered the prevailing market
conditions.

Based on the above procedures performed,
the management's determination of the net
realizable value of the inventory of sugar as at
the year end and comparison with cost for
valuation of inventory, is considered to be
reasonable.
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Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Company's investments | Our audit procedures includes the following:
comprise a significant portion of its
lotal assets and are classified and |1. Evaluating the design and testing the
measured in accordance with the operating effectiveness of controls over the
requirements of Ind AS 108, classification and valuation of investments.
2. Assessing the approprialeness of the
a) Quoted Equity Instruments Company’'s accounting policies  with
amounting to Rs.18,727.62 Lakhs respect to Investment classification in
measured at Fair Value Through| accordance with Ind AS 109.
Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 3. For investments measured at fair value;
Obtaining external confirmations  for
existence and Verified the fair value of
quoted equityusing markel prices as of the
balance sheet dateand mutual fund
investments using NAV as of the balance
sheetl dale.
4. Evalualed the basis for measuring
unquoted equity instruments at amortized
¢) Mutual Funds amounting to Rs. | cost, Verified whether such classification
7,81550 Lakhs measured at| complies with the business model and
FVTPL cash flow characteristics test under Ind AS
: , 109,
d) Unquoted Equity Investments in |5 Reviewed the adequacy and completeness

other companies amounting to of disclosures in the financial statements
Rs. 118.99 Lakhs measured at relatad to:

Amortized Cost

el B

b) Quoted Equity Instruments
amounting to Rs. 702.70 Lakhs
measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income
(FVOCI)

e |nvestments measured at fair value

o [nvesiments measured at amortized

Refer note 5 and 9 lo the ey

standalone financial statements,

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, bul does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears lo be materially misstated.

When we read these reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicale lo those charged with governance and take necessary aclions
as required under applicable laws and regulations.
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Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimales that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, thal were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financlal statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and the
Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the
ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Boards of Directors either intend to liquidate their respective entities or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each Company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an audilor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detecl a material misstatement when it exists. Misslalements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not delecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in
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India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and the Board
of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required o draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's reporl. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial slatements
represent the underlying transaclions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentalion.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
standalone financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnilude of misslatements in the consoclidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregale, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidaled financial stalements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the resulls of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumsitances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary included in the Statement, whose
financial statements reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 734.87
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lakhs as 31 March 2025, total income (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 136.00
lakhs and net tolal loss(before consolidation adjustments) of INR 0.89 lakhs and net cash
inflow (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 22.87 lakhs for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the Statement. These financial statements have been audited by another
auditor whose audit report has been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, In so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates lo the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report
of such other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of above matters with respect lo
our reliance of work done and reporis of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of Companies (Auditor’'s Report)

Order, 2020 (“the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Act and based on the consideration of the Order reports issued by us for the
Holding Company and the its subsidiaries included In the consolidated financlal statements,
to which the Order is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications of adverse
remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such Companies.

2. As required by Seclion 143(3) of the Acl, we report, to the exten! applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating o preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been keptso far as it appears from our
examination of those books,

¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consalidated statement of cash flows deall with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the Direclors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated In India is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operaling effectiveness ol such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A" which is based on the auditor's reports of the company and ils
subsidiaries incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial
reporting of those companies, for the reasons stated therein.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
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In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the managerial remuneration of INR 80.53 lakhs paid by the Holding Company to
its Managing Director and the Chairman during the year represents the minimum
remuneration for the fifth consecutive financial year of their tenure. Schedule V of the
Act restricts the payment of minimum remuneration to a period of three years in the
ahsence of adequate profits. The above remuneration paid is compliant with section 197
and Schedule V of the Act, subject to approval by the shareholders in its general
meeting. Refer note 54 to the consolidated financial statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reporis of other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the "Other Matters” paragraph:

i.  The consolidated financial slatements disclose the impac! of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group.Refer note 38.1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracis.

il.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, which were required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective management of the Holding Company have represented, o the best
of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 55 to the consolidaied financial
statements, that no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company to or in any
other person or enlity, including foreign entity (‘Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intarmediary shall,
whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoasver by or on behalf of the Holding Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficianes;

(b} The respective management of the Holding Company have represented, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, asdisclosed in note 56 to the consolidated financial
statements, that no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate)
have been received by the Holding Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or inveslt in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party {"Ulimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come o our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatemenl.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the
Holding Company during the year is in accordance, with Section 123 of the Act,
as applicable.
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(b) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for
the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section
123 of the Acl, as applicable.

1. Based on our examination, which included test checks, performed by us on the

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT conto.)

Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India,
whose financial stalemenls have been audiled under the Acl, excepl for lhe
instances mentioned below, have used an accounting software for maintaining its
bocks of accounts for the period ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of
recording audit frail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
the audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention

One subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, have used an
accounting software which did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same was not operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Consequently, we are unable to comment on
the audit trail requirements of the said software as envisaged under Rule 11(g) of
the Acl, Refer note 53 to the consolidated financial statements.

The audit trail requirements under Rule 11(g) of the Act is nol applicable to one
step-down subsidiary being a partnership firm in India. Consequently, we are
unable to comment on the audit trall requirements under the aforesaid rule in
respect of this step-down subsidiary.

far B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership No, 243632
UDIN:25243632BMKYGZ4860

Place: Chennal
Date: 28/05/2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of K.C.P. Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited for the year ended March
31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory Reaguirements’
section of our raport of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited (hereinafler referred 1o as “the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incerporaled in India, as
of that date.

Management'sand Board of Director’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Dirsctors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companles incorporated In India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
respeclive Companies considering the essential components of inlernal control staled in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, lhe prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of rellable financial information, as required under the act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and ils subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
MNote”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil lo oblain reasonable assurance
aboul whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operaling effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidaled financial
statemenis, whether due to fraud or emor.

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the intemnal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intermal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. A company’s intemal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly refiect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepled
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use,or disposition of the company s assets that could have a matenal effect on
the consolidated financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management ovemde of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financialcontrols over financial reporting to future penods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controlover financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or thal the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given lo us,
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such intemmal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective companies considering the essential components of intermal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Charlered Accountants of India.

for B, Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No, 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner

Membership No. 243632
UDIN:25243632BMKYGZ4860

Place: Chennaij
Date: 28/05/2025
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Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Figures Tor the Curreat Figures for the Frevious
Particulars Note Reparting Perimd Reporting Period

March 31, 2125 March 31. 2024

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

ASSETS
Non-current assels
(&) Property, plant and equipment
(b} Capital work-in-progress
{e)Oher Intangible assets
(d) Intangihle Asset under Development
{¢) Fmancaal assets
(1} Invesunents
() Other Financial Assets
() Other nop-curtent assets
Current asscls
{a) Inventories
{b) Financial Asscts
(1] Lavestments
(i) Trace receivables
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
(1v] Bank Balances other than (m) above
(v) Onher (inancial assets
(¢) Currenl Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Other current assels
Asset held for sale
Total Asscis

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equirty

{a) Equity Share capital

(b} Other equity

Liability
Non-current Hahilitics
{u) Financial Linbilitics
(1) Bortowings

(1) Onher Fmancial Babilities
(b} Provisions
(e} Deferred tax habnhities (net)
() Other Non Current Liabilities

Current labilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(1} Borrowings
(i) Trace payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprses and small entgrprises

(i) Other Anancial Habiities
(b} Other current liabilines
(¢} Short Term provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities {Net)
Total Equity and Liabilities

L9
21
2]

11

F=7-1

23

a
=

15

26
21
13
29

O875.18 10031.58
25.11 -
16,06 18.03
85.30 6525

1934931 19052.63
G087 U254

405,96 405 35

13331837 20475 45

T813.50 727246

486242 292027

11413 220542

277928 2305 45
55.60 15.74
31,70 2.27

6197 1294.76

. 230,50
H186S.82 66576.74
1133.85 1133.85
43593.76 42734.05

333258 31288.95
77.63 0g.00

1267.14 071,14

1822 48 1107.3%

. 84.07

6599 76 11378 27
2.81 52.65

1203.02 163243

8310351 1518.83
1251.93 2053.92
2003 141.48
240,30 274.83
61868.52 66576.74

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements

As per our report of even date altached

For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0028085

B.Mahidhar Krrishna
Fartner

Membership No.: 243632

K.PANNEER SELVAN T.KARTHIK NARAYANAN
Campany Secretary &
Compliance Officer
M No. AS1274

Chlef Financial Officer
Placa : Chennai CMA M No. 9854

Date : 28/05/2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
Managing Director
DIN : 00091370

KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Executive Director
DIN : 00091466
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Amount Rupess in Lakhs

Figures for ilie Current Figures for the Frevious
Particulars Note Reparting Perind Reporting Period
Muarch 21, 2025 March 31. 1024

I Revenue from operations 30 31045.79 34568.10
I Other mcome 31 2655.93 6858.29
I Total Income (1+1) 33701.72 41426.39
IV Expenses

Cost af matenal consumed 52 18024 26 19539.56

Purchase of Stock-m-trade 136.6() 147 .66

Changes i mventones of fimshed goods, work-in-

progress and stock-in-trad 53 3762.99 S560.54

Emplovee benefits expense 34 i617.11 3477.78

Finunce costs 35 010.80 111924

Depreciation and Amortisation 36 606,88 588.3%

Other expenses 37 432137 3911.11

Total expenses (1V) 31380.01 3434457
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional tems and tax 2321.71 081,82
V1 Exceptional ttems - Profit on sale of Assel

held for sale 480,54 nO4 .42
V11 Profit/(loss) before tax 2802.2% TRE6.24
VIII Tax expense

= Cutrent Tax 26,13 576,25

- Deferred Tax 73627 720,94

- Provision for taxation relating to carher vears 112 (26.90)
IX Profit/(loss) for the period 1438.73 6i15.95
X Other Comprehensive Income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Equity instruments through other compreliensive

INComEe 41 .62 170.07

Remeasurements ol defined benetit plan acturial

gains/ (losses) (115.24) 57.83

[hcome tax expense on above (2137 2402

(52.15) 193.9]

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period

(Comprising profit and other comprehensive

income for the period) 1386.48 680983
X1l Earnings per equity share (in Rs.)

{1} Basic |27 5.83

{2) Diluted 127 5.83

The accompanying notes fann an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of aven date attached
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Charterad Accountants

FRN (0028085 IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
Managing Direclor

B.Mahidhar Krrishna DIN ; 00081370

Partner

Membership No.: 243632

gﬁ'ﬁrﬂlEER SIE}LH‘{AH T.I'éARTHIK EARATAH&?.H KIRAN H‘EL,EGAF uDI
Place - Chennai hief Financial Officer ampany secretary Emuu_twe irector
Date : 28/05/2025 CMA M No.9894 Gupl;? I:i:cﬁgl %fﬂcar DIN : 00081466
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Amount Rupees in Lakhs
' or Y ' ' el
Particulars t[:;?;lzgﬁsg .E.Hr:ﬁiili.':u;:
Ciash Hows from opeating achivitics
Tona! Toeome for the Pericd(PET) 280226 TERG.14
Adusiments:
- Interest mcome (58 9T} [582.63)
~Loww/[Frofi) on sale of Property, plam, nnd equipmen) (535,17) (B3, 10)
= Los/{Profit) on sale of Invesimen) (28 31) (12.55)
- Excess Proviston Credited Back (320.27) (260.43)
- Adjustment fir OC] [156.80) 22792
= Interest expense ¥31.95 11924
- Dividend [ncome (410.19) (40R.08)
- Farr Value Adpostment (61727} (5004.69)
- Provimiom for Had debts 36.00 -
= Assets Written ol 33.07 .
- Deprecisdion and amortization Gl 55 SB35
Crpeziitng sish Dow belore working capital chungey 1813.10 213810
Chunzes in
- Decranse/{ Increase) In Trade Recervables (1960 24) (T08.97)
= Decronse/(Increase) In Invenlory [ ERAIL 2353.19
- Deorgase/(Increase) In Ohther current Financial Asseus) {9.01) (2.19)
- Decrage/(Incronte) In Otber current Aszeis) 405 98 (337.69)
= Decrnase/(Inerense) In Current (nvesiments 1321 .73) (169 &%)
- Decreuse/ (Inerease ) Cther Finsuoinl Agsets - Noo eurren! (132.71) {006}
= Decrouse/ (Tnorense) In Other non.cumrent <l (g 10 .
({DecreaseVIncrease In Lang lerm Provisions 430,95 126,05
(Pecredse)Inoroase In non-cument Financtal |ishilities (20 460 1134
(DecredselIncrease In Trade Payables currend (36].R3) 3071 80
(Decremse)Increase In othet Currént Habilities (1198.08) (770.32)
(De¢rease)Increase In Other fnancial Hablities current [6T79.48) 394,42
{Decrease)Incroase In Short Term provisions carrent 6215 (33.10)
(Decrease VInerease Tn Other Non Current Liabilities [B4.67) .
Income (axes paid | 2B4.BT) 41.14
Net Cash generated [rom [ (nsed in) operations Cash Qows from investing activitics 2965.99 1507.76
Purchese ofProperiy, plant and equipment (337.31) {6E3.25)
Purchaze of Invesiments - (LORE.39)
Proceeds from sale of Propecty, phant snd equipmen BU3. 24 1000 56
Procesda from sale of Investiments 26133 26425
Dividend Income 410.19 U803
Investment made m Non Cumeent bovestmenis{ not) (767 .42) .
Degresse ! (Increase) in Bank Balances other then Cuash and Cash Tiquivadents (348.99) (127].08)
lrperest receved S0 2T 28203
Net cash gencrated fromfused in) investing activities 333.22 {Tikb. 59)
Cagh tiows from fmancing activities
Proceeds from / {repayment of] long term and short term bomowmay (4234 88) (3092.44)
Interest paid (931.95) (1119.24)
Dividend paiid (226 77) 228.77)
Net cush wsed in fnancing activities (5391.60) (SU3K.45)
Increase in cash md cush equivalents [28]29) {1499 20)
Cish and cash equivalents ut the beginmng of the year 129542 379470
Clsh end cash eguivalents ot the end of the veur 21413 200442
2014.13 119542
Components of cash, and cash equivatents (refer pote 1) Cugh on hand ol 135
Halances with hanks 2007 98 2258 (47
Total enshy and cash ¢quivalents 2014.11 229342

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants
Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our repart of even date attached

For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.

Charterad Accountants

FRN 0028085 IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
Managing Director

B.Mahidhar Krrishna DIN : 00091370

Partner

Membership No.: 243632

K.PANNEER SELVAN TKARTHIK NARAYANAN KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Executive Direclor
DIN : 00091466

Chief Financial Officer
CMA M No.8394

Place : Chennai
Date : 28/05/2025

Company Secrelary &
Compliance Officer
M No.A51274




SUGAR

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

-

.I
=
=
=
o
S
=
B
—

g9¥1 6000 - NIO
10}08li0] eAlnaex3

IANdYOY13A NYHIN

0LEL6000 : NIO
iopoan] Buibeuspy

1anNdvavi3A Gdvo Nl

S40j28lI[ JO precd 8yl Jo Jjeyeq uo pue Jo-

VLIELSY ON W

1800 eaueljduion
2 Aejaioes Auedwen
NYNVAYHYN MIHLHYM'L

Se0&/S0/8¢ - 21eQ

FEE6 ON N VIND [Euusyn) . aoe|d

B0 [BIOUBUIS JBILD
NYATIS MIINNVL M
ZEIEYZ ToN diysiaguiapy

Jauled

BUYSLUY JEYPIYEWN'E

S80BZ00 Nuld

SIUEIUNDIOY PaIaUeyD

00 % NVLLOHSNHENG "8 404
paloeje aiep uaag jo podal ano jad sy

sjuelle|Es [eoueuly ssay) jo ped eibaiul ue wuoy sajou Bujluedwosse syl

OL°t68Er | IL°9LF 1870t 0L £98I1¢E sl s0's¥ e Tiell STOT "1 £ Ya1B]y Ju SE duLjey
(§T°T9) i I € (L8E6) . = - - 183X 271 10] AUWODU] SAISUDIY2IAIUOT) 1010
EL8Er] " - €L 8EFI1 - - - pouad oyl 103 (S507T) / 1§01
(LL9TT) = = (LL'9TT) ) : = pied puapraig
SO'FELTE | 60°SEF L ad PE TSO0E SH°SCl S £ Tl FTOT "1£ Y2EJY JE SE dueeg
16°€61 LOOLI F8EC - - - - IB3X D[] JOJ AWOIUT AISUSYRIAIIOT) IO
$6°S199 | - - S6'S199 - - - pouad 211 107 (s507) /1g0I]
(LL9TT) - - (LL'9TT - - - pred puapiaig
96°0ST9¢ | TO'SYC CR001 91 TOTYC 3 BN CO'SY tPCCell €T0T 10 [udy 12 seaourjeg
- “.__MH“:: ey S — IAIISAL pasinn aatasax [ i
. Sl pAmpqur] o) I __... 4
jo sofmeyy | pouwsarmso | on o uondwapa IdUBMO|[E —— |
[EHOL anua ey [uemamsesuny : jende) JUIUISIAU] ; R THTIRTAN LN |
. AynU JO snpdang pue saA19593)
yuoduro Ty oy .

Ayunbg oo (9

SREEll ~ CEEET] STOT TPIEIN ISTE PP ._n,.;m L LUK |

s8'eell - SSEET PTOT Y2IBW 15T ¢ Papua JBdA a1 10§

poLiad Suipiodaa Jeaa o) suranp jeded poriad Sunaodaa ag) jo S
) JO PUD IT) JE IDUEJEE] aaegs Aymba a1 safuey) SUINTINI G 7)) J© JIUBJEq sEahted

BYNET Ly 888Ny JUNOLLYY

[eyde) aanygs Aymbyy (v

G20Z L€ HOYVYIN 3AN3 AOI¥3d 3HL HO4 ALIND3 NI SFONVHO 40 INJFWILVIS




K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1, Corporate Information

K.C.P Sugar and Indusiries Cotporation Ltd is a [isted enfity, one among the leading sugar manufacturing
companles in India. The Company has a Sugar faclory at Vuyyuru, Krishna District , Andhra Pradesh with a
sugarcane crushing capacity of 7500 tons per day, Its allied business consists of manufactunng and marketing of
Rectified Spirit, Extra Neutral Alcohol, Ethanol, Incidental Cogeneration of Power, Organic Manure, Mycorrhiza
Vam, Calclum Lactate and Co2, Progessing of Urad Dal, Engineering unil al Thuvakudy Tamil Nadu. It has its
registered office at 239/183, Ramakrishna Buildings, Anna Salal, Chennai, Tamil Nadu 6000086, India.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issued on 28/05/2025

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policles

(a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, notified under Sec 133 of

The Companies Act, 2013. The accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently 1o all years
presanted In these financial slalements.

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for certain financial
instruments and net defined benefit liability, that are measured al far value al the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

(¢) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabiities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at the dale of the financial statements and the reported
ameunts of revenue and expenses for the years presented. Actual resulls may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimatesare revised and in gny future periods affected.

In particular, information aboul significant areas of eslimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financlal statements
pariain 10!

» Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has estimated
useful life of each class of assels based on the nature of assets, (he estimaled usage of the assat, the
operating condition of the asse{, pas! history of replacemenl, anticipated technological changes, . The
Company reviews the camying amount of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assels at the
Balance Sheet date. This reassessment may resull in change In depreciation expense in fulure periods.

» Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intanglble asseis are tested for impaiment when
events ocour or changes In crcumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
Is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use
and fair value less cost to sell. The caiculation invalves use of significant estimates and assumptions which
includes tumover and eamings mulliples, growth rates and net marging used to calculate projected future
cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and markel conditions,

» Income Taxes: Delerred tax assels are recognized fo the extent that it Is regarded as probable thal
deductible lemporary differences can be realized. The Company eslimates deferred tax assets and liabililies
based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s
expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the ralated assets, Changes In these estimates
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may affecl the amounlt of deferred lax liabilifies or the valuation of deferred fax assets and there the lax
charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of 1ax legislation, developments in case
law and the potential outcomes of lax audits and appeals which may be subject lo significant uncertainty.
Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation
of deferred tax assets, cash tax settiements and therefore the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value measurement financlal instruments: The falr value of financial Instruments that are not traded
in an active market Is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant judgements to
select a variely of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing al
the Balance Sheet date, Fair value of financial instruments, that are traded in active marke! is determined
from markal prices as reduced by estimated cost of trading.

Litigation: From time to lime, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each
being always subject to many unceriainties inheren! in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it Is
considerad probable that a payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Significant judgment is made when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavorable outcome
and the abllity to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are
reviewed al each accounting period and revisions made lor the changes in facls and circumstances,

Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit
obligalion are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation
nvolves making vanous assumplions that may differ from aclual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved n the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive lo changes
in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed al each Balance Sheel dale,

(d) Functional currency :

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's functional
currencies.

(e} Rewvenue recognition :

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration recefved or receivable. Revenue comprise of sale of
sugar, and other sugar auxiliary products. Revenue is recognised when following conditions are satisfied:

L

the company transfers to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of cwnership of the goods
the enlity relains neither continuing managerial involvament lo the degree usually associaled with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliable
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the iransaction will flow to the entity; and

the costs incurred or 1o be incurred In respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes. returns and discounts.

Interest
Inleres! income is accrued on a lime proportion basis using the effective interest rale method.

Dividend
Dividend income Is recognised on cash basis.
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(f) Employee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

|. Provident Fund: The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make manthly contributions al a
specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currenfly 12% of employees’ salary), which is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Prafit and Loss during the year. Amounts collected under the
provident fund plan are deposited with Government administered provident fund. The Company has no further
pbfigation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

li. Gratuity Fund

The Company makes annual contributions to gratuity funds administered by the trustees for amounts netified
by the funds. The Gratuity plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employess on retirement, death or
termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's last drawn salary and tenure of
employmenl. The Company accounts for the net present value of its obligations for gratulty benefits, based on
an independent actuarial valuation, determinad on the basis of the projected unlt credit method, carred out as
at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediataly in the other comprehensive
income and reflected in relained eamings and will not be reclassified (o the statement of profil and loss.

iii. Superannuation Fund

Confribution to defined benefit scheme with LIC towards retirement benefit in the form of superannuation
I8 recognised as expenses In the statemeant of profit and loss during the period in which employes
renders the related service,

iv. Compensated Absences

Entitlemnant to annual leave is recognised when it accrues to employees. The Company determines the
liability for such accumulated leave al each Balance Sheet date and the same Is charged lo revenue
accordingly

v. Other Employee Benefits

Other benefits, comprising of discretionary Long Service Awards and Leave Travel Allowances, are
determined on an undiscounted basis and recognised based on the enlillement thereaf.

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecialion and accumulated impairment
losses. if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded al cosl. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost
of construction, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), expenses directly related to the
Incation of assets and making them operstional for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets,
the attributable borrowing costs (refer note no. 2(p) below). Initial estimate shall also include costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which il is located,

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably,

An assets’ carrying amount is wrillen down immedialely lo its recoverable amount if the assel's ¢amying
amount |s graaler thal Its eslimated recoverable amount

Depreciation Is charged to profit o loss so as lo write off the cost of assels (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method
gxcept for asset situated at Registered Office, which are depreciated by written down value method .The
eslimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with
the effect of any changes in eslimale accounted for on a prospective basis. The eslimated useful lives of the
depreciable assets Is in accordance with rules prescribed under parl " C "of Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnized upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits
are expected to arise from the confinued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
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retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Capltal work in progress represents projects under which he property, plant and equipmenl’s are nat yel
ready for their intended use and are carmied al cost detennined as aforesaid.

(h) Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets include cost of acquirad software and designs, and cost Incurred for development of the
Company's website and certain contract acquisition costs. Intangible assets are initially measured at
acquisition cost including any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset lor its intended uss. Inlemally
developed intangibles are capitalised if, and enly if, all the following crileria can be demonstrated:

1) the: technical feasibility and Company's Intention and ability of completing the project;

) the probability that the project will generate future ecanomic benefits;

iii} the avallability of adequate technical financfal and other resources lo complete the project; and
Iv) the ability lo measure the development expenditure reliably,

Expenditure on projects which are not yel ready for Intended Use are carried as intangible assets under
development.

Intangible assets with finite ves are amortized over their estimated useful sconomic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there Is an Indication that the intangible asset may be Impalred. The amortisation
periods are reviewed and impairment evaluations are carried out at leasl ence a year.The eslimated useful
life used for amortising intangible assets are as under:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Software and Licences 5 years

An intangible assel is derecognized on disposal, or when no fulure economic benefils are expected from use
of disposal. Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible assel. measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and lhe carmying amount of the assel, and are recognized in the
Stalement of Profit and Loss when the assel is derecognized.

(i) Impairment of assets:

Assals thal have an indefinile useful life are not subjec! lo amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In
cireumstances indicate thal the carrving amounl may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
theé amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds ils recoverabile amount.,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of futura cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amourt, the camying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount, An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

When an impaimment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the asset (or a cash-generaling unit)
i increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased camrying amount does
nat exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the assel (or cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized Immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(j) Foreign Currency Translation :

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transaclions ars recorded by applying [o the foreign currency amount
the exchange rale betwean the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

Subsequent Recognition

As al the reporting date, non-monelary ilems which are carried al historical cost and denominated in a foreign
currancy are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the fransaction. All non-monetary items which are
carned at fair value or other similar valuation denominaled in a fereign currency are reported using the
exchange rates that exisled when the values were the fair value measured.

All monelary assels and liabilities in foreign currency are restaled at the end of accounting period. Exchange
differances on restatament of olher monetary items are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

(k) Assetstaken on lease:

Leases are classified as finance lease whenaver the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership (o the lesses. Al the other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis, unless another basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits received from the use of the
assels taken on lease or the payments of lease rentals are in line with the sxpected general infiation
compensaling the lessor for expected Inflationary cost. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

Assets heldunder finance lease are capitalised al the inception of the lease, with corresponding liability being
recognised for the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the
statement of Profit or Loss so as lo achieve a constant rate of interest on the remalning balance of the liability.
Assels held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated uselul life of the assel and
the lease lerm.

(I} Inventories:

Finished goods are valued as follows and increased by Excise Duty thereon as applicable.
All finished goods are valued al lower of weighted average cosl or net realizable value.
Molasses, a byproduct is valued at estimated net realizable value,
o Crops under cultivation are valued at cost,
«  Work In progress is valued al lower of weighted average cost or nel realizable value of the finished goods
duly adjusted according to the percentage of progress.
» Raw matenals, stores, sparas, malerials in transil are valued at weighted average cosl. However, when the
nel realizable value of the finished goods they are used In is less than the cost of the finished goods and if
the replacement cost of such matenals elc. is less than their holding cost In such an evenl, they are valued
at replacement cosl.

(m) Government Grants

Government grants are recognised in the period to which they relate when there |s reasonable assurance thal
the grant will be received and thal the Company will comply with the attached conditions

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the Company recognises as expenses the related cosls for which the grants are Intended o
compensale.
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(n) Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax assel or liability
during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly in equity, respectively,

(I} Current tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period te which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provislon for current income tax is made for the tax lability payable on laxable income after considering tax
allowances, deduclions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the
prevailing tax laws

Current tax assels and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intenfion to settle the asset and the liability an a net basis.

(i} Deferred tax :

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Defemed income tax assets and
liabilities are recognised lor deductible and laxable temporary differences arising between the lax base of
assels and liabilities and their camrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income
tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a businass
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it i probable that taxable profit will be
avallable against which the deduclible lemporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilites are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests In joint
ventures whare the timing of the reversal of the temporary differance can be controlled and it 15 probable
thal the temporary difference will nol reverse in the foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at eachBalance Sheet date and reduced to the
extent thal it is ho longer probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset 1o be utilised

Deferred lax liabilities and assets are measured al the tax rates that are expecled |o apply In the petiod in
which the liability |s settled or the assel realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacled by the Balance Sheeldate,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate 1o income laxes levied by the same laxation
authonty and the Company intends lo settle fis current tax assels and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Allernative Tax ("MAT™} credit is recognized as an assel only when and o the extent there s
reasonable certainty thal the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such assel
is reviewed al each Balance Sheel dale and the camrying amount of the MAT credit assel is written down to
the extent there is no longer a reasonable cerlainty lo the effect that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the specified period.

(o) Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a presenl legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past evenl, il
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when a raliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is
discounted using a pre-tax rale that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific lo the abligation and the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense,
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Contingent liahilities are recognized only when there s a possible obligation ansing from past events, due fo
pcourrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the
Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured In terms of future oufflow of resources, or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made, Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basls and
only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for. Contingent labilities are not
recognized in these financial statements, but are disclosed in Note No.38.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

(p) Berrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing cosls directly attribulable to the acquisiion or construction of qualifying
asseisihal necessarly takes a substantial penod of lime lo gel ready for their inlended use or sale, are added 1o
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their Intended use or sale,
Bomowing costs consist of inlerest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Interest income eamed an temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assels is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs thal are not direclly
allributable o a qualifying asset are recognised in the Slatement of Profit or Loss using the effective interasl
method,

(q) Cash and Cash Equivalent (for the purpose of cash flow statements);

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible inlo known amounts of cash and which are subject lo insignificant risk ol changes in value.

(r) Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby prafit! (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, Cash
flow for the year are classified by operaling, investing and financing activities.

(s) Eamings Per Share:

Basic eamings per share Is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax affect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of squily shares cutstanding during the year
including potential equity shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the profit [ (less) after tax (including the post-tax effecl of extracrdinary tems, If any) as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges lo expanse or income (net of any altributable taxes) relaling to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for demang basic eamings
per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

(t) Segment Reporting:

The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reparting provided to the Managing Direclor.
The Managing Director, who is responsible for allocaling resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the committee that makes sirategic decisions:

The accounting policles adopted for segment reporting are in fine with the accounting policies of the Company.
Segment ravenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments
on |he basis of thelr refationship lo the aperaling aclivilies of the segment,

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarly determined based on
market { fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and lisbilities which relate 1o the Company as a whole
and are not allocable o segments on reascnable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue /
expenses | asseis/liabilities”.
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All operating segments, operating resulls are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Board of Direclars fo make
decisions aboul resources Lo be allocated Lo the segments and assess lheir performance,

[u) Financial Instruments:

Financial Assels:

Classification

The Company classifies financlal assels as subsequently measured at amortised cost, falr value through other
comprehensive income or fair valug through profil or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Racogniion and measurement;

All financial assets (not measured subsaquently at fair value through prafit or loss| are recognised initially at fair
value plus lransaction costs thal are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way lrades) are racognised on the lrade date, i.e., the date lhat the Company commils o
purchase or sell the assel.

Debt inslrumenls at amorlised cos!

A 'debt instrument’ is measured al the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The assel is held within & business madel whaose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b} Contractual lerms of he asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows thal are solely payments of
principal and intarest (SPPI) on the principal ameount cutslanding.

After initial measurement, such financlal assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included In finance
income in the Stalement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recoanised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. This category penerally applies to loans and advances, deposits, trade and ofher
receivables.

Debt instrumants Included within the fair value through profit and lass (FVTPL) category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measurad al fair value, Equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried al cost less impalrment, if any.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable; a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
pnmarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance shieet) when:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTp.))

- The nighls to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'’ arrangement; and either:

(&) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTp.,)

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assel.

When the Company has transferred its nghts to recaive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through amrangement, it evaluates if and to what extert it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor relained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferrad assat to the extant of the
Company's continuing involvement. In thal case, the Company also recognises an associated liabllity, The
transfarred asset and the associaled liability are measured on a basis thal refiects the rights and ebligations that
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaranise over the transierred assel Is measured at the lower
of the original carmying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assels

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assels and credil risk exposure:

a) Financial assets thal are debl instruments, and are measured al amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance,

b) Trade recelvables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing companent.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company lo track changes in credil risk. Rather, it
recogrises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet dale, right from its initial

recognition.
Financial Liabilities

Classificalion

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial
liabilities at fair value through profil or loss. Such liabilities, including derivalives that are liabilities, shall be
subsequently measured al fair value

Inilial recognition and measuremeant

Financial liabililies are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less,
Ipans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedaing instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate,

All financial fiabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and pavables,
net of directly attribulable transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee conlracts and derivative financial instrumenis

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR mathod. Gains and losses are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities
are derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation |s Included as finance costs Iin the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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This category generally applies fo interesl-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecoanition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liabllity is replaced by another from the same lender on subistantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing hiability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetling of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabllities are offsel and the net amount Is reported in the balance shest if there Is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net
basis, 10 realise the assels and setlle the liabilitlies simultaneously.

Equily instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities, Equity instruments issued by the Cempany are recognized alt the procseds received, net of
direcl issue cosls.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ma) ~Capital work in progress Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP
Less than 1 vear 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeurs | More than 3 Years Total
Projects in Progress 25.11 251
(Plant and Machineary
for engineering unit)
3(b) Capital work in progress completion schedule
To be completed
CWIP
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | More than 3 Years Total
Projects in Progress 25.11 - - 25.11
4 - Other Intangible Asset
Description Computer Software Toatal
Cost or Valuation
As at March 31, 2023 (At Cost) 187.53 187.53
Additions during the year 1.00 100
Deletions duning the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 (At Cost) 188.53 188.53
Additions during the veat 10,50 L0.50
Deletions during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 (At Cost) 199.03 199.03
Amortization and Impairment
Depreciation as at 31.03.2023 165.32 165,32
Amaortization for the year ended March 31, 2024 5.18 5.18
As at March 31, 2024 | 70.51 1 70.51
Admortizitjon for the vear 1247 1247
As at March 31, 2025 182.97 | §2.97
Net Book Value
As at March 31, 2025 16.06 16.06
As at March 31, 2024 18.03 18.03
4 (a) Intangible Assets under Development
Description Computer Software Total
As at 1st April 20235 46.67 46.67
Additions duning the year 18.58 18.58
Deletion durmg the vear - -
As nf 3151 March 2024 65.25 5525
Additions during the vear 2114 21.14
Peletion during the vear 1,10 |10
As at 31 st March 2025 85.30 83.30
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5 - Non Current Investments Amaunt Rupees in Lakhs
As ol Mareh 31, | As af Mareh 31,
TEVENS 2025 2024
Investmenis in Quoted Equity Instruments (Fawr valued through PL) 1T116.41 11822.06
Imvestments in Quoted Equity Instroments (Fai valued thronegh PL),
Pledged with Kotak Mahindra Bank to avail Working Capital
Term Loan of Rs, 20 crores, 8313.91 T225.57
Investments in Unguoted Equity Instruments {Valued at cost) 118.99 5.00
Total 1954931 19052.63
3.1 Aggregate amount of guoted mvesiments - Market Value 1943032 1904763
5.2 Aggregate amount of unquoted investmenis- Cost 118,99 5.00
6 - (Mher Financial Assets
Security Deposis (unsecured considered good) 0,87 G2.54
Total 90,87 92.54
7 = Other Non Current Assels
Capital Advances .51 -
Long term secunty Deposit (Unsecured and considered good) 405.45 405,35
_Others - -
Total 495.96 405,35
8 - Inventories
Raw muterials 838.70 4293.52
Work in progress 1048.07 1375.58
Fintished goods 11028.26 14481 .43
Stores and spares 405.66 324.92
Crops under cultivation 17.69 -
Total 13338.37 20475.45
Y - Investments
Investments in Mutual Funds (Fair valued through PL) 7815.50 127246
Total T815.50 7272.46
10 - Trade Receivables
Secured Considered Good - -
Unsecured Considered good 4862.42 2920.27
Consideted Doubtful 183.91 190.99
5046.33 3111.27
Less:
Impairment for Trade recevable under expected credit loss model 18391 | 90,99
Total 4862.42 2920.27
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Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31.03.2025 Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Less than | 6 months - | 5 300 ol 0 3 yeqp | More than)
tmonths 1 vear g 3 year
(1} Undisputed trade recetvables
considered good 3807.91 o3 243.26 71349 203,56 | d636.04
(1] Unchsputed Trade Receivable
Which have sizmbfiante increase i credit risk -
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivable
credit impuired - & .02 £.19 12.6d 37.03
(iv) Dispuled Trade Receivable - considered good - - 235,78 225.78
(v} Dispuied trade recorvable which have significant
wicrease 1 credit risk 146,89 | 146.80
(vi) Irsouted Trade Recgivables - credit impoired - - - - - -
Total | 3807.91 643 | 24928 | 83.88 S98.84 | 5046.33
Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31.03.2024
Purticulirs Less than | Gmonths- | 5 3yoare )9 3 yeqe | Morethan) o
emonths | year ) 3 vear
(1) Unchiaputed trade reccivables - considered good [703.27 233,75 B4.48 | 38444 288.535] 260450
(1) Un disputed Trade Recsivable - Which have
significant increase in credit rigk - - - -
(i1} Undisputed Tride Receivable - crediv impaired - 4 32| 3448 5.11 44.11
(iv) Disputed Tiade Receivable - considered good - - - . 2578 22578
(v) Disputed trade receivable which have ggmificant
wereane in credit risk - - - 146.89] 146,89
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - oredit impaired - - - - - -
Total | 1703.27 133,75 #8.81 [ 419.12 o66.32) 311027
11 - Cash and cash equivalents
F Asat March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
i) Balances with banks:
-In current accounts 348.04 158.37
-In Fixed Depasits 1659.33 2129. 1
ii) Cash on hand 616 7.335
Total 201413 229542
12 - Bank Balances other than 11 above
In Fixed Deposits 1818.41 1450.91
Bank Balances held as Margin Money 917.72 863,12
Unpaid Dividend account 43.15 19.45
Total 2779.28 139548
13 - Other Current Financial Assets
i) Unsecured, considered good,
- Advance to Employees 9.75 f.52
- Clatmas receivable - -
Dividend Receivable -
Other Deposils .03 -
Interest accured on Fixed Deposit 43,87 0,22
Total 55.66 15.74
14 - Other Corrent Tax Assets
Advance Tax / TDSJ TCS pad 3.70 227
Total 370 .27
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15 - Other Current Assets Amounl Rupees in Lakhs

As af March 3L, T As at March 31,
Particulars 2028 2024
Unsccured considered good
Advances to Supplier 688,70 1026.95
Advances to Supplier (Considered doubtful) 40.27 4.27
12897 1031.22
Liess @ Provision for Advance o Suppher {Considered doubiiul) 40.27 27
688,70 102693
Balance with government authorfics 63.08 149 44
Prepaid Expenses 110.19 11%.37
Total 861.97 1294.76
16 - Assets held for sale
Plant and Machinery - 239.50
Tutal - 139.50
17- Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
25,00,00.000 Equity Shires of Re. 1/~ each 2500.00 2500.00
Total 2500.00 2500.00
Issued. Subscribed And Paid Up
11,33.85.050 BEquity Shares of Re 1/- each Lguity Shares 1133.85 11331 85
Total 1133.85 1133.85
17.1 Movement in respect of Equity Shares is given below ;
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
' Nos. Amount in Laksh Nos, Amount in Laksh]
At the beginning of the period 113385050 113385 | 113385050 1133 85
(+} 1ssued during the period - . - E
(-) Redeemed during the period - - - -
Ouitstanding at the end of the period 113385050 1133.85 | 113385050 1133.85

17.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 1/~ per share. The
holders of the equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are
entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share holding at the meetings of sharcholders.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
the remaining assets of the company , after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

17.3 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTp.,)

S As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Nos, of shares | % of Holding | Nos, of shares | % of Holding |
Durgamba Investment Private Limited 43742656 38.58% 43742656 38.58%
Total 43742656 IN.58%, 43742656 18.58%
17.4 Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31.03.2025
Farticalars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 | % of Changes
Nos. of shares] %o of Holding | Nes. of shares | % of Holding | during the year]
Drurgamba [nvestment Prvate Limited 43740626 F8.38% 41741036 FR.SE% wil
Ms. Irmgard Yelagapudi 1805280 |59, | BOS 280 1.59%, Nil
M. Kiran Velpgapudi pl. 40l 0 26% 24RR20 0, 6% Nil
MeVinod R Sethi 183610 (L L6 | 53610 (1 16 Mil
Total 46020366 40.59%% 46020560 40.59% Al
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19 - Borrowings

Amount Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

As al March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Non - Corrent

Secured Loans

(i) Secured Loans from Bank

a) Working Capital Term Loan from Kotak

Mahindrs Bank Lid,
Less: Current Maturity Classified in Note No.24

Lad
L 3]
L9
r-d
|

38525

Net

Note : The above loan is secured by second paripassu charge on the current nssets of the company and further securied by a pledge
over selectedquoted Equity shares held by the Company with other listed entities . Thas loan was availed in August 2019 and

repard fully,
Unseeured Loans
Fixed Deposits from Public 533425 573242
Less: Current Maturity Classified in Note No.24 2072.05 2269.02
Less: Unclaimed Deposits 129.62 174.45
333258 328895
Total 333258 3288.95
20 - Other Financial linbilities
Interest Aceried but not due on Fixed Deposits 45,17 73.4
Security Deposit 32 46 25.05
Total 77.63 98.09
21 - Provisions
Provision for Emplovee Benefits :-
- Gratuity [ Leave Encashment 300.02 297.14
- Provisions for Ligumdated Damages 967.12 774.00
Total 1267.14 1071.14
22 - Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and linbilities
Dieferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Particulars asa Akl
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant & Equipment 1128.93 122141
Deferred Tax Liability on Fair value gam on Investments 1370.67 603.33
Sub Total 2499.59 1824.74
Deferred Tax Assets
[Unabsorbed Losses under Income Tax Act 536,55 578.80
Property, Plant & Equipment 16.23 -
O Account of Tinmung Differences in Recogmtion of 12433 138,16
Expenditure Between Books of Accounts and Taxation C '
Sub Total 677.11 717.16
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 11822.48) (1107.58)
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23 = Other Non Current linbilities

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2025  |As at March 31. 2024
Advances received from customers (Long Term) - 84.67
Total - 84.67
24 - Borrowings
Secured Demand Louns from Banks (Refer note below)" 3927.71 7724.00
TUnsecured Loan from Bank 60,00 {006,000
Current Maturities of Long Term Debl 2072.05 2654.27
Total 6599,76 1137827

*Secured by hypothecation of work-in-progress, finished goods, raw materials, stores and
spares, book debts, all other currents assets and further secured by a first /second charge created
onmovable fixed assets of Sugarunit at Vuyyuru.

25 - Trade Payables

Trade pavables
- Dues to Micro und Small Enterprises 2.81 S8.65
= Others* 1203,02 163243

Total 1205.84 1691.08

*The Company has not received any mtimation from suppliers regarding their status under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Trade Pavable Ageing Schedule 2024- 2025

Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment

Particulars .
HHERHTE I"i“,:.i:g:" 1-2Years | 2-3Years h%"flf_‘g!:" Totnl
Ly MSME 2.81 - - - 251
(1) Others 1167 40 L6 3.48 3051 120302
(131) Dasputed Dues - MSME - -
(1v) DEputed Dues - Othets

Trade Pavable Ageing Schedule 2023 - 2024

Cutstunding for following periods from duoe date of payment
Particul
e Lesthan | 1 2vears| 2-3vewrs| MprEthus | gy
(i) MSMI 58,65 - - - $8.05
(1) Onthers 1584 .66 1420 10,95 22.59 163243
(1i1) Disputed Dues - MSME
(iv) Dhsputed Dues - Others
26 - Other Financial Liabilities
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Unclammed Dividends 2591 59.11
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 107.97 67.88
Unpaid Matured Depasits and Interest Acerned Thereon 146.86 194.79
Outstanding Liabilities for Expenses 461.33 647.47
Earnest Money and Other Deposits 90.57 542.49
Payable to Employees 6.87 T.08
Total 839.51 1518.83




K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 = Other Current Liabilities

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTp.,)

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024
Statutory Linhilitics 162,17 394.69
Advance From Customers 1089.53 1658.96
Audil [ee payable 0.24 027
Total 125]1.93 2053.92
28 - Short Term Provision
Provision for Emplovee Benelits 8874 56,39
Provision for Defect Liability Period 115.29 85,08
Total 204.03 141.48
29 - Current Tax Liabilities
Provision for Income Tax 240,30 274.83
Total 240,30 274.83
30 - Revenue From Operations
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Sale of Products 30735.70 34161.29
Sale of Services 279.15 38R .38
Other Operating Revenue 10,94 18.43
Tatal 31045.79 34568.10

31 - Other Income

Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Change in nir value of financial assel 437.57 5004, 65
Profit on sale of Investments 28.31 22.55
Interest Received 464,03 SR2.65
Dividend Income 410.19 408.08
Packmg & Farwarding Charges 14.67 14.66
Income from Mutual fund 277.96 28416
hMansgement services 160,00 -
Rent Received 6013 32.00
Difference in Foreign Exchanges 33.95 4.63
Misecllancous Receipts 116.47 5.98
Profit on sale of propeny, plunt and equipments (Net) T4.63 (.68
Notiomal Increase value of Mutual Fund- In Growth Scheme 221,32 -
Duty Drawback Incentive 29.32 23.88
Unclamed Balance eredited back 012 0.35
Crechit Balances written back 90.45 47.70
Claims Received - 16.75
Excess provision wrmten back on espected credit loss as per IND AS 1.08 24.67
Fxcess warranty provision written back as per IND AS - 34.45
Provision no longer required withdrawn 229.70 26043

Total 2655.93 6858.29
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32 - Cost of Materials Consumed

Amounl Rupees in Lakhs

Opening Balance

Raw Materials and Components 14041 .16 17873.73
Add: Cost of Raw Materials and Components 4073.22 1596.64
Less: Closing Stock = -
Raw Materials and Components (447.63) (535.32)
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 357.51 b 04,71
Total 18024.26 19539, 56
Consumption of Sugar Cane meluded in the Above 9776.63 | 343046
A3 - Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock in Trade
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31, 2025 31. 2024
Opening Balance
Work i Progress 1375.58 386,40
Finished Goods 14481.43 20830,77
Crops Under Cultivation - 0.67
Less: Closing Balance
Work in Progress (1034.75) (1375.58)
Fimished Gonds (11028.26) (14481.43)
Crops Under Cultivation (11.01)
Total 3762.99 5560.84
34 - Emplovee Benelits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2677.17 2744.70
Contribution to Provident and OtherFunds 607.39 187.17
Remuneration to Whole Time Directors 10124 12628
Staff Wellure Expenscs 231.31 21942
Total 361711 3477.78
35 - Finance Cost
Interest Expenses 798.83 1007 01
Other Borrowing Cost 111.96 11223
Total 10,80 1119.24
36 - Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation / Amortisation for the Year
- Tangible Assets 594 41 583.20
- Intangible Asseis 1247 5.18
Total 606,88 583.38
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37 - Other Expenses

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particalars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31. 2025 31,2024
Contract Labour Charges T83.80 (94,30
Power and Fuel 394.55 379.60
Rental charges 30.75 2.4%
Reparrs and maintanence
- Buildings 18.75 50.58
- Machinery 676,18 R15.95
- Workshop &1.40 20.92
- Dffice 27.18 20.99
- Tractor 1.12 (.67
- Others 4.10 76.31
Insutance 53.24 45.82
Payment made to auditors 10,67 10.27
Legal and Professional Charges 282,13 03.40
Selling expenses 236.36 502.64
Dhirector’s Sitting Fees 10.20 9.50
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditire (CSR) 41.0] 16.88
Security Charees 174,27 172,83
Miscellancous expenses 833.10 615.40
Provision for Doubtful debts (Advance) 36.00 -
Rates and taxes 13.69 9.62
Travel and conveyvance 28.89 49.90
Research , mnspection and testing charges 1.37 10).83
Performuance and delivery guarantes claims 430.30 213.93
Warranty Provision 30,21 -
Telephone Charges 8.52 9.32
Irrecoverable loans and advances written off 4.61 4.76
Pesticides / Fertilizers 1,03 1.06
Impart of Sérvice (Sales commission & other services) 09.57 62.65
Total 4321.37 3911.11
Payment made to statutory auditors :
L As Audi Foes 7.00 7.00
ii. For Other Services 2.91 2.93
. For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.76 0.35
Total 10,67 10.27
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38. Contingent Liabilities in respect of the group:
Bank Guarantees - R5,2328.72 Lakhs/- (PY Rs. 2938.07 Lakhs)
38.1 Demands raised by the respective authorities are as under:

Amount Rupees in Lekhs
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2025 31.2024

Shaure transmission 11.06 11.06
Labour cases 59.31 86.36
Non-enrolment of contract labour {or contribution to
Provided Fund 110,95 110.95
Case on Duty reluting to Captive Power Generation and
sale o gnd 578.87 378.87
Value Added Tax case 6.6 16.61

Total T76.80 803,85

38.2 Estimated Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for Rs. 100,00 lakhs

39. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises as at 31st March 2025:

S.
No

Particulars

As at March

312025

Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
&) Principal Amount
b} Interest due thereon

As at March
31,2024

2.81

58.65

Tk

Amount of interest paad In terms of section 16 of the Miero,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along
with the amount paid to the supplier beyond the appointed day;

MNil

il

Amount of inferest due and payable for the penod of delay i
muaking payment (which have been paid bul beyond the
appoinied day durmg the year) but without adding the interesl
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006;

Ml

Nil

Amount ol mlerest accrued and remaining unpaid

Nil

Nil

L

Amount of further inferest remaining due and payvable even in
the succesding years, until such dave when the interest dues as
pbove are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act.2006.

Nil

Nil

The Group has not receive an intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating

to amount upaid as at the year and together with interest paid / payable us required under the

Act have have not been given.
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Disclosure requirements of Indian acconnt Accounting Standards

40.Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

40.1 Financial Instruments by Categories

The carryving value and o value of tinancial i struments by categones were as follows

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
March 31, 2025
) Amortized | Financial assets/ liabilities | Financial assets/liabilities at
Parficulars cost | ot fair value through profitor]  fair value through OCI
lnss
Assots:
Non Current Financial Assels o087
Non-Current Investments 18346.61 10270
Current Trade Receivables 4862 42
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2014.13
Other Bank Balances 2779.2%
Current Investments 7815.50
Other Current Financial Assets 35.66
Liabilities:
Term loan {Non- Current) 3332.58
Other Long term Gnancial lbilines 77.63
Other Financial Liabilitiey 239 5]
Shert Term Borrowings H599 Th
Trade Payables 1203.84
March 31, 2024
Amortized | Finuncial assets/ Habilities | Financial assets/liabilities at
Particulars cost at fair value through profit or fair vitlue through OCI
loss
Assels;
Non - Corent Financial Assets 02.54
Non-Current Investmenis 18391.533 b1 08
Current Trade Receivables 2920,27
Cash & Cash Equivalenis 229542
Other Bank Balances 2305 48
Current Investments 7272 .45
Other Current Financial Assets 15.74
Liabilities:
Term loan (Non-Current) 3J28K.U5
Other Long Term financial Habilities 98.09
Other Financial Linbilitics 151882
Short Term Borrowmgs 1137827
Trade Pavables 1691 .08
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40.2 Fair Value Hierarchy
« Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or hahility, etther directly (1.e. as prices) or indivectly (i.e, derived [rom prices).
« Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or habilities that are not based on observable market data
« {unobservable inputs).

40.3 Valuation Technigque used to determine Fair Value:

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments mclude:
« Use of quoted market prices for Listed instruments

40,4 The following tables present fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at Tair

For the year 31.03.2025 Far the vear 11.03.2024
Level 1| Level2 | Level3 | Total |Levell| Level2 | Leveld | Tolal

Particulars

Financial Assets

Investments in Equily

Instruments 19430.32 1943032 |1 9047 .63 1904763
Invesiments m Quoted

Mutual Funds 7813.50 7815.50 'JETI,JA'Jl 127246

41. Financial risk management

The group's activities expose to hmited financial risks: market nisk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
group's pimary focus 18 to foresee the unpredictbility of financial markets and seek 10 mininvze potential
adverse effects on its financial performance:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fulure eamings or fair values or future cash fows thut may result from a
change in the price of a financial instrument,

The group 18 exposed wo market risk primarily related o foreign exchange rte tisk (currency misk), Interest
rale risk and the market valuwe of its investmenits.

Securities Prices Risk:

The group's exposure to equity securities price nisk anses from Investments held and classified i the
Balance Sheet as Fair Value through P & L. The group has investment tn a form of Mutual funds and
Equuty shares, The group monitors the movement in the value of the Investménts by obsérving the NAV,

Credit Risk

Credit nsk refers 1o the risk of default on s obligation by the counterparty resulling i a Anancuil loss. I
principally arises from the group's Trade Receivables, Advances and deposit(s) made

Trade receivables

The group has outstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs. 5046.33/- Lakhs and Rs. 3111.27/- Lakhs as of
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured are derived
from revenue eamned from customers. Group's exposure to credit nsk 15 imfluenced mamly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The group 18 not exposed o concentration of credit nisk 1o any one single
customer. Defaull on account of Trade Receivables happens when the counterparly fals 1o make
contractual payment when they fall due.

Further for amounts overdue are constantly monitored by the management and provision towards
expected credit loss are made i the books. Management estimated of expected credit loss for the Trade
Receivables are provided below with the elassification on deblors,
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Credit risk exposure:
An analysis of age of trade receivables at each reporting date is summanzed as follows;

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
As at 31.03.2025

Less than | 6 months - More than

6 months | | year b=Zyear | - Syear] 4 vear Total

Particulars

(i) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered good 38017.91 106,43 243.26 7544 203.56 |4636.64
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Which bave signifiante increase
in credit nsk - - - - -
(1t1) Undisputed Trade Receivable -

credil impaired - - 602 8.39 22,62 17.03
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivable -

considered good - - - - 225.78 | 22578
(v} Disputed trade receivable which

bave significant increase i credit risk - - - - 146.89 | 146.89

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables
- credit impaired - - - x 3 2

Total 3807.91 306.43 249.28 B1.88 598.84 |5046.33
As at 31.03.2024
- 'i
Sa—— Less than | 6 monihs 1-2 year|2- 3 year lore than Total

6 months | 1 year 3 vear

(1} Undisputed trads
receivables - considered good 170327 23375 8448 | 38444 288.55 | 2694.50

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable -
Wlich have significant increase
in credil nsk - - - - - -

(1i1) Undisputed Trade

Receivable - eredit impaired - - 4.32 34.68 5.11 44,11
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable -
cansidered good - - - - 25,78 | 225.78

(v) Dusputed trade receivable -
which have significant increase
in credit nsk - - - - |46.89 | 146,89

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables - eredit impuired - . - - - -

Total 1703.27 233.75 SE81| 419.12 606632 | 3111.27

Trade reccivables are impaired in the year when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the
recovery analysis performed by the group for individual trade recervables. The group considers that all the
above financial pssets that are not impawed for cach reporhing dates under review are of good credit
quality.

Liguidity Risk’
Cur liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of monthly and yearly projections. The group’s principal

sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations, Term loans. deposiis
from public and short-term borrowings from Bank,
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Trade receivables are impaired in the vear when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the
recovery analysis performed by the group for individual rade recetvables. The group considers that all the
above financial assets that are not impaired for each reporting dates under review are of good credil
quality.

Liquidity Risk’

Cur hquidity needs are monitored on the basis of monthly and yearly projections. The group’s principal
sources of hquidity are cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations, Term loans, depaoisits
from public and short-term borrowings from Bank.

The group manages liquidity needs by continuonsly monitoring cash inflows and by maintaining adequare

cash and cash equivalents, Net cash requirements are compared to available cash in order to determine
any shortfalls,

Short term hguidity requirements consist maihly of sundry creditors, expense pavable, employee dues,
repayment of loans and retention & deposits arising during the normal course of business as of each
reporting date. We mamiain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet our shori-term

The table include both principal cash flows. Amount Rupees in Lakhs
31.03,2025 .. 31.03.2024
Particulars Payable with in More than | Payahle within 1 | More than
| vear | vear year | year
Loan from Bank » - 385.25 =
Deposits from Public 2201.67 1382.58 244347 3838.95

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and equity, where any transaction references more than one currency
or where assets [ liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
respective entities.

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Group operates, its operations are
subject to risks anisiog from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate
fluctuations in US Dollar, Great Britain Pound against the Indian rupee.

The group evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange
rate risks. It hedges a part of these risks by using derivative financial instruments in line with its risk
management policies.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity 1s calculated by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure
and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift of all the currencies by 3% agamst the Indian Rupee.

The lollowmg analysis has been worked out based on the net exposures for the group as of the date of
statements of financial position which could affect the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and equity. Further the exposure as indicated below 1s mitigated by some of the derivative contracts
entered into by the group

The following table sets forth information relatimg t© foreign currency exposure as of March 31, 2025

Assels as at
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
USD 290930 BOORNT

SGD - -
CAD 439891 24000

Particulars
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3% appreciation / depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to Indian Rupees would
result in decreaso / increase in the group's profit before tax as detwiled m table below:

Amount Rupess in Lakhs

USD sensitivity at year end As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Recervables:
If INR rate over Other currency increases by 3% (2510347) (3336245)
If INR rate over Other currency decrease by 5% 2510347 31336245
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk 1s measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest
rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the Group's cash flows as
well as costs. The Group is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest-bearing
liabilities being short term borrowings,

The following tablé represents the confractual obligation and receivables to/from financial
liabilities and financial assets respectively.

Amount Bupees in Lakhs

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Fixed Rute Instruments
Financial Asset
- Merem Money with Bank 917.72 865.12
Financial Liahilities
Vanable Rate Instruments
- Term Loan from Bank 385.25
- Demand Lean from bank 4527.71 8724.00

The Group's variable interest rate exposure 1s mainly related to debt obligations ansing from
short debt borrowings

The interest expenses and impact on it on account of Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates at the balance sheet is provided in table below:

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Expenses arsing op account of variable rate
of interest on Bank borrowings 318,65 463,51
Impauct on :
Increase in 100 basis point 45,28 21,09
Decrease 1 100 basis points (45.28) (91.09

The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantaneous parallel shifis in the vield curve. Although
some assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react
correspondingly to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on some types of assets and
liabilines may fluctuate with changes in market interest rates, while inferest rates on other types of assets
may change with a lag. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate
across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and
has been calculated based on nisk exposures outstanding as at that date.

The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during
the period.
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The model assumes that interest rate changes are instantancous paralle! shifts in the vield curve. Although
some assets and labilities may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react
correspondingly to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on some types of assets and
[tabilifies may Auctuate with changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other tvpes of assels
may change with a lag. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate
across all yield curves. This caleulation also assumes that the change occurs at Lthe balance sheet date and
has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date.

The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debl outstanding during
the period,

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars Ay at 31st March, 2025 [As at 31st March, 2024
Non Current Borrowings 333258 3288.95
Total Equity 45027.61 43867.90
Net debt to equity ratio 0.07 0.07

*Debt represents long term liabilities, Equity represents Share capital, other Equity and Deferred Tax
liability

42, Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-192 “Employee Benefits™
42.1. General descniption of various defined employee's benefits schemes are as under:

#) Provident Fund:
The group’s Provident Fund 1s managed by Regional Provident Fund Commussioner. The
group pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate.

b) Gratuity:
Gratuity 18 a defined benefit plan, provided in respect of past services based on the actuarial
valuation carried out by LIC of India and corresponding contribution to the fund is expensed in
the year of such contribution.

The scheme 15 funded by the group and the hability 1s recognized on the basis of contribution
payable to the insitrer, Le., the Life Insurance Corporation of India, however, the disclosure of
information as required under Ind AS-19 have been made in accordance with the actuarial
valuanon.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.,)

42.2.The summarized position of various defined benefits recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss, Other Comprehensive Income{OCT) and Balance Sheet & other disclosures ave as under:
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Movement in defined benefit obligation: (Amount in Rs. In lakhs)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.,)

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars J1.03.2025 31.03.2024
Defined benefit obhigation - Begmming of the vear 102671 114432
Current service cosi 45.29 35,61
Interest Cost 635.17 83.12
Past Service Cost - 2.14
 Denelits Puid 147. 14 (200.63)
Re-measurements - actuarial loss/(gan) 115.24 (57.85)
Defined henefit obligation — End of the year 1108.26 1026.71
Movement in plan asset: Amount Rupess in Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Fair value of plan nssets at beginning of year 1060.6% 1156.84
Emplover contributions [12.41 25.59
Benelits paid (147.14) (200.63)
Re-measurements - Return on plan assets §9.33 T8.88
Fair value of plan assets at end of veir 1115.29 1060.69
Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Current service cost 48.29 35.01
Curtailment cost/(credit) 0,00 (1,00
Expected return on Plan Assets (89.33) (78.8%8)
Interest cosi 63.17 83.12
Net Actural (Gain Losy) recognised in the year 115.24 37.85
Cost Recogruzed in PEL 13936 59.84
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss due 10 assumption changes 115.24 (57.85)
Difference between Actual Returmn and Interest Income on Plar
Assets- (gain)loss - -
Actuarial {gain )loss recogmzed m OC| 115.44 (57.83)
Actuarial Assumption Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Discount rale 7.25% 1.25%
Rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%%
Altrinon Rate 6.50% 6. 50%
Retirement Age 60 60
Average Future Service 8.0 8.80
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43. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Parties Disclosures™

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

I.Key Managerial Personnel

a) Mr. Vinod R. Sethi, Executive Chairman
b) Ms. Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director
¢) Ms. Kiran Velagapudi, Executive Director

d) Mr. K.Panneer Selvan, Chief Financial Officer
¢) Mr. T.Karthik Narayanan, Company Secretary

(B) Transactions During the vear

Amount Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Key Managerial Personnel
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Rent Received 22,00 18.00
Remuneration paid to Key Managerial
Personnel 141.77 139.78
Interest on fixed deposit paid to Key
Managerial Personnel 67.45 68.70

(C) Closing balances as on 31/03/2025

Amount Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars Key Managerial Personnel
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Share Capital held by key Managenal
Personnel 22,78 22.78
Fixed deposit held by key Managerial
Personnel §20.00 840.00

44. Delails relating to loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KMP and

related parties

45.. Details relating to Benamu Property held by the Company

46. Details relating to declaration of the company as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or other lender

47. Details relating to the nature of transaction carried out with the struck- off company

48. Details relating to the transactions under taken in Cryplo or Virtual Currency

49. Details relating to the undisclosed income reported

- Nil

- Nil

- Nil
- Nil
- Nil

-Nil



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.,)

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. Details relating to loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KMP and
related parties - Nil

45.. Details relating to Benamu Property held by the Company - Nil

46. Details relating to declaration of the company as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender -

Nil
47. Details relating to the nature of trunsaction carried out with the struck- off company - Nil
48. Details relating to the transactions under taken in Crypto or Virtual Currency - Nil
49, Details relating to the undisclosed income reported - Nil
50. Details regarding registration or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of

Companies, beyond the statutory period - Nil
51. Details regarding compliance with number of layers of companies - Nil
52. Details regardimg comphance with approved scheme of arrangemonts -Nil

53. Note on Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

In the case of The Eimco-K.C.P Limited, subsidiary Company, during the fnancial year
2024- 25, the Company has maintained its books of accounts in the accounting software SQL
SERVER which does not possess the required audit trail functionality and edit log requirements as
stipulated by Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended. During
the second half of FY 2024-25 the Company had started migrating its accounting and financial
data 1o Microsoft Navision which possess the above audit wial and edit log requirement and has
fully adopted the said ERP from 1st April 2025 onwards.

54. Minimum Remunaration paid to Managerial Personal :

In terms of Section 197read with Schedule V of the Companies Act.2013, the Financial Year
2024-2025 being the fifth year of inadequate profits during the tenure ( 2020-25) of
Ms.Irmgard Velagapudi, Managing Director and Mr.Vinod R.Sethi, Executive Chairman, the
minimum remuneration pad to Managerial Personnel of a sum of Rs.60.53/- for the Financial
Year 2024-25 is ratificd by the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 28,05.2025 based on
the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In pursuance of Section
197(10), a special resolution will be placed before the sharcholders for their approval in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting

55.The Company has not advanced or extended loan or wvested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entitics {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
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57 - Disclosure of Various Ratios

EL Nume of the Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, March 31,/% Change
A 2025 2024
1 Current Ratio Current Asscty Current Liabilities 3.07 2.16 42%
2 Dbt Eguity Ruuo Towl Bormowings Sharcholder's (.22 0.33 (34%:)
(Short term and long | Equuty
lerm)
i : +
3 Debt Service Profit After Tax + %,mﬂﬂi ;“ Lonts
Coverage Ratio Depreciation + Interest | S
' ' ) : repayment made
on Loans + non-cash i —
djustments Ufing T yoar. 1 £ S0
ek lopg term loan 0.52 0.62 (13%)
4 Return on Equity Net profits afier tax  |Average
Ratio Sharcholder's Equity]  0.03 0.16 (80%)
5 Inventory Sales |Averuge Inventary
Turnover Ratio 1.84 1,59 16%
5 Trade Receivable Credit Sales Average Acoounts
Turnover Ratio Recervable 7.61 1248 | (39%)
T Trade Payable Credit Purchase Average Accounts
Tumover Ratio Payables 12.54 |1 2.78 (2%)
8 Net Capital Net Sales = Total Sales | Working capital =
Turnover Ratio - Sules Return Current assels - 1.51 1.65 (Y%)
Cirrent Habilities
9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit afier tax Net Sales = Totul
Saley - Sales Retum|  0.05 (.19 (76%)
16 | Return on Capital Eamings before Total Assets -
Employed interest and tax current Liabilities +| (1,05 0,16 (T1%)
Current Borrowings
11 | Return on Income generated Average
Investment from mvestments Investments (.03 0.03 (13%)
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58. List of entities consolidated

Net Assets ie Tota
assets minus total Share in profit or los e e
) Comprehensive incon Comprehensive income:
liabilities . |
As % of |
Name ofthe | . o of As % of A8 e 08 Consolid
entity in the c | _ Consolidat
Group onsoli Consoli ed Other ated
dated | Amount | dated Amount Amount | Total Amount
., comprehe .
net profit or| Fiktoe compreh
assets loss PR ensive
rT—————— | I‘n:uma-l
Parent '
KCP Sugar
and Industries|
Corporation
Limited BO.63%| 35393.17 {1‘1-93‘%15 (172.24) 119% (62.15) [T?%}i (234.39)
Subsidiaries | |
1. The EIMCO
KCP Lid 18.12%| 7952.02| 115.18% 1656.08 50%| (25.92)| 117.85% 1630.15
2. KCP Sugars
Agricultural
Research
Farms Lid 1.26% 548.57 | (3.14%) (45.11) (B9%) 35.83| (0.67%) | {9.28)
3, Quality |
enginearing .
works 0% -| (0.06%))| (0.90) 0%| (52.25)| (0.06%} | (0.90) |
Total 100%| 43893.76| 100%| 1437.83 100%| (52.25)  100% | 1385.59

59 . Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 “"Eamings Per Sharc(EPS)”

Basic and Diluted EPS
The carnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS
and Basic EPS is as follows:

Amounl Rupees in Lakhs
. For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, ended March 31,
2025 2024
Profit (loss) for the year, auributble to the
owners of the company 1438.73 661523
Earnings used in calcolation of basic 1438.73 6615.95
earnings per share(A)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1133.85 1133.85
for the purpose of basic carnings per share(B)
Basic and Diluted EPS(A/B) — Rs. 1.27 5.83

60 . Previous year’'s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contp.,)

K.C.P Sugar and Industries Corporation Limited
CIN : L15421TN1995PLC033198
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT:

Amount Rupees in Lakhs
Current Current
Particulars Reporting Period| Reporting Period
2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Sales within India 2888045 32364.16
Sales outside India 2165.34 2203.94
Total 31045.79 34568.10

Note: Company does not own or operate any business outside India

Carrving Amounts of Geographical Assets and additions to tangible and intangible fixed assets:

Carrymg amounts of segment assets
Particulars Current reporting |Previous reporting
period 2024-2025 |period 2023-2024
Located i India 61868.82 06576.73
Located outside India - -
Total 61868.82 66576.73
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For B. PURUSHOTTAM & CO.
Chartered Accountants IRMGARD VELAGAPUDI
FRN 0028088 Managing Director
DIN : 00081370
B.Mahidhar Krrishna K.PANNEER SELVAN T.KARTHIK NARAYANAN KIRAN VELAGAPUDI
Partner Chiaf Financial Officer Company Secretary & Executive Director
Membership No.: 243632 CMA M No.9894 Enﬂ'ﬂiagca Cificer DIN : 00091466
0.AS1274

Place : Chennai
Date : 28/05/2025
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